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Message from the Chairman

Financial Year 2020 was one of the toughest years in the history of
Pakistan, challenging economic business conditions coupled with
COVID 19 pandemic outbreak which has brought down economic
activity and lead to a crunching halted the whole industry for more
than 3 months. As a result of this, our peak summer season was
compromised due to the Covid-19 induced nationwide lockdown.

However, very timely measures taken by the Government including
permission for sustained operations of essential industries, smart
lockdowns, and industry stimulus packages amongst other timely
interventions enabled an economic recovery as evident through
improved fiscal and external indicators. We would like to take this
opportunity to commend the Government’s efforts during the year
and are looking forward to improved economic conditions in the coming year.

To ensure the safety of our employees, strict adherence to SOPs was implemented at our offices and
plant sites to prevent the spread of the virus. With the health and safety of our employees being our
utmost priority, the Company continues to operate a special medical help desk facility.

We are also very proud and congratulate the management team for their efforts in securing
Corporate Order from Coca-Cola international worth approximately Rs. 975 Million. This has been
achieved after a rigorous 3™ party supplier audit wherein the company has been granted green (best)
status. This positions the Company to receive additional orders from other corporate customers.

We look forward to a brighter prospects as the company plans to relocate its existing factory at a
larger new location which has already been acquired. This will enable the company to pursue
volumetric growth, achieve economies of scale as well as manufacturing efficiencies. More
significantly, it will allow the Company to pursue the envisioned real estate development project at
the current site.

We would like to conclude by extending my gratitude and thanks to the Directors, for their energy,
knowledge, advice, and earnest contributions towards the advancement of the Company. We would
also like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to our esteemed investors and bankers for
their continued trust in the Company which has allowed the Company to achieve new heights in a
socially responsible and ethical manner.

Muhammad Adnan Afaq

Chairman
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Message from the CEO

Our vision is to make a difference by produce high quality, market
oriented and innovative products through our two reputable
brands, Waves and Singer. The size of the Home appliance
consumer market has reduced in 2020 with the onset of the
COVID-19 pandemic amongst other factors like inflation,
increasing raw material costs and depreciating rupee. Despite
these challenges, the Company posted a profit of Rs. 127 million
(2019: 378 million). This was achieved in a difficult business
environment with continued improvement in operational
management, cost rationalization, process re-engineering and
strategical measures taken during the whole year.

Government of Pakistan played a vital role by appreciating the difficulties faced by the industry and
promptly introducing working capital support loans, lowering interest rates, and restructuring
custom duties on specific imported items. The Company has also successfully received a substantial
corporate order from Coca-International after a detailed third-party supplier audit having been
awarded the best status. This is expected to trigger the company to purse and receive order from
other corporate customers as well.

Company is currently carrying out its manufacturing operations in a thickly populated and relatively
expensive land area. Due to space constraint in the current location, some of manufacturing activities
have been outsourced to external vendors whereas Finished Goods are being stored in third party
rented warehouses. Accordingly, the management had been looking to relocate the facility to city
surroundings for which acquisition of new and larger property has recently been completed and
relocation is expected to take place in phases. Once the factory is relocated, the Company plans to
develop a Real Estate Apartment Development Project at the vacated land, discussions regarding the
same are already underway.

Looking ahead we remain optimistic and confident about the future of the Company. We have a
coherent team of management, staff & workforce, brand name, excellent product line, and a
nationwide distribution and after sales service network which allows us to reach customers and
provide them service both in urban & rural areas at the best possible terms.

We would like to thank all our Shareholders and the Board of Directors for their immense support.
The Company’s accomplishments and present standing could not have been possible without the
commitment and efforts of our employees who deserve full compliments. We are confident that the
team will continue to grow and constantly deliver on the expectations of all stakeholders. All our
bankers, suppliers, vendors, dealers & distributors deserve the best of compliments for whatever the
company has achieved.

Haroon Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive Officer

WAVES SINGER ANNUAL REPORT 2020 n



Board of Directors

Mr. Muhammad Adnan Afaq — Chairman

Mr. Adnan Afaq is a Senior Chartered Accountant having with diverse work experience having served as Chief
Executive Officer and Managing Director of PACRA. His diverse experience background supplemented by
comprehensive interaction with top managements of a multitude of entities has enabled him to play a key
role in strategic decision making. He has previously served as Chief Executive Officer of Askari Investment
Management Limited. He also worked as Group Head Strategy with Askari Bank Limited and as Chief Financial
Officer with Prime Commercial Bank Limited.

Mr. Shoaib Dastgir- Independent Director

Mr. Shoaib Dastgir has retired as the Federal Secretary in end of February 2021, after completing 33 years of
distinguished career in Civil Services of Pakistan. He has vast international experience of serving in the United
Nations in Africa, Europe and at United Nations Head Quarter for 5 years as director in office of rule of law,
department of peace keeping operations. He has also served as Inspector General of police in Azad Jammu &
Kashmir and Province of Punjab respectively. He has been a managing director of national police foundation
also. He brought together a diverse experience of rule of law, law enforcement & counter narcotics, etc.

Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain- Independent Director

Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain was elected as Director on August 11, 2020 to serve as the member of the
Board of Directors of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited. He is a highly motivated individual and has engaged
teams through his inspiring and achievement driven leadership style. High desirability of the company
maintaining a reputation for high standard business conduct and need to act fairly as between members of
the company. Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain effectively leads the board and ensures that the board plays an
effective role in fulfilling its responsibilities.

Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan- Non Executive Director

Dr. Nighat Haroon Khan is a Radiologist practicing in Lahore. She holds MBBS, F.C.P.S, M.C.P.S. degree and has
years of experience. Dr. Nighat Haroon Khan currently practices in Lahore General Hospital. She is wife of Mr.
Haroon Ahmad Khan who is serving as Chief Executive Officer of Singer Pakistan Limited.
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Moazzam Ahmad Khan- Non Executive Director

Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (FCA)
and has worked for a number of Pakistani and Saudi Organizations in Senior Management positions for the
last two decades

Mr. Nadeem Mahmood Butt- Executive Director

Mr. Nadeem is a Chartered Accountant from ICAP and a graduate of commerce from University of Punjab,
Lahore. Mr. Nadeem has an extensive and diverse experience in the area of Finance, Corporate Cash,
Budgeting, Audit and Forecasting. Mr. Nadeem has served in various globally renowned organizations in the
area of finance. Mr. Nadeem is a talented leader directing skilled financial management teams to support
achievement of overall corporate goals and objectives of Singer.

Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan- Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan is serving as Chief Executive Officer at Singer Pakistan Limited. Mr. Haroon has an
extensive experience in managing appliances businesses and had previously been working as Managing
Director of one of the most renowned appliances companies of Pakistan. Mr. Haroon’s expertise include
financial management and business structuring Mr. Haroon has played a key role in structuring and setting up
of country’s first Independent Power Plant and shaped a number of technology transfer and Joint Venture
agreements. He is also a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
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Corporate Value Statements

Vision
Statement

To be an innovative company that is driven by modern
ideas, committed to constantly strive for surpassing
customer expectations in Quality and Value for Money and
to be a leading home appliances company in Pakistan.

Mission
Statement

To inspire the Consumer with our innovative products &
designs through R&D, improve the standard of life by
offering high-quality products and services at affordable
prices and create the Future.

Core Values
RESPECT B
INNOVATION TEAMWORK
RELIABILITY & ETHICS B
CONSISTENLY INTEGRITY
EXCELLENCE SAFETY. HEALTH
& QUALITY & ENVIRONMENT
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Code of Conduct

Waves Singer Pakistan Limited has committed itself to conduct its business in an honest, ethical and
legal manner. The Company wants to be seen as a
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Company goals and principles that must be AU

interpreted and applied within the framework of laws and customs in which the Company operates.
This code will be obligatory for each director and employee to adhere to.

RESPECT, HONESTY AND INTEGRITY

Directors and employees are expected to exercise honesty, objectivity and due diligence in the
performance of their duties and responsibilities. They are also directed to perform their work with
due professionalism.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Company is committed to comply and take all reasonable actions for compliance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations of state or local jurisdiction in which the Company conducts
business. Every director and employee, no matter what position he or she holds, is responsible for
ensuring compliance with applicable laws.

FULL AND FAIR DISCLOSURE

Directors and employees are expected to help the Company in making full, fair, accurate, timely and
understandable disclosure, in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, in all reports and
documents that the Company files with, furnishes to or otherwise submits to, any governmental
authorities in the applicable jurisdiction and in all other public communications made by the
Company. Employees or directors who have complaints or concerns regarding accounting, financial
reporting, internal accounting control or auditing matters are expected to report such complaints or
concerns in accordance with the procedures established by the Company’s Board of Directors.

WAVES SINGER ANNUAL REPORT 2020



PREVENT CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Directors and employees, irrespective of their function, grade or standing, must avoid conflict of
interest situations between their direct or indirect (including members of immediate family) personal
interests and the interest of the Company. Employees must notify their direct supervisor of any
actual or potential conflict of interest situation and obtain a written ruling as to their individual case.
In case of directors, such ruling can only be given by the Board and will be disclosed to the
shareholders.

TRADING IN COMPANY SHARES

Trading by directors and employees in the Company shares is possible only in accordance with the
more detailed guidelines issued from time to time by corporate management in accordance with
applicable laws.

INSIDE INFORMATION

Directors and employees may become aware of information about Company that has not been made
public. The use of such non-public or “inside” Directors and employees becoming aware of
information which might be price sensitive with respect to the Company’s shares have to make sure
that such information is treated strictly confidential and not disclosed to any colleagues or to third
parties other than on a strict need-to know basis. Potentially price sensitive information pertaining
to shares must be brought promptly to the attention of the Management, who will deliberate on the
need for public disclosure. Only the Management will decide on such disclosure. In case of doubt,
seek contact with the CFO.

MEDIA RELATIONS AND DISCLOSURES

To protect commercially sensitive information, financial details released to the media should never
exceed the level of detail provided in Quarterly And Annual Reports or official statements issued at
the presentation of these figures. As regards topics such as financial performance, acquisitions,
divestments, joint ventures and major investments, no information should be released to the press
without prior consultation with the Management. Employees should not make statements that
might make third parties capable of “insider trading” on the stock market.

COMPETITION AND FAIR DEALING

The Company seeks to outperform its competition fairly and honestly. Stealing proprietary
information, possessing trade secret information that was obtained without the owner’s consent or
inducing such disclosures by past or present employees of other companies is prohibited. Each
director and employee is expected to deal fairly with Company’s customers, suppliers, competitors
and other employees. No one is to take unfair advantage of anyone through manipulation, abuse of
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privileged information or any other unfair practice. The Company is committed to selling its products
and services honestly and will not pursue any activity that requires to act unlawfully or in violation
of this Code. Bribes, kickbacks and other improper payments shall not be made on behalf of the
Company in connection with any of its businesses. However, tip, gratuity or hospitality may be
offered if such act is customary and is not illegal under applicable law. Any commission payment
should be justified by a clear and traceable service rendered to the Company. The remuneration of
agents, distributors and commissioners cannot exceed normal business rates and practices. All such
expenses should be reported and recorded in the Company’s books of accounts.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

The Company believes in providing equal opportunity to everyone around. The Company laws in this
regard have to be complied with and no discrimination upon race, religion, age, national origin,
gender or disability is acceptable. No harassment or discrimination of any kind will be tolerated;
directors and employees need to adhere standards with regard to child labor and forced labor.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

All employees are to be treated with respect. The Company is highly committed to providing its
employees and directors with a safe, healthy and open work environment, free from harassment,
intimidation or personal behavior not conducive to a productive work climate. In response the
Company expects consummate employee allegiance to the Company and due diligence in his job.
The Company also encourages constructive reasonable criticism by the employees of the
management and its policies. Such an atmosphere can only be encouraged in an environment free
from any prospects of retaliation due to the expression of honest opinion.

PROTECT HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY

The Company intends to provide each director and employee with a safe work environment and
comply with all applicable health and safety laws. Employees and directors should avoid violence and
threatening behavior and report to work in fair condition to perform their duties.

RECORD KEEPING

The Company is committed to compliance with all applicable laws and regulations that require the
Company to maintain proper records and accounts which accurately and fairly reflect the Company’s
transactions. It is essential that all transactions be recorded and described truthfully, timely and
accurately on the Company’s books. No false, artificial or misleading transactions or entries shall be
reflected or made in the books or records of the Company for any reason. Records must always be
retained or destroyed according to the Company’s record retention policies.
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PROTECTION OF PRIVACY AND CONFIDENTIALITY

All directors and employees, both during and after their employment, must respect the exclusivity
and trade secrets of the Company, its customers, suppliers and other colleagues and may not disclose
any such information unless the individual or firm owning the information properly authorizes the
release or disclosure. All the Company’s assets (processes, data, designs, etc.) are considered as
certified information of the Company. Any disclosure will be considered as grounds, not only for
termination of services/employment, but also for criminal prosecution, legal action or other legal
remedies available during or after employment with the Company to recover the damages and losses
sustained.

PROTECTION & PROPER USE OF COMPANY ASSETS / DATA

Each director and employee is expected to be the guardian of the Company’s assets and should
ensure its efficient use. Theft, carelessness and waste have a direct and negative impact on the
Company’s profitability. All the Company assets should be used for legitimate business purposes
only. The use, directly or indirectly, of Company funds for political contributions to any organization
or to any candidate for public office is strictly prohibited. Corporate funds and assets will be utilized
solely for lawful and proper purposes in line with the Company’s objectives.

GIFT RECEIVING

Directors and employees will not accept gifts or favors from existing or potential customers, vendors
or anyone doing or seeking to do business with the Company. However, this does not preclude giving
or receiving gifts or entertainment, which are customary and proper in the circumstances, provided
that no obligation could be or be perceived to be, expected in connection with the gifts or
entertainment.

COMMUNICATION

All communications, whether internal or external, should be accurate, forthright and where ever
required, confidential. The Company is committed to conduct business in an open and honest
manner and provide open communication channels that encourage candid dialogue relative to
employee concerns. The Company strongly believes in a clean desk policy and expects its employees
to adhere to it not only for neatness but also security purposes.
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EMPLOYEE RETENTION

High quality employee’s attraction and retention is very important. The Company will offer
competitive packages to the deserving candidates. The Company strongly believes in personnel
development and employee training programs are arranged regularly.

INTERNET USE / INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

As a general rule, all Information Technology related resources and facilities are provided only for
internal use and/or business-related matters. Information Technology facilities which have been
provided to employees should never be used for personal gain or profit, should not be misused
during work time and remain the property of the Company. Disclosure or dissemination of
confidential or proprietary information regarding the Company, its products or its customers outside
the official communication structures is strictly prohibited.

COMPLIANCE WITH BUSINESS TRAVEL POLICIES

The safety of employees while on a business trip is of vital importance to the Company. The Company
encourages the traveler and his/her supervisor to exercise good judgment when determining
whether travel to a high-risk area is necessary and is for the Company’s business purposes. It is not
permitted to combine business trips with a vacation or to take along spouse, relative or friend
without the prior written authorization from Management.

COMPLIANCE

It is the responsibility of each director and employee to comply with this code. Failure to do so will
result in appropriate disciplinary action, including possible warning issuance, suspension and
termination of employment, legal action and reimbursement to the Company for any losses or
damages resulting from such violation. Compliance also includes the responsibility to promptly
report any apparent violation of the provisions of this code. Any person meeting with difficulties in
the application of this code should refer to the Management.
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Corporate Objectives & Strategies

Objectives

Strategies

Enhance
shareholders’
Returns

To manage business in an efficient manner
with a constant focus on the topline and
bottom-line performance of the Company

Become Price-
Competitive

Improve production efficiency through
both technological upgrades and optimal
resource utilization

Broaden the Product
Portfolio

Enter into strategic trading relationships
with global brands to improve standing in
segments where product standing is weak

Exceed Customer
Expectations

Invest in customer-centric initiatives to
improve geographical touch-points and
after-sales services

Create a Pro-Growth,
Learning
Organization

Promote employee training &
development and ethical business
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Brief History of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited (WSPL)

Singer’s history dates back to 1850, when Isaac Merritt

Singer manufactured the first ever sewing machine in S I N G E R
Boston, USA. I. M Singer & Company was duly y v .
incorporated during the same year. The name of the = AN E o e
company was changed to Singer Manufacturing Company during 1853 when the factory of the
Company was also relocated to New York, USA. Singer established its presence in the Indian sub-
continent during 1877. Over the years, and after the independence of Pakistan, Singer continued its
business of sewing machines in the country, but also started dealing in domestic consumer
appliances, besides manufacturing and assembling light engineering products. In 1985, the Company
became a public listed company. Singer Pakistan’s retail network has 140 shops in Pakistan alone,
and covers every small town and metropolitan city of the country. Under the Singer brand, the
Company produces a variety of consumer appliances-including refrigerators, air conditioners, LED

TVs, washing machines, microwave ovens, in addition to its more traditional offerings of sewing
machines, water heaters and gas ovens etc.

Cool Industries (Pvt) Limited, the owner of the WAVES it
brand of consumer appliances, was established in 1971 Py WAVE S
by a family of entrepreneurs from Lahore. Within a [

span of four decades, the Company became a household ;_L;K&,}H‘L
brand in the country. The Company’s history is filled with many milestones. Back
in 1976, it started the production of refrigerators. By 2002, the Company had become the sole
producer of Split Air Conditioners in Pakistan. The Company started producing Microwaves in 2003,
under an agreement with GALANZ, a Chinese company. The product take-off was impressive, thanks
to product durability. The production of Washing Machines started in 2004, when Waves pioneered
single-tub and double-tub washing machines in this market. The Company continued its growth path
until 2015, when a tough competitive landscape and succession issues within the sponsors family
created many bottlenecks in the smooth operations of the Company. Subsequently, the Company
was acquired by the sponsors of Singer Pakistan Limited.

Upon approval of the regulatory and legal formalities, both Companies have been merged into a
single company, with the surviving Company being named as \WWaves Singer Pakistan
Limited.
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Timeline

1877

First Singer sewing machine goes into sales in the Indian
subcontinent

1985

Singer gets listed on the Karachi Stcok Exchange ( Now
Pakistan Stock Exchange )

2006

Singer broadends its product portfolio and launces retail
stores with brand name “ Singer Plus “

2007

Singer Retail Academy was launched for human resources
development

2009

LCD Television product is launched

2010

A new assembly line for split ACs is luanched and silar water
geysers go on sale

2011

The company introduces its Refregerator products to the
market

2016

Singer ( Pakistan ) B.V Netherlands divests its entire
shareholding in Sinsger Pakistan Limted. A wholly owned
subsidiary Elentronic Marketing Company ( Pvt ) Limited
incorporated to deal in distribution and wholesale business of
electronic appliances and its components

2017

Glass door refrigerator and Inverter ACs launched in the
market

2018

Singer merged with Cool Industries Limited ( Waves ), creating
Waves — Singer Pakistan Limited.

2019

Glass Door Alpha Deep Freezer launched in the market

2020
Singer branded Instant Water Heater developed and Introduced
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Products, Quality Management & Distribution

Waves and Singer Branded Product Range
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Multi Brand Products:

The Company through its subsidiary Electronics Marketing Company Pvt Limited (EMCPL) also deals
in buying and selling multi brand products including LED/TVs, Refrigerators, Deep Freezers, Motor
Bikes, Generators, Air Conditioners, Mobile Phones and other related products of renowned brands
in order to generate retailer’s margins through its nationwide network of 140 stores with the option
"Buy now and pay later" under Hire Purchase Terms.

Coolers
Cooking

Ranges

Multi Brand
Products

Mobile

Phones l

Washing
Machines

Refrigerators

Televisions

Microwave
Heaters Ovens

Machines
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Quality Management

At Waves Singer, standardized manufacturing processes and rigorous quality control management
procedures are followed to achieve consistency in product performance and enhance customer
satisfaction. Waves Singer Pakistan recognizes the importance of Quality Management System as an
integrated function; combined with Innovation, Research & Development and Information
Technology. The Company complies with the International Standard ISO 9001:2015 accredited by IAF
& UKAS. The Company has developed extensive In-house Quality Checks and Controls to assure
complete risk coverage from the Designing to the Customer usage. The controls encompass the
processes of Design & Development, Material Ordering & Receiving, Initial Material Inspection,
Manufacturing and Product Testing to End User.

Our Philosophy

Our Quality Management system is multidimensional, emphasizing more than just verification that
a finished product meets certain expectations. Our rigorous and focused QM system believes in
highly effective implementation of proven quality principles and techniques by controlling,
monitoring, and verifying any activity or process that could affect product conformance and aims for
virtually error free products.

Research and Development
The Company’s budget for research and development exceeds over marketing and other strategic
functions. We allocate a dedicated professional team of engineers continuously transform our
products according to the evolving lifestyles of our customers. Our in-house R&D Engineers also
work in conjunction with the local and international market agents to incorporate market feedback
in designing of a new product. Broadly, the R&D entails the use of the following:

= Sophisticated designing tools & software

= State of the art testing facilities

= Product development tools

Quality Control & Assurance
Our significant quality control measures include:
= Incoming Material Inspection
= |n-Process Inspection with state of the art equipment
O Halogen Leak detection
O Electrical Safety Testing
0 Performance Testing
O Bar coding for Product Traceability
= Qutgoing Quality Control
= Process Audit
= Laboratory Testing
= Staff Training & Development
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Form Fit Function and Setting the Standard
The standard global best practice to achieve seamless design clearance is our holistic approach.

= Form: The feel and the look of the design

= Fitment: The tolerances and the clearances of the tools in the overall design.

= Function: Intended use of the product according to its purpose and functionality.

= Standards specification development: After the successful completion of our new design, the
R & D specialists develop the specifications and standards documentation as a guide and a
testing tool to assist the quality inspection team deployed throughout the manufacturing
chain check compliance with the set standards of the design’s feel, look, form, tolerance,
clearance and most importantly, its functionality.

At Waves Singer, standardized manufacturing processes and rigorous quality control management
procedures are followed to achieve consistency in product performance and enhance customer
satisfaction.

Health, Safety & Environment Management

At Waves Singer, a dedicated Health, Safety and Environment management system is in place to
assure the well-being of employees, assets as well as stake-holders. WSPL continual Improvement
approach has resulted in a big milestone in achieving National Award in Safety, ISO 9001:2015 QMS
Certification.

The company is aiming to achieve operational Excellence to streamline its operations & processes as
per International best Industrial Practices.

DURABLE
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Spreading Happiness
Since 1971



Geographical Presence/Distribution Network

Waves Singer ‘Nationwide Network

Zone Dealers Warehouse Service Centre Total
South 525 6 44 575

North 1,052 10 145 1,207
Total 1,577 16 189 1,782
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Key Financial Performance

/ Gross Sales

2020: Rs. 10,230 Mn

2019: Rs. 11,660 Mn

Operating Profit
2020: Rs. 886 Mn

2019: Rs. 1,298 Mn

Net Profit
2020: Rs. 127 Mn

2019: Rs. 378 Mn

/ Gross Profits

2020: Rs. 1,844 Mn

2019: Rs. 2,629 Mn

Net Finance Cost
2020: Rs. 617 Mn

2019: Rs. 677 Mn

Non-Current Assets
2020: Rs. 8,549 Mn

2019: Rs. 8,694 Mn

/
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Key Highlights
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TOTAL LIABILITIES TO EQUITY
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CURRENT RATIO
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Rs. In 000 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Net Sales 8,525,481 9,483,974 8,516,016 3,685623 1,399,606 1,487,934 1,414,903 1,847,807
Gross Profit 1,844,377 2,629,372 2,277,906 1,097,284 489,289 298,573 142,041 188,322
Profit After Tax 127,468 378,300 382,075 312,132 95,122 150,766  -285,719 36,259
Shareholder's Equity + Surplus 8,460,424 8,339,999 8,389,125 8,166,642 1,404,404 1,016,925 909,217 912,317
Current Assets 9,318,211 8,483,013 6,958,685 5,516,459 1,917,541 1,783,205 2,035,523 2,383,136
Fixed Assets 8549217 8,693,203 7,753,985 7,686,631 2,015,791 1,359,453 1,088,998 711,424
Total Assets 17,867,428 17,176,216 14,712,670 13,203,090 3,933,332 3,142,658 3,124,521 3,094,560
Current Liability 6,778,440 6,644,328 5,196,532 4,116,560 1,719,347 1,836,344 1,944,960 1,905,696
Fixed Liability 2,628,564 2,191,889 1,127,013 919,888 809,581 289,389 270,344 276,547
Total Liability 9,407,004 8,836,217 6,323,545 5,036,448 2,528,928 2,125,733 2,215,304 2,182,243
Paid Up Capital (Nos.) 1,876,041 1,876,041 1,631,340 1,418,556 454,056 454,056 454,056 454,056
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Analysis of Financial Position and Performance

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Equity

Shareholders equity has increased during the last few years due to merger of Cool Industries with
Singer Pakistan and also due to issuance of Bonus Shares. During FY 20 there has been no
significant change from last year.

Non-Current Liabilities

Total non-current liabilities comprising of long term debt, deferred taxation and deferred income
has increased during FY 19. During the year company obtained SBP Payroll/Wages Refinance
Facility amounting to Rs. 379 Million due to which long term finances obtained have increased.

Current Liabilities

Current liabilities of the Company, over the last year have almost remained the same. Company
has been trying to optimize the Short Term Borrowings to sustain increased business
requirements of the business.

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Non-current assets of the Company including property, plant and equipment, Right to use assets
under IFRS 16, intangible assets, long term investments and other long-term assets. During the
year, the Company has invested Rs. 380 Mn in PPE.

Current Assets

Current assets include inventories, trade debts short term advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables, short term investments, current tax assets and cash and bank balances. With
an aggregate balance of Rs. 9,318 million at the close of 2020, the current assets recorded an
increase by 9% mainly on account of increase in trade debts.
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PROFIT AND LOSS

Revenue and Cost of Sales

Sales revenue decrease by 10% over the last year mainly due to the nationwide lockdown imposed by GoP
due to Covid-19 pandemic. Due to exchange rate devaluation and increase in raw material prices Gross Profit
Margin has decreased from 28% (FY2019) to 22% (FY2020). Company expects to improve its margin in the
coming year due to strengthening of Rupee, careful cost rationalization, continuous research and
development activities and systematic price increases.

Operating Costs

The management has kept a control on administrative and selling expenses which collectively decreased by
4% despite higher inflation rates during the year under review. The company continued to focus on internal
cost saving and operational efficiency across the organization to mitigate the inflationary impact.

RATIO ANALYSIS

Profitability Ratios

The gross profit for the year has been reported at 22% of net sales. Net profit margin for the year has been
reported at 1.5%.

Operating Performance / Liquidity

Current ratio for 2020 has been recorded at 1.37 times against 1.27 times for the year 2019 which reflects
robust and sustainable liquidity position of the company.

Activity / Turnover Ratios

Inventories and Receivable turnover days are 180 days and 109 days. Total asset turnover ratio recorded
slight decrease at 0.49 times in year 2020 against 0.59 times for the year 2019.

Investment / Market Ratios

The Company's earnings per share - EPS for the year 2020 is Rs. 0.68 per share as compared to EPS of 2.02
for 2019.

Capital Structure Ratios

A debt to asset ratio of 1 would mean that investors and creditors have an equal stake in the business assets.
At the end of FY 2020, the ratio stood at 0.41 times in comparison to 0.39 times for the year 2019 reflecting
strong long term solvency position of the company.
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Ratio Analysis

Current Ratio 1.37 1.28 1.34 1.34 1.12 0.97 1.05 1.25 1.32
Quick/Acid Test Ratio 094 0.73 0.74 0.71 0.82 0.81 0.83 0.92 0.90
Cash to Current Liabilities 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.07 0.09 0.04 0.04 0.07 0.08
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.83 0.80 0.50 0.43 1.27 1.46 1.69 1.66 1.66
Debt to Asset Ratio 0.41 0.39 0.28 0.27 0.45 0.47 0.49 0.49 0.49
Equity to Asset Ratio 0.47 0.49 0.57 0.62 0.36 0.32 0.29 0.29 0.30
Gross Profit Margin 21.6% 27.7% 26.7% 29.7% 34.9% 20.0% 10.0% 10.1% 10.9%
Net Profit Margin 1.50% 3.9% 4.4% 8.5% 6.8% -10.1% -20.2% 1.9% 2.2%
EBIT Margin 10.3% 13.6% 9.2% 14.9% 11.0% -17.4% -32.5% -73% -5.7%
Return on Assets 0.71% 2.20% 2.60% 2.36% 2.42% -4.80% -9.14% 1.17% 1.45%
Return on Equity 1.51% 4.54% 4.55% 3.82% 6.77% -14.83% -31.42% 3.97% 4.84%
Total Assets Turnover Ratio 049 0.59 0.61 0.43 0.40 0.47 0.46 0.62 0.67
Fixed Assets Turnover Ratio 0.99 1.15 1.10 0.76 0.83 1.22 1.57 2.63 2.81
Inventory Turnover Ratio 2.02 2.03 2.19 1.67 2.28 331 2.40 2.47 2.44
No. of Days in Inventory 180.74 179.59 166.29 218.67 160.43 110.38 15191 147.58 149.53
Debtor Turnover Ratio 335 3.79 3.15 2.29 1.25 1.19 1.04 1.44 1.67
No. of Days in Debtor 109.00 96.29 115.79 159.45 292.85 306.68 350.06 252.73 218.03
Market Ratios 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Earning Per Share 0.68 2.02 2.34 191 2.09 -3.32 -6.29 0.80 0.93
Price To Earning Ratio 4149 1219 1149 1937 25.27 -8.55 -4.08 30.05 20.97
Book Value Per Share 4510 4446 51.42 50.06 30.93 22.40 20.02 20.09 21.04
Dupont Analysis 2020 2019 pLokk:] 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Tax Burden 473% 609% 748% 93.0% 76.5% 78.6% 70.3% 65.7%  69.8%
Interest Burden 304% 47.9% 65.2% 60.7% 80.3% 73.8% 88.3% -40.9% -53.6%
EBIT Margin 10.4% 13.7% 9.2% 15.0% 11.1%  -17.5% -32.5% -7.3% -5.8%
Assets Turnover 0.49 0.59 0.61 0.43 0.40 0.47 0.46 0.62 0.67
FL Ratio 207.1% 191.2% 166.4% 104.9% 251.9% 308.1% 342.0% 329.1% 335.1%
Return on Equity (ROE) 151% 4.54% 4.55% 3.82% 6.77% -14.83% -31.42% 3.97% 4.84%
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Horizontal Analysis- Balance Sheet

Horizontal Analysis BS % 2020 2019
EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued, Subscribe and Paid-Up Capital 0.0% 15.0% | 259.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 10.0%
Share to be Issued Pursuant to Amalgamation 0.0% 0.0% | -100.0% | 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Share Premium Reserve 0.0% -5.1% -4.2% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Capital Reserve 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Revenue Reserve 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Surplus on Revaluation of PPE -6.7% 208.8% -0.6% -89.2% 33.7% 43.7% 92.2% 1.8%
Un-appropriate profit / Loss 9.6% -16.3% | 14.1% | -1154.1% | -60.3% | 59.5% | -712.5% | -6.8%
TOTAL EQUITIES 1.4% -0.6% 2.7% 481.5% 38.1% 11.8% -0.3% 5.0%
LAIBILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long Term Loans-Secured 41.6% 93.5% | 28.9% 7.6% 1026.7% | -42.7% 11.0% -49.4%
Liabilities Against Assets Subject to Finance Lease | -39.3% | 930.9% | 11.0% 249.5% -36.9% | 101.2% | -42.0% 1.7%
Long Term Deposits 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -100.0%
Employee Retirement Benefits-Obligation -6.3% | -33.3% | 13.4% 5.6% 8.0% 139.8% | 2.8% 17.6%
Deferred Taxation-Net 6.0% 3.7% | 9.8% 13.7% 25.1% 8.3% -4.9% 9.8%
Deferred Income 34.0% -23.0% | 59.4% 441.8% -44.4% | 100.0% | -100.0% | -66.7%
Total Non-Current Liabilities 19.9% 94.5% 22.5% 13.6% 179.8% 7.0% -2.2% -24.9%
CURRENT LAIBILITIES

Trade and Other Payables -9.6% 4.2% 50% 151% 15% -18% 3% 22%
Accrued Interest/Mark-Up -17.6% | 122.5% 32% 84% 20% -28% 11% -12%
Short Term Running Finances-Secured -3.9% 37.3% 9% 133% -11% 1% 1% 13%
Unclaimed Dividend 0.0% -100.0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Unpaid Dividend -12.4% -3.9% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Current Portion of Non-Current Liabilities 28.9% 43.9% 284% 333% -69% -31% 3% 4%
Current Portion of Finance Lease 0.0% 0.0% -100% 167% -20% 20% 4% -29%
Current Portion of Deferred Income 0.0% 0.0% -100% 62% 0% 303% -50% 0%
Total current liabilities 2% 28% 26% 139% -6% -6% 2% 14%
TOTAL LAIBILITIES 6.5% 39.7% 26% 99% 19% -4% 2% 7%
TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 4% 17% 11% 236% 25% 1% 1% 6%
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Horizontal Analysis- Balance Sheet

Horizontal Analysis BS % 2020 2019

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment -2.3% 20.0% 1.6% 182.4% 26.5% 26.9% 60.7% -1.5%
Intangible Assets -1.0% -0.7% -0.4% | 13229.4% | -14.3% | -12.6% | -11.2% | 1816.5%
Employee Retirement Benefits-Prepayments -100.0% | -66.0% | 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% | -100.0% | -60.6%
Long term Investment (Property) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Trade debts 100.0% | 100.0%

Long Term Deposits -21.0% 11.6% -13.0% 46.7% -20.8% | -12.8% | -16.1% 4.6%
Total Non-Current Assets -1.7% 12.1% 0.9% 281.3% 48.3% 24.8% 53.1% 2.5%
CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, Spares and Loose Tools -10.5% 21.5% 35.4% 348.3% -53.0% | 64.6% 8.0% -15.7%
Stock In Trade -18.9% 18.2% 19.3% 409.3% 74.8% | -32.0% | -32.2% | -11.2%
Trade Debts 38.6% 30.8% 50.5% 102.8% -10.1% | -10.3% | -5.6% 20.1%
Short term Advances, Deposit & Others -27.3% -2.8% 40.1% 225.1% 17.3% 5.4% -38.0% -35.3%
Taxation-Net -20.5% | -29.4% -3.3% 120.2% -0.8% 27.4% 9.6% 36.8%
Investments 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -100.0% | -30.1% | -11.1% 28.7%
Cash and Bank Balances -12.5% 55.4% -63.9% 94.3% 96.9% -5.3% | -40.5% -4.7%
Total Current Assets 9.8% 21.9% 26.1% 187.7% 7.5% -12.4% -14.6% 7.5%
TOTAL ASSETS 4.0% 16.7% 11.4% 235.7% 25.2% 0.6% 1.0% 6.3%
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Horizontal Analysis- Profit/Loss Account

Horizontal Analysis PL %

Gross Sales -12.3% 13.5% 115.2%  197.2% -4.9% -6.1% -21.6% -4.1%
Sales Tax & Trade Discount -21.7% 242%  61.2%  426.6% 26% -47.6% -13.9% 0.4%
Net sales -10.1% 11.4% 131.1% 163.3% -5.9% 5.2% -23.4% -5.1%
Cost of Sales -2.5% 9.9% 141.0% 184.3% -23.5% -6.6% -233% -4.3%
Gross Profit -29.9% 15.4% 107.6% 124.3% 63.9% 110.2% -24.6% -11.2%
Marketing, Selling and Distribution Cost -0.8% -11.3% | 43.6% 67.0% -13% | 42.0% 22.0% | -4.7%
Administrative and General Expenses -3.0% 25.8% 92.4% 188.7% -1.3% 17.2% 7.7% | 14.7%
Other Expenses -49.9% -21.6% -8.4% | 823.9% -79.6% | -74.7% | 809.2% | 47.3%
Other Income 196.2% [ 321.0% | -92.5% | 173.4% | 1105.6% -7.4% 20.1% | 47.9%
Total Operating Expenses -28.0% -10.9% 174.3% 62.9% -40.1% -7.3% 86.3% -0.4%
Operating Profit -31.8% 65.8% 41.8%  256.8% -159.6% -43.5% 241.1% 20.0%
Earned Carrying Cost 37.6% 21.2% 98.7% -28.7% -50.8% | -10.7% -32.4% -2.7%
Finance Cost 1.4% | 101.6% | 45.3% | 108.9% -10.4% | -20.7% 8.2% | -13.2%

-8.9% 148.1% 25.8% 612.5% -144.7% 26.7% -71.8% 10.1%
Profit Before Taxation -56.7% 21.8% 52.2% 169.8% -164.8% -52.8% -836.5% -8.5%
Taxation -41.7% 89.4% 449.3% -20.1% -171.2% -66.0% -737.9% 4.0%
Profit After Taxation -66.3% -1.0% 22.4%  228.1% -163.1% -47.2% -888.0% -13.8%
Other Comprehensive Income -102.8% 1560.4% -83.1% 4589.9% -116.5% 483.8% 100.0% 0.0%
Total Comprehensive Income -80.9% 58.7% -1.2%  314.5% -159.7% -43.5% -893.5% -13.8%
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Vertical Analysis- Balance Sheet

Vertical Analysis % 2020

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued, Subscribe and Paid-Up Capital 10.5% 10.9% 11.1% 3.4% 11.5% 14.4% 14.5% 14.7%
Share to be Issued Pursuant to Amalgamation 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 7.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Share Premium Reserve 25.6% 26.7% 32.8% 38.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Capital Reserve 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2%
Revenue Reserve 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 3.7% 3.8% 3.8%
Surplus on Revaluation of PPE 1.9% 2.1% 0.8% 0.9% 27.9% 26.1% 18.2% 9.6%
Un-appropriate profit / Loss 9.3% 8.8% 12.3% 12.0% -3.8% | -12.1% -7.6% 1.3%
TOTAL EQUITIES 47.4% 48.6% 57.0% 61.9% 35.7% 32.4% 29.1%  29.5%
LAIBILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long Term Loans-Secured 11.2% 8.3% 5.0% 4.3% 13.4% 1.5% 2.6% 2.4%
Liabilities Against Assets Subject to Finance Lease 1.5% 2.5% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.6% 0.3% 0.5%
Long Term Deposits 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Employee Retirement Benefits-Obligation 0.2% 0.2% 0.4% 0.4% 1.3% 1.5% 0.6% 0.6%
Deferred Taxation-Net 1.7% 1.6% 1.8% 1.9% 5.5% 5.5% 5.1% 5.4%
Deferred Income 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0%
Total Non-Current Liabilities 14.7% 12.8% 7.7% 7.0% 20.6% 9.2% 8.7% 8.9%
CURRENT LAIBILITIES

Trade and Other Payables 9.4% 10.9% 12% 9% 12% 13% 16% 16%
Accrued Interest/Mark-Up 1.0% 1.3% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Short-Term Running Finances 22.1% 23.9% 20% 21% 30% 42% 42% 42%
Unclaimed Dividend 0.0% 0.0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Unpaid Dividend 0.0% 0.0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Current Portion of Non-Current Liabilities 3.2% 2.6% 2% 1% 0% 2% 3% 3%
Current Portion of Finance Lease 0.0% 0.0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Current Portion of Deferred Income 0.0% 0.0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total current liabilities 38% 39% 35% 31% 44% 58% 62% 62%
TOTAL LAIBILITIES 53% 51% 43% 38% 64% 68% 71% 71%
TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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Vertical Analysis- Balance Sheet

Vertical Analysis % 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment 31.2% 33.2% 32.3% 35.5% 42.1% 41.7% 33.0% 20.8%
Intangible Assets 16.3% 17.2% 20.2% 22.6% 0.6% 0.8% 1.0% 1.1%
Employee Retirement Benefits-Prepayments 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.1%
Long term Investment (Property) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 8.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Trade debts 0.2% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Long Term Deposits 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.5% 0.7% 0.9% 1.0%
Total Non-Current Assets 47.8% 50.6% 52.7% 58.2% 51.2% 43.3% 34.9% 23.0%
CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, Spares and Loose Tools 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 0.1% 0.3% 0.2% 0.2%
Stock In Trade 16.6% 21.3% 21.0% 19.6% 12.9% 9.3% 13.7% | 20.4%
Trade Debts 32.9% 24.7% 22.1% 16.3% 27.0% 37.6% 42.2% | 45.1%
Short term Advances, Deposit & Others 0.6% 0.8% 1.0% 0.8% 0.8% 0.9% 0.9% 1.4%
Taxation-Net 1.1% 1.4% 2.3% 2.6% 4.0% 5.0% 4.0% 3.7%
Investments 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.1% 1.6% 1.9%
Cash and Bank Balances 0.8% 1.0% 0.7% 2.2% 3.8% 2.4% 2.6% 4.4%
Total Current Assets 52.2% 49.4% 47.3% 41.8% 48.8% 56.7% 65.1% 77.0%
TOTAL ASSETS 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

WAVES SINGER ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Vertical Analysis- Profit/Loss Account

Vertical Analysis % 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Gross Sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Sales Tax & Trade Discount -16.7%  -18.7% -17.1% -22.8% -12.9% -11.9% -21.3% -19.4%
Net sales 83.3% 813% 829% 77.2% 87.1% 88.1% 78.7%  80.6%
Cost of Sales -65.3% -58.8% -60.7% -54.2% -56.7% -70.4% -70.8% -72.4%
Gross Profit 18.0% 22.5% 22.2% 23.0% 30.5% 17.7% 7.9% 8.2%
Marketing, Selling and Distribution Cost -9.0% -8.0% | -10.2% | -15.3% | -27.1% | -26.1% | -17.3% | -11.1%
Administrative and General Expenses -4.5% -4.1% -3.7% -4.1% -4.2% -4.1% -3.3% -2.4%
Other Expenses -0.4% -0.7% -1.1% -2.5% -0.8% -3.7% | -13.8% -1.2%
Other Income 4.6% 1.3% 0.4% 10.4% 11.3% 0.9% 0.9% 0.6%
Total Operating Expenses 94% -11.4% -14.6% -11.4% -20.8% -33.1% -33.5% -14.1%
Operating Profit 87% 11.1% 7.6% 11.6% 9.6% -15.4% -25.6% -5.9%
Earned Carrying Cost 2.6% 1.6% 1.5% 1.7% 6.9% 13.4% 14.1% 16.3%
Finance Cost -8.6% -7.4% -4.2% -6.2% -8.8% -9.4% | -11.1% -8.0%

-6.0% -5.8% -2.7% -4.5% -1.9% 4.0% 3.0% 8.3%
Profit Before Taxation 2.6% 5.3% 5.0% 7.0% 7.7% -11.4% -22.6% 2.4%
Taxation -1.4% -2.1% -1.3% -0.5% -1.8% 2.4% 6.7% -0.8%
Profit After Taxation 1.2% 3.2% 3.7% 6.5% 5.9% -8.9% -15.9% 1.6%
Other Comprehensive Income -0.1% 2.2% 0.1% 1.9% 0.1% -0.7% -0.1% 0.0%
Total Comprehensive Income 1.2% 5.4% 3.9% 8.4% 6.0% -9.6% -16.0% 1.6%
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited, we are obliged to submit the
Directors’ report and audited financial statements of your Company for the year ended December 31,
2020, together with the auditors’ report thereon. Financial highlights are presented as hereunder:

FY20 FY19
OPERATING RESULTS Rs. in ‘000 Rs. in ‘000
Gross Sales 10,230,068 11,660,266
Gross Profit 1,844,377 2,629,372
Admin, Marketing, selling and distribution Expenses (1,381,499) (1,403,016)
Other Expenses (42,671) (85,248)
Operating Profit 420,407 1,141,108
Finance Costs (net) (616,832) (676,794)
Other Income 465,831 157,295
Profit for the year before taxation 269,206 621,609
Taxation (141,738) (243,309)
Profit after taxation 127,468 378,300
Earnings Per Share 0.68 2.02

Business Overview
Company’s Principle Activities

WSPL is a company listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is predominantly involved in
manufacturing, assembling, and distributing a variety of home appliances and other light engineering
products. WSPL has a vast range of product lines which are sold under two well-known brands, Waves
and Singer through dealer networks spread all over Pakistan and also via retail outlets owned and
operated by the Company. The Company’s product line includes:
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Deep Freezers
Visi Coolers
Refrigerators
Air Conditioners

Deep Freezers
Refrigerators

Air Conditioners
Washing Machines
Washing Machines
Microwaves
Water Dispensers

Microwaves
Water Dispensers
Sewing Machines
Water Heaters
Instant Geysers
Cooking Ranges

Waves Brand
Singer Brand

WSPL is operating a nationwide set-up of 15 warehouses in cities such as Karachi, Lahore, Gujranwala,
Peshawar, Multan, etc., a network of around 1,500 + dealers, approx. 16 after-sales service centers and 509
service workshops spread nationwide. The Company’s sales infrastructure is comparable to any other leading
Home Appliance Company operating within Pakistan.

Operating Performance Analysis

The macroeconomic stability of the country during FY 20 was challenged by the COVID-19 pandemic. A
nationwide lockdown for almost 2 months was imposed starting from 24th March 2020 — 9th May 2020 after
which it was systematically lifted in phases. As a result of which the company along with its factory and
operations were completely closed during the lockdown time period. Business and economic conditions
during 1t Half FY 2020 was also very challenging due to increase in input costs as a result of sharp Exchange
Rate depreciation, rise in petroleum products prices, and sustained inflation.

However, after lifting of the lockdown, during 2"¢ Half FY2020, the Company experienced significant increase
in sales compared the corresponding period last year (2nd Half FY 2020 Gross Sales 5,452 million: 2nd Half
FY19 Gross Sales 4,508 million- increase of 21%) because of clearance of the backlog generated during the
lockdown coupled with extended summer season. Fiscal and Monetary initiatives undertaken by GoP to
combat Covid-19 also proved beneficial and economy started to witness a turnaround.

As a result of this the company was able to generate Sales Revenue of Rs. 10,230 million, Gross profit of Rs.
1,844 million, Operating profit of Rs. 420 million and Profit before tax amounting to Rs. 269 million for FY
2020. The company continued to focus on internal cost savings, operational excellence, efficient utilization
of resources, and effective material planning management to mitigate the inflationary impact. The
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management has kept control on directly variable cost and administrative and selling expenses which
collectively decreased despite higher inflation rates during the year under review.

There has been a strong focus on monitoring cash flow, working capital, supply chain management, process
reengineering, and effective utilization of resources by the company.

Economic Analysis

The macro-economic conditions have been challenging since 2019 due to sustained inflation, exchange rate
devaluation and twin account deficits etc. In order to control the same, various policy initiatives were
undertaken by the Government during 2020 through its policy of adjustments and structural reforms as a
result of which economic situation started to improve.

However, as the economy was transitioning from stabilization to growth, the outbreak of Coronavirus
(COVID-19) during the second half of current fiscal year brought multifaceted challenges for Pakistan. It
resulted in nationwide closures of markets, offices and factories, decline in domestic as well as global
demand, downturn in tourism and business travel, Trade and production linkages and supply chain
disruptions etc.

In order to combat the adverse impact of Covid-19, GoP undertook various structural reforms and
announced Rs 1.24 trillion relief package. In addition, SBP introduced number of measures including reducing
the policy rate from 13% to 7% and some concessional refinance schemes to address both the demand and
supply side conditions for businesses such as Temporary Economic Refinance Facility and Refinance Scheme
for Payment of Wages and Salaries to the Workers and Employees of Business Concerns. These measures
facilitated the businesses to remain afloat during the challenging times.

These stabilization efforts paid off in terms of sustained adjustment in current account deficit. For the first
time in many years, the current account deficit posted a surplus. In addition stable exchange rate, healthy
growth in FDI (126.8 percent), improved ranking in World Bank’s ease of doing business index, and ‘Stable”
credit outlook to B3 from ‘Negative’ B (-B) Moody’s, stabilized the economy and is Inshallah laying a
foundation for robust growth in the coming years.

The inflation clocked in at 10.7% for
FY20 as compared to 6.8% in the

Inflation rate

_ o7 25.00%

preceding year. The uptick in the 20.00%

average inflation rate is attributed to ’ K

. . . 15.00%

inflationary pressures resulting from

local currency depreciation against 10-00%
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disruption due to Covid-19.
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On the external front, the Current
Account Deficit (CAD) improved B
massively to clock in at USD 3.0 |
billion against the deficit of USD = | s
13.4 in FY19. As a result, the CAD |I
balance fell to its 5-year low. vl i W L I8
Similarly, the CAD as a % of GDP
clocked in at 1.1% in FY20 against —— : -
4.8% posted in FY19. The major e, — LS (
reasons for the decline in CAD are b L (i —
the contraction of the trade balance ' :
and high remittances. The trade
deficit balance declined by 30.2%
YoY as the devaluation of PKR against the greenback encouraged investors toward import substitution within
the country. Further, the country witnessed record high remittance inflows where it clocked in at USD 23.1
billion in FY20 compared to USD 21.7 billion in the same period last year.

Hiog 1005 e it 220

Industry Overview

The challenging socio-economic conditions during the past few years are expected to ease off by 2021.
Pakistan’s economy has performed well despite Covid-19 situation. As per Moody’s research the Pakistan’s
economy is expected to grow by an average of 4% p.a over the next 5 years. This steady economic growth
should continue to provide consumers with higher disposable income and benefit those seeking to upgrade
their lifestyles.

A robust and growing middle class with growing disposable incomes has been instrumental in driving demand
of various consumer electronic devices. Price pressures due to high inflation, fuel costs, a weakening rupee
and rising input prices will remain major concerns for manufacturers.

Low household penetration (well below world average) of appliances in Pakistan will provide opportunities
for companies to expand their reach. Expansion of modern retail and exclusive company outlets across
regions is expected to increase the penetration of Home Appliances. Appliances are expected to post strong
growth even in non-metro cities (tier two & three cities & rural areas).

Other factors fuelling double digit growth of consumer appliances are rise in double-income nuclear families,
easy availability of credit, changing lifestyles, introduction of new models, and increasing consumer
awareness. Rapidly shrinking replacement cycle for consumer durables is also expected to continue and
therefore fuel demand for consumer electronics.
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Ministry of Finance contribution to facilitate home appliance industry:

Timely actions were also undertaken by the government to facilitate home appliance industry by reducing
custom duties on high value imported raw materials. Ministry of Finance reduced the custom duty slabs
spread over fifteen years via continuous reduction of custom duties starting from day first of the year 2020.
This includes imported raw materials like PP Copolymer, SS Sheet, Copper Tube, Fan Blade & Power Manager
etc. By S.R.0.572(1)/2020 dated 30 June 2020, the Ministry of Finance further facilitated the home appliance
industry by reducing levied additional custom duty slabs on specific imported items.

Company’s Future Outlook/Forward Looking Statements

Our primary objective is to provide high-quality and effective home appliance products. We remain
committed to enhancing shareholder value while balancing profitability and investments into projects of
long-term significance.

The economic recovery on the back of pent-up demand after easing in lockdown has exceeded expectations.
There has been a stark improvement in the external sector where the country managed to post a Current
Account surplus of USD 1.1 billion during 2" Half FY2020 against the deficit balance of USD 2.0 billion in the
corresponding period last year. The fruit of accommodative monetary policy stance has begun to offer its
benefits. The large-scale manufacturing has increased by 8.16% during Half FY2020 as compared to the
corresponding period last year. The uplift in economic activities in all the major sectors is started to surface
and is expected to continue in the foreseeable future.

The company has received order confirmation from Coca-Cola Corporation for supply of Coca-Cola branded
Deep Freezers and Visi Coolers worth Rs. 975 million during FY 21. The order has been awarded to WSPL after
approval of the Waves Factory consequent to detailed third party supplier audits wherein the Company has
been awarded green (best) status. Traditionally, about a little less than Rs1 billion of the Company’s topline
came from the corporate segment which we expect will increase to over Rs 2 billion during FY21 as approval
of the factory has enabled the company to secure additional orders from other corporate clients.

Company’s existing factory at Multan Road in Lahore is situated in a thickly populated and relatively
expensive area and space is also not enough to cater for future growth requirements of the company. Due
to this, the management started exploring options to relocate it outside the city for which a larger piece of
land has been purchased. An international firm was hired for this purpose to figure out the best use for the
current premises and they have recommended to develop a real estate apartment project keeping in mind
the prime location and the government’s support for construction activity.

The company has announced a Right Issue of Rs. 1.4 Billion which will be utilized to finance the said relocation
along with injection of permanent working capital to support higher business requirements going forward.
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Risks, Uncertainties and Mitigations

Your Company recognizes that risk is an integral part of business and is committed to managing the risks
proactively and efficiently. Your Company periodically assesses risks, in the internal and external environment
and incorporates risk mitigation plans in its strategy and business/operational plans. Every risk is carefully
looked into, as in some of the cases post-analysis it may lead to a new business opportunity.

Your Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place. The risk management framework
works at various levels from top to bottom across the enterprise. These levels form the strategic defense
cover of the Company’s risk management. Your Company’s Risk Management Committee monitors and

reviews the risk mitigation plan.

Key Business Risks

Mitigants

Operational excellence — These are risks
associated with internal factors,
administrative and operational procedures
like employee turnover, supply chain
disruption, IT system shutdowns or control
failures.

Your Company has initiated vendor rationalization,
emphasis on in-house manufacturing and
scorecard evaluation of vendors has been put in
place.

Your Company has put in place a quality and
process improvement program across the
Company, including strategic vendors, during the
year with progress being tracked at regular
Management reviews.

Branding/Innovation Risk — Risk that applies
to innovative areas of your business such as
product research and to cope up with latest
market trends and product innovation.

Your Company has put in place a centralized
marketing structure during the vyear, thereby
strengthening its consumer insight process and
filling up competency gaps in the concerned
function.

Company’s research
department has been strengthened and is
continuously looking into and implementing
product innovation strategies.

and development

Organization Excellence — Ability to attract
and retain the right talent may lead to your
Company’s inability to achieve organization’s
goals.

Your Company has put in place Succession
Planning framework mapping career development
and progression opportunities for suitable
employees and thereby ensuring talent retention

Liquidity Risk- is the risk that the Company
will encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Due to dynamic nature of the business, the
Company maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining committed credit lines available. The
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Company's liquidity management involves
projecting cash flows and considering the level of
liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring
statement of financial position liquidity ratios
against internal and external regulatory
requirements and maintaining debt financing plans

Credit Risk- Credit risk represents the risk of a
loss if the counterparties fail to perform as
contracted.

The risk is mitigated by applying individual credit
limits and by securing the majority of trade debts
against bank guarantees and inland letter of credit.
The credit risk arising on account of acceptance of
these bank guarantees is managed by ensuring
that the bank guarantees are issued by banks of
reasonably high credit ratings as approved by the
Board of Directors.

Price Risk- with new entrants in the market,
there is a likelihood of price competition
which might squeeze margins.

The Company is constantly sourcing competitive
suppliers, improving its technology, efficiency and
productivity. Also, since WSPL has in-house
capability to develop products with fast
turnaround time, that by itself obviates
possibilities of competition affecting WSPL.

Competitive Risk- Increasing entrants making
their way into the plastic industry.

WSPL'’s diversified product line and unique dealer
plus retail sale structure and technical expertise
makes it adequately prepared to face these
challenges.

Regulatory Risk- Imposition/enhancement of
duties, taxes, levies and other conditions may
adversely affect the operations.

New levies go across the board, so we stay
competitive

Environment, Health & Safety (EHS)

We are committed to achieve excellence in health, safety, and the environment across our business. We
prioritize the safety of our employees and work hard to provide a positive environment, good health, and
safety culture, particularly at our manufacturing facilities while vigilantly fulfilling our environmental duties
and responsibilities. Our company gives importance to the occupational safety and health of our workers.
We maintain a safe working environment and takes responsibility for the health and wellbeing of our staff
and stakeholders. The company actively trains all employees to ensure their safety at both the workplace and
beyond. Besides, our manufacturing, distribution, and retail operations have developed SOPs that seek to

reduce the risk of accidents.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

We believe in collective effort and therefore, have created a strong organizational culture that extends
benefits to all employees and stakeholders. We embrace social responsibility as one of our core values and it
is shared by every member of the group.

Sustainable and responsible development is not only binding by local laws on corporate entities, but it is more
about moral obligation which needs to be followed and practiced with the best spirit. We strongly believe
that improving its environmental and social performance is inevitable for its financial success. The Company
always emphasizes a culture of excellence, good governance, transparency, integrity, and accountability.

WSPL has been consistently running the following diverse CSR initiatives each fulfilling in achieving our goals
towards our CSR vision.

Sewing/Stitching Classes

Globally and locally, Singer sewing machines have been assisting in honing stitching and sewing talent to its
customers for decades. Tailoring is a vital source of income for many households in Pakistan. Through regular
stitching classes, Waves Singer Pakistan aims to provide earning prospects to low-income women to
overcome their financial dependence. As a result, thousands of females have not only benefitted but have
also achieved successful placements in various apparel companies across Pakistan.

Investment in Human Capital

At Waves Singer Pakistan, we believe in attracting the best talent in the marketplace and giving them the
skills and opportunities they need to become high-achievers.

Human Assets

The Company treats its people as its most important asset. We are always on the lookout to recruit, train and
promote the best human resource talent available. Besides attractive remuneration packages, our corporate
culture is designed to boost employee performance. Our succession planning framework proactively guides
our recruitment and promotion activities.

Learning & Organizational Development
Our workforce regularly undergoes training in their respective functional areas. The Singer Retail Academy is
instrumental in taking the employees through a comprehensive workforce training calendar. We also conduct

workshops to make our employees aware of new developments in the field to remain abreast of the changing
market landscape.
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Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The internal control framework has been effectively implemented through an in-house Internal Audit
function established by the Board which is independent of the External Audit function. The Company’s system
of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for effectiveness and adequacy. The
Audit Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance, risk management, financial
reporting and control objectives, safeguarding of the assets of the Company, and the shareholders’ wealth at
all levels within the Company. The Internal Audit function has carried out its duties under the charter defined
by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed material Internal Audit findings, taking
appropriate action or bringing the matters to the Board’s attention where required. Coordination between
the External and Internal Auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and contribution to the Company’s
objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and compliance with laws and regulations.

Adherence to the Best Practices of Corporate Governance

Our Code of Conduct lists Ethics as one of our core values, therefore Waves Singer Pakistan Limited has a
zero-tolerance policy towards any form of discrimination and harassment. Similarly, honesty and open
communication is also expected on the reporting front, we care how we get results.

We believe it is essential for everyone associated with Waves Singer Pakistan Limited to embrace this culture
and live by the highest standards of integrity and accountability. The board of directors adopted the Code of
Conduct for Directors and employees and the same has been circulated to board members and employees in
terms of requirement of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. The code
of conduct is also placed on the Company’s website.

Directors’ Statement
As required by the Code, we, the Directors of the Company, are pleased to state that:

a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equity;

b) Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company;

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements;

d) The accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

e) International Accounting Standards (IAS) and IFRS, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
the preparation of financial statements;

f) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

g) There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern; and

h) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed
in the listing regulations.
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Statement of Compliance

The Company adheres to the best practices of governance. The Company has issued a “Statement of
Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance” as stipulated in listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations 2019, which has also been reviewed and certified by the Auditors of the Company

Meetings and Activities during the Financial Year

Meetings of Board of Directors

During the year under review, six (6) meetings of the Board of Directors were held, which were presided over
by the Chairman. The Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary also attended the meetings required by
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. Attendance by each director was

as follows:

Board of Directors

Name of the Member

Meetings Held

Meetings Attended

Mr. Umair Khan

Mr. Muhammad Adnan Afaq

Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan

Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan

Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan

Brig. Mukhtar Ahmed (Retd.)

Mr. Nadeem Mehmood Butt

Mr. Zafar Ud Din Mehmood

Mr. Yousuf Muhammad Farooq

Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain

WANWINOOOODOOD(WIN

WUINWINOOILNO(WIN
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Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board has been in existence since the enforcement of the Code of Corporate
Governance. It comprises of four (4) members. The Chairman is an Independent Director. Other members
include one (1) Executive Director and two (2) Non-Executive Directors. Four (4) meetings of the Audit
Committee were held during the year. Attendance of each Member is given hereunder:—

Name of the Member Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Mr. Zafar Ud Din Mehmood- Chairman 1 1
Mr. Umair Khan- Member 1 1
Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan- Member 4 4
Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain- Chairman 2 2
Mr. Moaazam Ahmad Khan — Member 4 4
Mr. Nadeem Mehmood Butt — Member 3 3

The Audit Committee has adopted its terms of reference as provided in the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee comprises of Five (5) members, One (1) member of the
Committee is Non-Executive Director. Two (2) members are independent Directors including the Chairman
and there are two (2) Executive Directors. One meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee was held during the year. Attendance of each Member is given hereunder —

Name of the Member Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Mr. Yausuf Muhammad Farooq 1 1
Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan 1 1
Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan 1 1
Mr. Nadeem Mehmood Butt 1 1
Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain 1 1

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee has adopted its terms of reference as provided in the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Evaluation of the Board’s Performance and Directors’ Training Program

As required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, a formal and
effective mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own performance, members of
the Board, and of its committees against pre-determined operational and strategic goals. Effective boards
make sound collective decisions to meet the company’s strategic objectives and provide oversight and
support on key matters to management for optimal operational performance. A well-conducted evaluation
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helps the board and its committees to perform to their maximum capabilities, crucial for the continuing
success and growth in the long-term sustainable value of the Company.

Pattern of Shareholding

The total number of the Company’s shareholders as of December 31, 2020, was 2,972. The pattern of
Shareholding of the Company as of December 31, 2020, along with a pattern of shareholding of certain classes
of shareholders whose disclosure is required under the reporting framework as well as the statement of
purchase and sale of shares by Directors, executives, and their spouses including minor children during 2020
is shown in the shareholding section of this report.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Board of Directors has duly approved the policy and procedure for remuneration of the Directors for
attendance of Board and Committee meetings in compliance with the requirements of the Company’s Article
of Association, Companies Act, 2017 and the listed companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019. The remuneration is determined by the level of responsibility and expertise, to attract and retain the
best talent while ensuring that their independence is not compromised in any manner. Its main features
include that Independent Directors are entitled to meeting fees as remuneration for attending meetings of
the Board of Directors and other committees of the Board.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors during the year is given in Note 37 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Investor Relations & Website

We want our investors, shareholders, and customers to be well informed about us and our operations so we
can continue to build lasting and mutually beneficial relationships. We are determined to service our
Shareholders and Stakeholders by delivering material information as soon as the same are available for
circulation. As a practice, we will regularly publish all material communiqués on the official website of the
company (www.wavessinger.com) such as the Company’s financial, operational performance, a pattern of
shareholding, material disclosures, and any other information deemed essential for the investors. Our
investor complaint section also covers detail of the person to contact in case of investor grievances so that
your concerns may be duly addressed.
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External Auditors

The present auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. (Chartered Accountants) retire and being eligible, have
offered their consent for reappointment at the 365th annual general meeting. The Audit Committee has
recommended the reappointment of M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. as Statutory Auditors of the company for
the year ending December 31, 2021, at a fee to be mutually agreed upon. The Board has endorsed this
recommendation.
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support, and efforts of our management team and other employees who deserve a full compliment. We are
confident that the team will continue to grow and constantly deliver on the expectations of all stakeholders.
The Board would also like to place its appreciation for the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Review report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Waves Singer Pakistan
Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 in accordance with the requirements of
regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, of its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have
not carried out procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s
length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliances with the requirements of the Regulations as
reflected in the paragraphs where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:
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Reference Description

i. Paragraph2 The process of selection of independent directors as required under
section 166 of the Companies Act 2017 has not been complied with.

ii. Paragraph9 Asrequired under clause 19 (1)(i) of the regulations, it is encouraged
that by 30 June 2020 at least half of the directors on their boards have
acquired the prescribed certification under any director training
program offered by institutions, local or foreign, that meet the criteria
specified by the commission and approved by it, however, only one
director have acquired prescribed certification till now.

iii. Paragraph 12  As required under clause 27 (1)(i) of the Regulations, the Board shall
establish an audit committee of at least three members comprising of
non-executive directors and at least one independent director,
however, Company’s Audit Committee has one executive director as
its member.

iv. Paragraph 19 As required under clause 10 (3)(v) of the Regulations, the Board shall
ensure that a formal and effective mechanism is put in place for an
annual evaluation of the Board’s own performance, members of the
Board and of its committees. The Board has devised the mechanism
however annual evaluation has not been carried out during the year.

Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Date: 30 March 2021 Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Name of the Company: Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
Year ended: 31 December 2020

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

The total number of directors are Seven (7) as per the following:
a. Male: Seven (6)
b. Female: One (1)

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Names

Independent Director(s) i. Mr. Muhammad Adnan Afaq
ii. Mr. Yousuf Muhammad Farooq *
iii. Mr. Muhammad Zaffar Hussain

Executive Directors i. Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan

ii. Mr. Nadeem Mehmood Butt
Non-Executive Directors i. Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan
Female director (Non-executive) i. Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan

* Mr. Yousuf Muhammad Faroogq, Director has ceased to be the Director of the Company w.e.f. 19
March 2021and Mr. Shoaib Dastgir has been appointed as Director.

The election of Board of the Directors of the Company was held on 11 August 2020. However, the
independent directors have not been appointed in accordance with the requirements of section 166 of

Companies Act 2017.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;
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12.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies
along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company. A complete record of
particulars of significant policies were approved in Board Meeting held on 25 August 2020;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations approved in meeting dated 25 August 2020;

One director has obtained the directors’ training program certification in prior years. Further, the
Company is in process to arrange Director Training Program for remaining directors to comply with the
requirements of the regulations;

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment are complied

with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Designation
i. Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain Chairman/Independent Director
ii. Mrs. Nighat Haroon Khan Member/Non-Executive Director
iii. Mr. Moaazam Ahmad Khan Member/Non-Executive Director
iv. Mr. Nadeem Mehmood Butt Member/Executive Director

The Company’s Audit Committee has an executive director as its member. The Company is in process
of removing such director in their upcoming meeting of Q1 2021.
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15.

16.

Audit Committee has executive director as its member resulting in non-compliance.

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Names Designation

i. Mr. Yousuf Muhammad Farooq * Chairman/Independent Director
ii. Mr. Muhammad Zafar Hussain Member/Independent Director
iii. Mr. Moazzam Ahmad Khan Member/Non-Executive Director
iv. Mr. Nadeem Mehmood Butt Member/Executive Director
v. Mr. Haroon Ahmad Khan Member/Executive Director

* Mr. Yousuf Muhammad Farooq, Director has ceased to be the Director of the Company w.e.f. 19
March 2021and Mr. Shoaib Dastgir has been appointed as Director.

The Board has not formed the ‘Nomination Committee’ and ‘Risk Management Committee’ as
responsibilities of these committees are being taken care of at the Board level as and when required.
Therefore, a need for the separate formation of these committees does not exist;

The updated terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance in the meeting held on 25 August 2020;

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:

Meetings Frequency

. . Four quarterly meetings were held during the
Audit Committee . .
financial year ended December 31, 2020.

One meeting was held during the financial year
ended December 31, 2020

HR & Remuneration Committee

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in
the audit are not a close relative (spouses, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief
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19.

Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the
Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33, and 36 of the regulations
have been complied with;

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36
is below:

As required under clause 10 (3)(v) of the Regulations, the Board shall ensure that a formal and effective
mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own performance, members of the
Board and of its committees. The Board has devised the mechanism however annual evaluation has not
been carried out during the year.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

MUHAMMAD ADNAN AFAQ
CHAIRMAN

Lahore: 19 March 2021

WAVES SINGER ANNUAL REPORT 2020



FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company | WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED |

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at | 31-12-2020 |

Total Shares

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Held
406 1 100 10,697
472 101 500 164,258
420 501 1,000 338,023
989 1,001 5,000 2,543,103
259 5,001 10,000 2,040,277

94 10,001 15,000 1,198,840
52 15,001 20,000 951,959
48 20,001 25,000 1,114,184
24 25,001 30,000 679,186
22 30,001 35,000 729,559
15 35,001 40,000 560,569
8 40,001 45,000 334,183
23 45,001 50,000 1,142,380
3 50,001 55,000 164,000
4 55,001 60,000 232,500
4 60,001 65,000 251,028
4 65,001 70,000 271,552
7 70,001 75,000 513,390
1 75,001 80,000 80,000
2 80,001 85,000 161,443
2 85,001 90,000 177,500
2 90,001 95,000 186,875
14 95,001 100,000 1,396,367
5 100,001 105,000 507,286
3 105,001 110,000 327,500
3 110,001 115,000 341,500
3 115,001 120,000 355,500
1 120,001 125,000 122,187
1 130,001 135,000 135,000
3 135,001 140,000 415,500
1 140,001 145,000 142,000
2 145,001 150,000 290,975
1 150,001 155,000 152,000
1 155,001 160,000 155,365
1 165,001 170,000 168,000
1 175,001 180,000 175,250
1 190,001 195,000 195,000
2 195,001 200,000 398,375
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200,001
205,001
215,001
220,001
245,001
260,001
265,001
270,001
275,001
280,001
290,001
295,001
305,001
320,001
340,001
345,001
350,001
370,001
375,001
395,001
415,001
420,001
430,001
495,001
520,001
535,001
545,001
580,001
650,001
655,001
660,001
710,001
745,001
920,001
995,001
1,000,001
1,025,001
1,100,001
1,115,001
1,120,001
1,150,001
1,320,001
1,380,001
1,385,001
1,560,001
1,590,001
1,595,001
2,165,001
2,215,001
2,770,001
3,185,001

205,000
210,000
220,000
225,000
250,000
265,000
270,000
275,000
280,000
285,000
295,000
300,000
310,000
325,000
345,000
350,000
355,000
375,000
380,000
400,000
420,000
425,000
435,000
500,000
525,000
540,000
550,000
585,000
655,000
660,000
665,000
715,000
750,000
925,000
1,000,000
1,005,000
1,030,000
1,105,000
1,120,000
1,125,000
1,155,000
1,325,000
1,385,000
1,390,000
1,565,000
1,595,000
1,600,000
2,170,000
2,220,000
2,775,000
3,190,000
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400,977
205,286
218,000
225,000
500,000
261,500
537,000
275,000
276,000
280,500
293,000
300,000
309,500
322,000
341,500
350,000
352,500
371,500
377,519
1,200,000
415,500
421,000
431,796
500,000
525,000
1,078,827
548,190
582,500
652,000
660,000
662,000
715,000
750,000
923,500
1,000,000
1,001,012
1,028,600
1,101,000
1,120,000
1,124,000
1,150,375
1,322,500
1,380,275
1,386,468
1,565,000
4,783,314
1,600,000
2,169,000
2,218,308
2,772,937
3,188,877



1 3,270,001 3,275,000 3,271,000
1 3,390,001 3,395,000 3,394,773
1 3,835,001 3,840,000 3,835,250
1 6,120,001 6,125,000 6,121,000
1 10,000,001 10,005,000 10,000,392
1 10,280,001 10,285,000 10,280,024
1 13,510,001 13,515,000 13,511,024
1 31,640,001 31,645,000 31,643,524
1 40,245,001 40,250,000 40,250,000
2,972 187,604,059
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WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED

Categories of Shareholding required under Code of C
As on December 31, 2020

orporate Governance (CCG)

Sr. Name No. of Percentage
No. Shares Held
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise):
1 - - -
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -
1 FIRST EQUITY MODARABA (CDC) 352,500 0.1879
Directors, CEO and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise):
1 MR. HAROON AHMAD KHAN (CDC) 71,893,524 38.3219
2 MRS. NIGHAT HAROON KHAN 20,617,274 10.9898
3 MR. MOAZZAM AHMAD KHAN (CDC) 1,217 0.0006
4 MR. MUHAMMAD ZAFAR HUSSAIN 1,137 0.0006
5 MR. NADEEM MAHMOOD BUTT (CDC) 1,322 0.0007
6 MR. YOUSUF MUHAMMAD FAROOQ (CDC) 1,322 0.0007
7 MR. ADNAN AFAQ (CDC) 500 0.0003
Executives: 8,500 0.0045
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 7,481,000 3.9877
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:
Shareholders holding five percent or more voting interest in the listed company (Name Wise)
1 MR. HAROON AHMAD KHAN (CDC) 71,893,524 38.3219
2 MRS. NIGHAT HAROON KHAN (CDC) 20,617,274 10.9898
3 MR. JAVAID AKTAR BUTT (CDC) 10,000,392 5.3306
4 POSEIDON SYNERGIES (PVT) LTD. (CDC) 10,680,183 5.6929
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All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, CEO, CFO, Company
Secretary and their spouses and minor children during FY 2020:

Sr. Name Designation Opening Sale Purchase Closing
No. Balance Balance
hai I
1 Mr. Adnan Afaq Chairman/Independent - - 500 500
Director
Mr. Yousuf .
2 Muhammad Farooq * Independent Director 1,322 - - 1,322
3 E/'hr;\N'ghat Haroon | Jependent Director 29,346,274 | 8,729,000 - 20,617,274
4 :X'hra':/'oazzam Ahmad 0 Executive Director 1,731,877 | 1,730,660 - 1,217
Mr. Nadeem . .
5 Mahmood Butt Executive Director 1,322 - - 1,322
6 :Z'hra':amon Ahmad Lot Executive Officer 71,893,524 - ; 71,893,524
7 Mr. Arslan Shahid Chief Financial Officer - - 5,000 5,000
8 Mr. Wasif Ali Rana Company Secretary - - 3,500 3,500

* Mr. Yousuf Muhammad Farooq, Director has ceased to be the Director of the Company w.e.f. 19 March
2021 and Mr. Shoaib Dastgir has been appointed as Director.
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WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders of Waves Singer Pakistan
Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Monday, April 23, 2021 at 11:00 A.M. physically at Factory Premises,
9 KM Multan Road, Lahore, being the Registered Office of the Company, as well electronically to transact the
following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the Year Ended
December 31, 2020, together with the Chairman’s Review, Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports.

2. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year ending December 31, 2021 and to fix their
remuneration. The Board and Audit Committee have recommended the name of M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi
& Co., Chartered Accountants, the retiring auditors, for appointment as Auditors of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Lahore: April 02, 2021 (Wasif Ali Rana)
Company Secretary
Notes:

Due to current COVID-19 situation, the Company has decided that it will be advisable and appropriate for the
Company to hold Annual to hold its AGM physically as well as electronically for the safety and well-being of
shareholders and the public at large. The shareholders of the Company interested to participate in the AGM
through video link are requested to send their particulars (as given below) along with a valid copy of their
CNIC (both sides)/passport, attested copy of the board resolution / power of attorney (in case of corporate
shareholders) through email at cs@waves.net.pk (or through post/courier) with the subject similar to
“Registration for AGM December 2020 of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited” at least 48 hours before the holding
of the AGM. The original signed documents are required to be sent to the Company separately through
courier or post, for record purposes.

Name of Shareholder CNIC No. Folio No. Cell No. Email Address

The video link and login credential will be shared with only those members whose emails, containing all the

required particulars are received well within time.

1. The share transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 17, 2021 to April 23, 2021 (both
days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our Share Registrar M/s Corplink (Private)
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Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial Model Town, Lahore at the close of business on April 16, 2021
will be treated in time for the purposes of entitlement to the transferees.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting may appoint another Member as his/her Proxy to
attend, speak and vote at the Meeting on his/her behalf. Instrument appointing Proxy must be deposited
at the Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. CDC Accounts
Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued
by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Proxy form is available at the Company’s website
i.e. www.wavessinger.com. However, in case of electronic attendance, the relevant procedure given in
the precedent paragraph may be followed.

Shareholders are requested to notify the Company's Share Registrar if there is any change in their
registered postal addresses.

Pursuant to SECP’s Circular No 10 dated 21 May 2014, if the Company receives consent from members
holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical location other than the city of
the Meeting, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of
meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such
facility in that city. In this regard please fill the following and submit to registered address of the Company
at least 10 days before the date of AGM.

I/We of , being member(s) of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited holder
Ordinary share(s) as per Register Folio No. hereby opt for video
conference facility at

The Company can Transmit Annual Financial Statements through email for which shareholders may
provide their relevant information to share registrar.
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WAVES SINGER PAKISTAN LIMITED

FORM OF PROXY
The Company Secretary
Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
9 KM, Multan Road, Hanjarwal,
Lahore

I/ We

of

being a member of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited hereby appoint

of

or failing him

of
as my proxy in my absence to attend, speak and vote for me on my behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on Friday April 23, 2021 at 11:00 AM and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand this day of 2021.
Rs.5/-
Revenue
Stamp
Witness No.1
Name
Address :
CNIC No.:
Signature of Member(s)
Witness No. 2
Name
Address :
CNIC No.:
(Name in Block letters)
Folio No.
Participant ID No.
Account No. in CDC
Important:
1. CDC Account Holders are requested to strictly follow the guidelines mentioned in the Notice of Meeting.
2. A Member entitled to attend a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her.
3. Members are requested:

(a) To affix Revenue Stamp of Rs. 5/- at the place indicated above.
(b) To sign across the Revenue Stamp in the same style of signature as is registered with the Company.
(c) To write down their Folio Numbers.

4, This form of proxy, duly completed and signed across a Rs. 5/- revenue stamp, must be deposited/sent at the Company’s Registered Office not less
than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or may be sent through the email as given in this notice followed by courier/post to the
Company’s registered office. .
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

351 Shadman-1, Jail Road,

Lahore 54000 Pakistan

+92 (42) 111-KPMGTH (576484), Fax +92 (42) 3742 9907

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consalidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed Consolidated financial statements of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
(“the Company™) and its subsidiarics (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consoliduted statement of changes in equity, the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and ¢f its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We condueted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (18As) as applicable in
Pakistan, Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor ¥ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Finaneial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Prafessional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chantered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Cade. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien,

Kev Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

"
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Following are the Key audit matters:

s.
No. Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

L Impairment of intangible assets

Refer to note 4,2 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group annually tests the carrying valug
of goodwill and intangible assets, The
testing is subject to estimates and judgments
made by the management of the Group with
respect to  future sales growth and
profitability, cash flow projection and
selection of appropriate discount rate.

We identified the impairment testing of
separately identifiable intangible assets and
goodwill a8 a key audit matter because
significaml  degree  of  management
judgement is involved in making the above
assessment and in forecasting the future cash
flows which are inherently uncertain.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the
following:

»  Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
accounting policy for impairment testing of
intangible assets and goodwill and compliance
of the policy with applicable accounting and
reporting standards;

* discussing with the Group’s management key
assumptions wsed in valuation model and
testing the mathemarical accuracy of the
model;

* involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing the significant estimates,
assumptions and judgements applied in the
valustion of intangible assets and goodwill,
including discount rate, growth rate, terminal
value and attrition rate, with reference to
available market information;

» comparing the recoverable amount with the
goodwill and intangible assets recognized to
identify impairment, if anv; and

+ assessing the adequacy of disclosure made in
the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of the
applicable accounting and reperting standards.

2. Sales

Refer to note 4.12 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group principally generates sales from
manufacturing and assembly of domestic
consumer appliances along-with retailing
and trading of the same,

We identified sales as a key audit matter
because it is one of the key performance
indicator of the Group and gives rise 1o a risk
that sale may be recognized without
transferring of control.

Our audit procedures, amongst others, included the
following:

« obtaining an understanding of the process
relating to recording of sales and testing the
design, 1mplementation and operating
effectiveness of relevant kev internal controls;

+ assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
accounting policy for recording of sales and
compliance of the policy with applicable
accounting and reporting standards;

» comparing a sample of sale transactions
recorded during the year with sales orders,
sales invoices, delivery challans and other
relevant underlying documents;

*» comparing a sample of s<ale transactions
recorded near the year end with the sales
orders, sales invoices, delivery challans and
other relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the sale was recorded in the
appropriate accounting period;
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ﬁa Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our andit

= inspecting on a sample basis, credit notes
issued near to and subsequent to yzar end lo
evaluate whether the adjustments 1o sales had
been accurately recorded in the appropriate
accounting period; and

« scanning for any manual journal entries
relating 1o sales recorded during and near the
year end which were considered to be material
ot met other specific risk based criteria for
inspecting underlying documentation.

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditar's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020, but does not include the consolidated
and unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

1n connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be malerially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

onsibilitics of Munagement Bourd of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Staterments

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the gecounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2001 7(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error.,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's [inancial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibifities for the Audit of the Consolideted Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements asa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an anditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

-~
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audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if;
individually or in the aggregare, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional emissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control,

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ebility to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group 1o cease (o continue as a
going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an apinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relaled safeguards,
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determing those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumsiances. we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement parmer on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Bilal Ali,

KL Towea Uod' b
Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 30 March 2021

ARZ431

WSPL Annual Report | 71




aaoqey

«Kﬂ% \Ej 27,, —

") LS SRS [EESUNILELY PO P oSU03 25341 FO Lvd (eaifaiun uw wuo) G 0 | 200 PO M|

ATOLIE] BIFLOR'LE ST L] RTr'Lon'il
T SN0 D PUE sM3uaEunmo )
HIETEY'D OFFaLL'D
TS s roR'LLS it s iy Fooy jo uoiuod paomy
LEF| p M puapap produgy
x (MIE"0RE o [Pasnm - SA0GUOKS 101 1]
18C°ELY TSAFSA'E o TG = ERURMOLISY WAL LOYS
5591 SIF'HLL ) SRMMOLI) US PRI dr-jmpy
L1598l orsed | £l sopquind J31[0 pue spury
CI0ERF'R HTRIEG T ]
695 EY1 WIErE T4 SR YU U gy
£60°0T Fra'LEl JE - UDQERE] 6881612 B F 1%
Tegsel TrE's01 (74 EafqRALIal 1310 PUE 0L108T FLE T & Jioed = Gl | x pasiagac)
SpstiAncan Eotap sasumapy FES S b4y 1 n oA palRya
58" SEF1TLY AEFHOYM - ' O19'8E n sy wmapR sadopd g
TLIT0G 1ot [ - S5T'8E ] é plitdmnak - 3im fir pplind Japan SRS A
£ Aqap AP, RO 66E oE6" 107 6 precarasnn - 26w i oy aapui Suppoag -
MOFEE'E SHI'T9G'T Frd apuug-in-yo0ls NI 95ua ]
ROL'LE IL'TE £jony xsow| pun sands ‘suog LET'LIF FLE900'T ® paunags - sy uuy Faoy
PR PR e T e
666'AET R FIHOuH'S
[ 1L18EE & oy fio i - itk pue wed
“Auaadond Jo notmEneAl o SpEdme
15£°51671 GF1099° 1 wpend Pl onciduun - 3a0Ea0 Sy
DOY's 000's antasan ey
00 €608 LiTers's £O0 1Sy £90°185'F 9 aatasan umpmand armpg
§80°9T Feu'T iz sy sodap uuag doo | Taes'l 1H0'9L8 ] § (endea dn-prad pue paguasgns panss]
£6FT1 1868 € TRap apeLy,
SREE = o QA uEmanal aiojdiryg
SIT'ONET V6TLIET e [poa (e sgass 0 i 00000 T 00 N E £ T (3] S J0 R A pio
99U RIS TS i el it i gl ‘AL nadliang (000000 DOE 610T) D00 000 00 ML PSLIO Y
G AT oA o oy i
e (), 1 IR —— apony FLASSY —— (ipw, w1 sadngg) —— o SALLITHEYIT ANy ALnDA
al02 nzuT BLOT azat
T 40quradacy [0 sy

UOTHSO] [EINIEWT] J0 JUSWETME Paplosus)
papwl URISTYE] JDFUIS SIARM

WSPL Annual Report | 72



Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Revenue - net of sales return
Sales tax and trade discount on invoices

Revenue - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Marketing, selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Other income

Earned carrying charges

Finance costs

Frofit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)

Note

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

i3

34

2020

2019

(Rupees in '000)

10,230,068 11,660,266
(1,704,587)  (2.176,292)
8,525,481 9,483,974
(6,681,104)  (6.854,602)
1,844,377 2,629,372
(920,483) (927,606)
(461.016) (475,410)
(42,671) (85,248)
465,831 157,295
(958.339)  (1,330,969)
886,038 1,298,403
262,863 191,056
(879,695) (867.850)
(616,832) (676,794)
269,206 621,609
(141,738) (243,309)
127,468 378,300

0.68 2.02

The annexed notes | to 45 form an integral pant of these consolidated financial statements.

AW LR

1|’

f\ [ ]
l\ IIII T.
WA /

Chief Executive Officer

A

Chief Financial Officer
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the yeagr ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

Profit for the year 127,468 378,300
Other comprelt 1]
Item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss:
- Surplus on revaluation of property. plant and equipment - 355,409
- Related deferred tax on surplus - {101,012)
- Actuarial loss on employee retirement benefits (7.143) {2,070)

(7,143) 252,327
Total comprehensive income for the year 120,325 630,627

The annexed notes | to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

WML W

0 AL
/\ \ub&’\w‘/ A

Chief Executive Officer Chief Finaneial Officer
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
Consolidated Sttement of Changes in Equity
Far the year ended 31 Dacesber 2020

Revenue Reserve
Tuaued, Surplus on
subscribed and  Share premium Other capltal  cevaluation of  Unappenpriabed Tetal
i up PERCFYE reserve lsknid and profli
capital
[Rupees im "BiH)
Balanoe s at (1] January 2019 1,631,540 48257 5,000 117,395 1,334,423 7513922
Hezlitf scern e o for the pyer
Profit after mearion . - - " 376,500 ATRI00
Remeaserement of defined benefit obliganon - - . - (2,070} {2,070}
Rurpliss on revalunton of property plant asd
and equiperiont - . . 358,409 - 355,400
Reluted deferred tax on revaluatien surmplus - - - (101.013) . (101,003}
- . - 254,397 376,230 630,617
Transfer againat sale of buildng - net of tax . - - {5,010) 1,018 -
I il doprecaat dnring, to
surplus on revalustion - net of tay - - - 3,604) 3,608 .
Effect of change in las rate an account af surplus
0 property, plant and equlpment - - (533} - {633]
= p = 5.248) 5015 (633)
Tognrcan with avigrs of the Foilding Campany
nesepmized directly i egurty
Shares issued 05 fully paid bonus shores & 15% 244,701 (344,701 ) . . - -
Final dividend for e year cuded
31 Becember 2018 @ R 1 25 por share - - - - [203,317) {203,917}
244,701 (244,701 . [203,217) 203,917
Bulance o ot 3] December 2019 LBTE,041 4,451,063 5,000 362 544 1,515,351 £.3139.999
Tstai compred gas(ve incoms for the year
Frofit afier taxation - - 127,468 1174638
{ither comprehensive lpss for the yeur
Remeasurement of defineld beneflt obligution - - - - (7,143) (7,143}
- - - - 120,325 110,315
Inorernemtnl depreciation relat ng o
surplus um revaluation - net of tax - - - {14.473) 33473 -
Effect of changs in tax e on actount of surplul
on propeory, plani and equipment - - . 100 - 10640
= = 5 {14373) 14473 100
Balance as a1 31 December 2020 laﬁbﬂ 4 581,043 X JIR1TL 1 6l | 49 H, dil), 414
The annexod notes | to43 fonm en mtegral part of ihese consobidated 0
YR WA Lt
ﬂ /1/ \\MS\(
Libers cotor Chiel Executive Officer Chief Finaneial Officer

e =
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Nove 020 2019
{Rupees in '000)
Cash flaa I f it
Profit before Wwxaton 269 206 621 609
Adjustments for non-cash itéms:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1914 387,713 129,126
Amortisation of intangible asset 03 45,130 40,427
Finance costs F ¥ #79,605 867,850
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment i {7,453) (1,940)
Liahilities no longer paynble written back 3 (61,512) .
Warkers' Profit Participation Fund 14,530 32313
Amortisation of deferred income i (15,533) (6,117)
Loss allowsnce trade debis 4216 -
Provision for slow moving and damaged stock 20,000 42,0000
Workers Welfare Fund 5512 9,243
Loss allowance against trade debts {355,178) (133,065)
Provision for employee retirement benefits- net 5,677 (24,352)
Profit before working capital changes 1,191,633 1,777,054
i € el
fTncrease) / decrease in curvent assels
Stores, spares and loose tools 3945 (6,673)
Stock-in-trade BT0.41% {603,763)
Trade debts (1,326,941) (1,324.856)
Advances, deposits, prepuyments and other receivables 39,711 4213
(Decrease) f increase in trade and other paynbles (96 095) 71,726
{TOBSEZ)  (1,859,353)
Cush used in operations 482,671 (82,259
Income tax = met [To.482) (135,080
Workers' Profit Participation Fund paid [(32.313) (27,331)
Waorkers' Welfare Fund paid (9,243) (9,118)
Emplayee retirement benefils (refund) / paid [12,033) 6,305
Long term deposits - nel 5534 (2751}
Nel cash used in operating activities 358,134 {250,234)
Cash flows from investing uctjvities
Capral expenditure (378,839} {471,057}
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 25,6046 26,067
Net cash flows from investing aetivities (353,133) {444,590
Cazh flows from (fnancing activitles
Lesize renmls puid (103,672) {130, 500)
Loan from sponsars 380,500 -
Finance costs paid (917,845) {748,622}
Dividend paid (181} 203,977}
Shore term finances avalled - ner 122,934 1,051,801
Long term |oans recsived 774,560 1,000,000
Long term loans repaid - £281.250)
Met cash Mows from financing acriviries 156,296 787,052
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 161,197 21,828
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (1.332,791)  (1.424,619)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 35 {1,071,594) (1332791}
‘The annexed notes | to 25 form an integrl part of these consolidated al statements.
7 L
[ I / ; | b:'
i ) 4
f" B ul.l\\ ('{ ?)
Lahore = Chiel Executhve Officer Chief Financial Bificer

.l
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 3] December 2020

1 Status and nature of business

11 The Group comprises of:

Holding Company
- Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
1020 2019
{Holding percentage)
Subsidiary Companies
- Waves Marketing (Private) Limited 100 100
- Electronics Marketing Company (Private] Limited 100 100

Waves Singer Pokistan Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) as a public company limited
by shares and is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Holding Company is principally
engaged in the manufacturing and assembly of domestic consumer appliances along with retailing
and trading of the same and other light engineering products. The registered office of the
company is located at 9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore.

Geographical locations of the manufacturing facilities of the Group are Jocated at:

- 8-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore.
- Dina Nath, Mouza Rakh Serai Cheenba, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur.

Waves Marketing (Privar pited - Sihsidl "

Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WMPL) is a private limited company which was
incorporated on 10 April 2017 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies
Act, 2017). The registered office of the company is located at 15/3 A Model Town, Lahore. The

principal activity of the company is the sale, distribution and marketing of consumer appliances
being a trading concern. The subsidary was established to avail the fiscal benefit available 1o the
Holding Company under sales tax special procedures, 2007, The subsidiary was established to
avail the fiscal benefits available to the Holding Company under Sales Tax Special Procedures,
2007 whereby the Holding Company supplied electronic products to the Company by charging
applicable sales tax and extra tax. Subsequent to 01 July 2019, due to change in laxalion regime
whereby electronic products are charged to sales tax on retail price under third schedule, sales are
being made by the Holding Company directly 1o the customers/dealers. The subsidiary company
has not made any significant sales during the year and it is nol expected to make any significant
sales in the foreseeable future, The business during the year represented revenue eamed from sale
of products that was in stock since last year. The Board of Directors of the Holding Company are
evaluating viable business options to continue the subsidiary company as a going concern and is
committed to provide full financial support as and when required,

(1 [V T
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Electronics Marketing Company {(Private) Limited - Subsidiary Company

Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited (EMCPL) is a private limited company which
was ingorporated on 09 September 2016 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now
Companies Act, 2017). The principal activity of the the company is to carry out distribution /
wholesales / retail business of all kinds of electronic appliances, its compenents and accessories,
cle.

1.2 On 11 March 2020, Covid-19 (Coronavirus) was declared a pandemic by the World Health
Organization, The spread of coronavirus as a pandemic and consequently imposition of lock
down by Federal and Provincial Governments of Pakistan (Authorities) has effected the
production and sale volumes of the Group during the lock down period. However, as per
relaxation given by Authorities, the Group resumed its operations on 11 May 2020 with all
precautionary measures to prevent the pandemic spread. There is no material financial impact of
COVID-19 on the carrving amounts of assets and liabilities or ilems of income and expenses
except for the decrease in sales volume in the months of April and May 2020.

1.3 Previously, the Helding Company used to sell products through its subsidiary company to avail
the benefil of extra tax under Rule 59 of Sales Tax Special Procedures Rule, 2007. Through SRO.
694(1)/2019 the electronic products are now taxable at retail price under third schedule.
Resultantly w.e.f. 01 July 2019, the Helding Company has started to transact directly with the
dealers in light of new dealership agreements signed by the Holding Company and the channel of
subsidiary company has been eliminated.

Basis of preparation
21 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan comprise oft

—  Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
—  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

—  Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS

Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

22 Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for land, buildings and plant and machinery which are stated at revalued amounts less
subsequent depreciation and impairment losses as referred (o in note 18, recognition of lease
liability and certain employee retirement benefits as referred to in note 9 and 10 at present value
respectively.

23 Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financizl statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is also the
Group's functional and presentation currency and have been rounded off to the nearest thousand.

befed Lania
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2.4 Basis of consalidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the fnancial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies as at 31 December 2020. These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared from the information available in the audited separate financial
statements of the Holding Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the audited
financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has centrol. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed 1o, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity, The subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Holding Company obtains control, and conlinue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line
basis and the carrving values of the investments held by the Holding Company have been
eliminated against the sharcholders' equity in the subsidiary companies, The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as of the Holding Company, using
consistent accounting policies,

Intra - Group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra - group transactions, are eliminated in full.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and linbilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling imterest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. Any goodwill that arises is lested annually for impairment.

Nan-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest is that part of net results of operations and of net assets of the
subsidiaries which are not owned by the Holding Company cither directly or indirectly. Non-
controlling interest is presented as a separate item in the consolidated financial statements. The
Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with
parties external to the Group.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transaction.

55 T,

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non
contralling interests and other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or
deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. In
addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that
subsidiary are reclassified to the consolidated profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the
previaus subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost.
Subsequently that retained interest is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee, joint venture
or as an available for sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

PR TTIATN
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Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standerds requires management (o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are hased on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under circumstances, and the results of which form the basis for making judgment about carrying value of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apperent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates,

The estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
pericd, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group's financial statements or where
judgment was exercised in application of acceunting policies are as follows:

Nofe

- Residual value, market values and useful lives of

property, plant and equipment 4.0
- Estimates of Useful lives and recoverable amount of intangible assets and goodwill 42
- Provision for employee retirement benefit plans 4.3
- Stock In trade and stores and spares and loose tools

at net realizable value / net of impairment losses 4.6&47
- Provisions 4.1
- Taxation 413
- Impairment of financial and non-financial asscts 4.16

Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements, except as disclosed in note 4.1,

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if anv, except for the land which is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, il any,
and buildings and plant and machinery which are stated at the revalued amounts less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the
acquisition of an asset.

Land, Buildings and Plant and Machinery are revalued by professionally qualified valuer with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from the fair
value (market value). In case of revalued asscts, any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount
restated at the revalued amount of the asset.

Increase in the carrving amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
revaluation surplus. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and depreciation based
on the asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings. Upon disposal, any revaluation
reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transférred to retained earnings, All transfers
to / from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred
ax.

B A L, Y
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42

Useful lives are determined by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use
of the assets and other similar factors.

Depreciation is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss applving the straight-line
method whereby the depreciable amount of an asset is depreciated over its astimated useful life.
Depreciation on additions is charged {rom the month in which the asset is available for use and up
to the month of disposal. The rates of depreciation are stated in note 19.1 1o these consolidated
financial statements.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
impact on depreciation is significant. The Group's estimate of the residual value of its property,
plant and equipment as at reporiing date has not required any adjustment as its impact is
considered insigniticant.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the item of property, plant and equipment. Normal repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Gains and losses on
disposal of assets are taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

¢k in pro

It is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. It includes expenditure incurred and advances
made in respect of assets in the course of their construction and installation. These cost are
transferred to relevant assets category as and when assels are available for intended use.

Intangible assets and goodwill
aharild

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of business represents fulure economic benefits arising from
assets Lthat are not capable of being individually identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is
initially recognized at cost which is determined as the excess of the cost of business combination
over the Group’s interast in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liahilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquire. Subsequent 1o initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is annually tested for impairment,

Otlier {ntangible asset

Other intangible assets, that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured at
cost less accumulated amortization and any sccumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets
such as brand value that have infinite lives are measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and sceumulated jmpairment losses, if any, Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognized in profit or loss. The rates of
amortization are stated in note 20.1 to these consolidated financial staterments.

B tad
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4.3

4.4

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized enly when it increases the futuré economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Gain or loss from derecognition of intangible assets is recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there are any indications that the intangible
assets may be impaired. If such indications exists then the recoverable amount is determined.
(Refer note 4.16 for impairment of nen-financial assels).

Business combination

As per the requirement of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards 3, business combinations
are accounted for by applying the acquisition method (other than those of the businesses / entities
under common control unless it is transitory in nature). The cost of acquisition is measured at the
fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of acquisition. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, if any.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. 1demifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. I this is less than the fair value of the net
assets acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment property

Property, comprising land or a building or part thereof, held to eamn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both are classified as investment property, These are nat held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. The Group's busingss
model i.e. the Group's intentions regarding the use of property is the primary criterion for
classification as an investment property.

Investment property is initially measured at cost (including the transaction costs). However when
an gwner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, the transfer to the investment property is at fair value on the date of transfer and any
balance of surplus on the revaluation of the related assets, on the date of such a transfer continues
to be maintained in the surplus account on revaluation of property, plant and equipment, Upon
disposal, any surplus previously recorded in the revaluation surplus account is directly transferred
to retained carnings / ageumulated losses and the transfer is not made through the statement of
profit or loss, However, any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (caleulated as the
difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

The transfer to investment property is made when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the end of owner cecupation. In case of dual purpose properties, the same is
classified as investment property, only if the portion could be sold or leased out separately under
finance lease.
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4.5

4.6

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the investment property at fair value at
each reporting date and any subsequent change in fair value is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss (i.e, in case where the owner ocoupied property carried at fair value becomes an
investment property, the fair value gain to be recognized in the statement of profit or loss would
be the difference between the fair value at the time of initial classification as investment property
and fair value at the time of subsequent remeasurement), The revaluation of investment propertics
are carried out by independent professionally qualified valuers on the basis of active market price.

Employee retirement and other service benefits

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme for the cligible executives and
managers (old Singer Pakistan Limited employees) and a funded gratuity scheme for all of its
eligible employees (old Singer Pakistan Limited's employees). The Group also operates an
unfunded gratuity scheme for its eligible field staff. Benefits under the scheme are payable to staff
on the campletion of prescribed gualifying period of service. Provisions / contributions are made
in the consolidated financial statements to cover obligations on the basis of actuarial valuation
carried out annually under the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Amount recognized in statement of financial position represents the present value of defined
benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets, if any. All actuarial gains and
losses are recognized in 'Other Comgprehensive Income' as they occur. Past service cost resulting
from the changes 1o defined benefit plan is immediately recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Current service cost together with net interest cost are also charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Calculation of gratuity and pension require assumptions to be made of future outcomes which
mainly includes increase in remuneration, expected long term return on plan assets and the
discount rate used to convert future cash flows to current values, Calculations are sensitive to
changes in the underlying assumplions.

Defined contributian plan

The Group operaies a recognized provident fund scheme covering all eligible employees. The
Group and emplovees make equal monthly contributions to the fund.

Staff Compensated absences

The Group recognizes the liability for compensated absences in respect of employees in the
period in which they are eamed up to the reporting date on the basis of un-availed earned leaves
balance at the end of the year,

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and impairment losses if
any, ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred
thereon up to the reporting date less any impairment losses.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on
management's estimates. These are based on their future usability. Provision is made for uny
excess of carrying value over the estimated net realizable value and is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4.7

4.8

4.10

4.11

4.12

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and net
realizable value except for stock in transit which is stated at invoice value plus other charges
incurred thereon up to the reporting date. Cost in relation to work in process and manufactured
finished goods represent direct cost of materials, direct wages and appropriate allocation of
manufacturing overheads. Cost of goods purchased for resale comprises of purchase price. import
duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from tax authorities) and
other directly attributabie cost wherever applicable.

Cost comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value signifies the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and the
estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

The management continuously reviews its inventory for existence of any items which may have
become obsolete. Provision is made for slow moving inventory based on management’s
estimation. These are based on historical experience and are continuously reviewed.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, and deposits held with banks with original
maturities of three months or less and where these are held for the purpose of meeting short term
cash commitments rather than for investments or other purposes. Short term running finance
facilities availed by the Group are also mcluded as part of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other pavables are obligations to pay for zoods and services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Account balances are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one vear or less {or in the normal operating cycles of business
if longer), I not, they are classificd as non-current linbilities.

Trade and other pavables are recognized initially at fair value and subssquently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on
translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the
respective liabilities.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the consolidated statement ol financial positlion when the Group has
a legal or constructive abligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodving economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Previsions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect curreni best estimates.

The Group accounts for its warranty obligations based on historieal trends when the underlying
products or services are sold.

Revenue Recognition

- Revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable for sale of goods,
net of sales tax, sales returns and related discounts. Revenue is recognized when or as
performance obligation is satisficd by transferring control of promised goods or services to a
customer and control either transfers overtime or point in time,
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- Earned carrving churges representing the difference between the cash sale price and hire
purchase price are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss using the
effective interest rate method over the period of the sale under the hire purchase

- Income on profit and loss sharing bank accounts are recognized on accrual basis using the
effective interest rate method.

4.13  Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in
the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity / surplus on revaluation of fived assetc ar in other comprehensive income,

The Holding Company has opted for Group Taxation under section 59AA of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. Under this approach, the Group is accounting for the related taxes under
standalone taxpayer approach. Under this approach, current and deferred taxss are recognized as
if' the entity was taxable in its own right,

Current

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of
previous years. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after
taking jnto account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, The amount of unpaid
income tax in respect of the current ar prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid
over what is due in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary
differences arising from differences belween the carrying amount of assets and ligbilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the
taxable profit. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or lighility in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of transaction
neither affects accounting nor taxahle profit or loss. Deferred tax lisbilities are pgenerally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax rales (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized, Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or
charged 10 other comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in other
comprehensive income or equity.

4.14 Borrowings

All interest bearing borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration
received less directly atributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional / contractual
right to defer settlement of the linbility for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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Finance cost are accounted for on an accrual basis and are included in accrued finance cost to the
extent of the remaining amount unpaid.

General and specific bomowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
te get ready for their imended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognized in the conselidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred,

4.15  Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured al the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amontized cost, fair value
through consolidated other comprehensive income (FVOCI), fair value through consolidated
statement of profit or loss (FVTPL) and in case of an equity instrument it is classified as FVOCI
or FVTPL,

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the

Amaor, cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within 2 business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impaimment losses, Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade
debts and other receivables.
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Debi Tnstriiment = FVOCT

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whase objective is achieved hy both eallecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCL, On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCT are reclassified to consclidated statement of
profit or loss. However, the Group has no such instrument at the reporting date.

Equity Instrument - FUOCH

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading. the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This
election is made on an investmeni-by-investment basis.

These assets ars subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are recognized as income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other net gnins and losses are recognized in OCI and these
investments are never reclassified to statement of profit or lass. However, the Group has no such
instrument at the reporting date.

Fair value through statement rofit or loss (FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as deseribed above are
measured at FVTPL,

On initial recognition, the Group may irmevocably designate a financial asscl that otherwise meets
the requirements ta be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at EVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,

These assets wre subsequently measured wl fair value, Wet gains and losses, including any inlerest
or dividend income, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. The Group has no such
investments at the reporting date,

Financial assets — Busi Fi

For the purpases of the assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the prineipal amount outstanding during & particular period of time and

for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a
profit margin,
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In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Group's claim w0 cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured al amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, while the interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group's financial linbilities comprise trade and other payables, long and short term
borrowings, lease liabilities, loan from sponsors, accrued markup and dividend payable.

Derecognition

Einancial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substamially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group might enter into transactions whereby il transfers assets recognized in its consolidated
statement of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

nancial liabilit

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognizes a Ninancial lisbility when ils terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a
financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount eéxtinguished and the consideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsercing of financial assets and financtal liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offSet and the net amoumt is presented in the
consolidated financial statements only when the Group has a legally enforceahle right te set off
the recognized amounts and the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4.16

Impairment
Financial assefs
The Group recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:

- financial assets measured at amortized cost;
- debt investments measured at FVOCI and
- Coniract asseis.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal te lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined (o have low credil risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities, bank balances and other receivables for which credit risk (ie. the nisk
of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrumenr) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

1 2-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months).

ECLs are based on the difference hetween the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects 1o receive. The shortfall is then discounted
al an gpproximation to the assets’ original effective interest rute,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset hos increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information,

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than past due for a reasonable period of time, Loss allowances for ade receivables and contract
asscts arc alwayvs measured at an amount cqual to lifetime ECLs, Lifctime ECLs are the ECLs that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month
ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from defaull events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs 15 the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to eredit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrving amount of & financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group
individually makeés an assessmenl with respect to the timipg and amount of wrile-off based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's procedures for recavery of amounts
due,
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The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using TFRS 9 simplified
approach and has caleulated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based an the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic envircnment, The Group reviews the
recoverability of its trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables to assess amount of loss
allowance required on an annual basis. Impairment of cash and cash equivalents has been
measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures,
The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external
credit ratings of the counterparties,

Nan - Financiol assets

The carrving amount of the Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred iax
assels are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverable amount of an asset or eash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit,

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash gencrating units are
allocated to reduce the carrving amounts of the assets in a unit an a pro rama basis. Impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only 10
that extent that the asset’s carrving amount after the reversal deoes not exceed the carrving amount
that would have been determined, nel of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognized.

4.17  Foreign currency transactions and translation
Transactions and balunces

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translotions at the year end exchange rates of monctary assets and
linhilities denominated in foreign currencies are taken to profit or loss, Non-monetary assets and
liahilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured in terms of historieal cost are
translated using the exchange rutes as ot the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monstary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences are
generally included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

4.18  Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the consolidated financial statements in
the period in which these are approved. Transfer between reserves approved subsequent to the
reporting date is considered as non-adjusting event and is recognized in the consolidated financial
stalements in the period in which sueh transfers are mads.
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4.19  Earnings per share

As required under International Accounting Standard 33 Eamings Per Share, basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit after (ax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the
weighted avernge number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Group is not
exposed to the dilutive effect on EPS.

420 Common control transactions

A business combination (or a demerger for that purpose) involving entities or businesses under
comman conlrol is a business combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the combination, Such
common control transactions have been excluded from the scope of Imternational Financial
Reporting Standards 3 dealing with Business Combinations. Accordingly, as an accounting policy
choice, the assets acquired and ligbilities assumed / assets and liabilities transferred are
recognized under the book value basis (carry-over basis) of accounting.

4.21  Deferred income
Grant in aid

Grant in aid represents the amount received from the World Bank under a project to phase out the
Ozone Depleting Substances (0ODS) by acquiring asset (production facility) which manufactures
such products which are free from such substances. This grant is classified as deferred income
and is being amortized over the useful life of such asset,

fiavernmenit granf

The Group recognizes the benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest as
Government grant. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest shall be measured as the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loan determined in accordance with [FRS 9
and the proceeds received and is presented as deferred grant. The recognition of government
grants in profit or loss is done on a systematic basis over the periods in which the expenses for
which the grants are intended to compensate.

422  Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains |ease. A
contract s, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified assel, the Group uses the definition of a lease in ITFRS 16.

The Group recognizes a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right of use assel is initially measiured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease pavments made at or before the commencement date plus any
initial direct cost incurred less any legse incentive received, The right of use asset 15 subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability, if any. The right of use assets is depreciated using the straight
line method from the commencement date o the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or cost of the right of
use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right of use asset
will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same
basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right of use asset is disclosed in the property,
plant and equipment as referred to in 1 3.1 of the consolidated financial statements.
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate
cunnot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. The Group has used it
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases where rate is nol readily available. The
lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by
lease payment made.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methad. It is re-
measurad when there is a change in future lease paymenis arising from a change in rate or a
change in the terms of the lease arrangement, if there is change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected Lo be pavable under a residusl value guarantee, if the Group changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a
revised in-substance fixed lease payment. When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amounmt of the right of use asset, or is recorded
in statement of profit or loss if the carrving amount of the right of usc asset has been reduced to
zero, Refer note 9 to these financial statements for disclosure of lease liahility.

Shaort term leases and leases af low value assets

The Group has elected not to recognize right of use assets and liabilities for some lcases of low
value assets. The Group recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
on & straight line basis over the lease term,

Sale and lease back

Where the sale and lease back transactions result in a lease liability, any excess of sale proceeds
aver the carrving amount is deferred and amortized over the lease term. However, sale proceeds
less than the carrying value is immediately recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

4.23  Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chiel operating decision-maker, The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the Board of Directors of the Holding Company that makes the strategic decisions. These
consolidated financial statements are prepared on the basis of single reportable segment as the
Board of Directors views the Group's operations as one reportable segment.

4.24  Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved International Financial
Reporting Standards

The follewing International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2021;

-  COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to [FRS 16) — the Intcrnational
Accounting Standards Board (the Board) has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the
amendmenis) o provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for renl concessions, The
amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 01 June 2020, with earlier
application permitted. Under the standard's previous requirements, lessees assess whether
rent concessions are lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting
for lease medifications. This generally involves remeasuring the lease liability using the
revised lease payments and a revised discount rate. In light of the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic, and the fact that many lessees areé applying the standard tor the first time in their
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financial statements, the Board has provided an optional practical expedient for lessees.
Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible remt
concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted 1o accourt for them as if they
were not lease modifications. Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they
occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-12 pandemic and if all the following criteria are
met:

- any reduction in lease payments affects enly payments originally due on or before 30
June 2021; and

= there is no substantive change 1o the other terms and conditions of the lease.

Intcrest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16 is applicable for annual financial periods beginning on or after 01 January
2021, with earlier application permitted. The amendments introduce a practical expedient to
account for modifications of financial assets or financial liakilities if a change results
directly from IBOR reform und occurs on an *economically equivalent” basis. In these cases,
changes will be accounted for by updating the effective interest rate. A similar practical
expedient will apply under TFRS 16 for lessees when accounting for lease modifications
required by IBOR reform. The amendments also allow a series of exemptions from the
regular, strict rules around hedge accounting for hedging relationships directly affected by
the interest rate benchmark reforms. The amendments apply retrospectively with earlier
application permitted, Hedging relationships previously discontinued solely because of
changes resulting from the reform will be reinstated if cartain conditions are mel.

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to [AS 37) effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding
paragraphs which clarifies what comprise the cost of Tulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling a
contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required to
apply the amendments 1o contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of
initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the
amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments us an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other
component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020:

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2022,

- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received
between the entity (the horrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether 1o derecognize a financial
liability.

- IFRS 16 — The amendment pantially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying
IFRS 16 by excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by
the lessor, The objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that
might arise in lease incentives.

- IAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of LAS 41 for

entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique.
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—  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to TAS 16)
effective for the annual period beginning on or afier 01 January 2022, Clarifies that zales
proceeds and cost of items preduced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss in accordance
with applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of those items applving the
measurement requirements of [IAS 2. The standard also removes the requirement of
deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those
amendments retrospectively, but enly 1o items of property, plant and equipment that are
brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by managemeni on or afier the beginning of the earliest period presented in
the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall
recagnize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the
beginning of that earliest period presented.

—~  Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to [FRS 3) - Reference to the
Conceptual Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of
and added paragraphs 21A, 218, 21C and 234 1o IFRS 3 . An entity shall apply those
amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 01 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted if at the same time or earlier an entity also applies all the
amendments made by Amendments 1o References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards, issued in March 2018,

- Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying [FRS 9 (Amendments to [FRS 4) - In
response to concemns regarding temporary accounting mismatches and volatility, and
increased costs and complexity, the Board issued amendments to TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
in 2017. The two optional sclutions raised some considerations which required detailed
analysis and management judgement. On the issue of IFRS 17 (Revised) Insurance Contracts
in June 2020, the end date for applying the two options under the IFRS 4 amendments was
extended to 01 January 2023, alipned with the effective date of [IFRS 17,

- Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to [AS 1) effective for the
annual period beginning on or afier 01 January 2022, These amendments in the standards
have been added to further elarify when a liability is classified as current. The standard also
amends the aspect of classification of ligbility as non-current by requiring the assessment of
the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period, An entity shall apply thoze amendments
retrospectively in accordance with 1AS 8.

—  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associste or Joint Venture
{Amendments w IFRS 10 and IAS 28) — The amendment amends accounting treatment on
loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for
less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained
interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been
deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

The above amendmients are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2021
and are not likely to have an impact on Group's conselidated financial statements.
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2020 2019
Nare {(Number of shares)
5 Share capital
51 Authorized share capital  5.7.7 300,000,000 200,000,000

2020

2019

{Rupees in "000)

3,000,000

2,000,000

5.1.1 During the vear, the Holding Compary has increased its authorized share capital by 100,000,000
shares, The authorized share capital thus stands enhanced st Rs. 3,000 million, divided into
300,000,000 shares of Rs. 10 each, and accordingly the Memorandum and Anticles of Association

of the Holding Company have been amended,

52 Tssued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2020

1019

(Number of shares)

Fully pald-up ordinary shares of

2020

2019

(Rupees in '000)

Rs. 10 eaclh
Issuad for cash 11,461,568 11,461,568 114,616 114,616
Issued for consideration

other than cash 703,733 T03,733 7037 7.037
Issued as paid bonus shares 78,988,759 78,988,759 789,888 789,888
Issued under scheme of

amalgamation 96,450,000 Q6,450,000 264,500 964,500

187,604,060 187,604,060 1,876,041 1,876,041
- | Reconciliation of
ordinary shares

Balance as at 01 January 187,604,060 163,133,965 1,876,041 1,631,340
Ordinary shares issued

as fully paid bonus shares - 24 470,005 - 244 701
Balance as at 31 December IS'IEGIMEMU 187,604,060 1.876,041 1,876,041

54 Ordinary shares of the Holding Company held by associated persons and undertaking at year end

are as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Percentage held) (Numher of shares)
*Poseidon Synergies (Private) Limited 5.69% 6.00% 10,680,183 11,253,183
Chief Executive Officer and
his spouse and minor children

- Haroon Ahmad Khan (CEQ) 38.32% 38.32% 71,893,524 71,893,524
- Nighat Haroon Khan (Wife of CEO) 10.99%, 15.64% 20,617,274 29,346,274
- Dependent children of CEQ 0.00% 1.66% - 3,107,875

25.00% 61.62% 103,190.981 115,600,856

* Owned by Chief Executive Officer and his wife.
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£S5 Pursuant 10 Scheme of Arrangement, approved by Honorable Sindh High Court through its Order
dated 22 May 2018, Singer Pakistan Limited was merged and combined with Cool Industries
(Private) Limited and Link Wel (Private) Limited. The Holding Company issued 96,450,000
shares to the shareholders of Cool Industries (Private) Limited and Link Wel (Private) Limited
pursuant to the same scheme,

5.6 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared (if any), and are
entitled to one vote per share atl meetings of the Holding Company.

Share premiom
This represents excess of market value over the face valuc of shares issued under the scheme of
arrangement. This reserve can only be utilized by the Group for the purpose specified in Section B1(2) of

the Companies Act, 2017,

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax

2020 2019
Naze (Rupees in "0040)
Revaluation Surplus - as on 01 January 507,382 163,083
Surplus on revaluation arisen during the vear - 355,409
Surplus on sale of buildings on freehold land
transterred to retained eamings - (6.441)
Incremental depreciation transferred to equity (34,241) (4,669)
473,141 507,382
Defzrred tax liability - as on 01 January (144,838) (45,688)
Deferred tax on revaluation arisen during the year - (101,012)
Tax effect on sale of buildings on freshold
land transferred to retained earnings . 1,431
Tax effect on transfer of incremental depreciation
to retained eamnings 9,768 1,064
Adjustment resulting from change of tax rate 100 (633)
Deferred tax liability (134,970) (144,838)
Tl&72 338,171 362,544

i J | Balance as at 31 December includes surplus on land of Rs. nil (2019; Nil), building on freehold
land of Rs. 103.62 million (2019; Rs. 107.47 millicn) and plant and machinery of Rs, 234.53
million (2019: Rs. 255.71 million),

7.2 The Group revalued its freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery during
the financial vear 2017 and 2019, The latest revaluation was carried out on 31 December 2019,
This was conducted by M/s Asif Associates (Private) Limited. Frechold land was revalued on the
basis of current market value whereas other assets were revalued on the basis of depreciated
market values. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per kanal for land,
price per square foot for buildings and present operational condition and age of plant and
machinery,
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10

20 019

Lense labilities Note (Rupees in “008)
Bulding under right of s - smaecured Wi | 171830 I [ 498,425
Other sasels wnder night of use = srcmredd 2 Bo634 a6, B00
388454 565,325
Crarent matu iy [92.720) (127 562)
164,734 437 563

i ————

Thee fisture snindmaun lease paymenis and their presedt viabuss towhich the Group s committed under ¥ anous lease soangemends ae & follows

L8] Bulldlng under right of use - unsecared 038 2018

Minimum Presestealoe  Minmum Presant value of
lease Flnance cosi al minimum leass Firamice cost mimuren |esse

payments lease payments paymenis PayTRents

{ Rupees im "00K1}
Mot later than ohe yenr w634 10,744 O ] 154368 55,3451 oo 1ol el
Larr then ane year and not Inter

tham five years ARA234 S4304 201,930 52,155 121,747 1599408
IR7.568 115,045 271,820 75 573 177,008 I9BAT5

The Ciroug has recognizad lease buildings on aceount of shops and warshouses rented cut. The runwining temure of contasts mnges Tom 23 w0 120 mimih paysble
monthly, quanerly and annnally. Leass labil ity v ealcaled m diseount rate ranging from 12 00% w0 15 365

22  Owher asacts under right of une - secured e ] 219
Minimam Present valoe AMmnirom Prasent value of
lwaisn Fimasce coal o b leass Fmance cost  immumum ivase
pEymenTE lease payments peymmEs PaymeTY
[Rupoes L ‘00
Nok later than onc. vear 29 548 Tol8 1 H30 31,7137 5192 L EL
Later than one year gnd niot fater
than five vears A1 5,508 63,804 48 54k £5%3 18258

103,160 16,525 [T B2 RS 15 385 £6,8110

The ubove represents finance leases entered into with certain fmancia] institwicon for plam and machinery and vekicles: Morthly pevmenia of leases comy mark-up
ates at KIBOR plus 1 5% to 3% per annum {2019 KIBGOR ples | 3% 1o 5% per annum) RIBOR 18 one, thrée and stx months averags ask side. At the year-end the
applicabla rass rarged betweon 3.1 T to 16,500 (2019 5.43% to 1 4.09% ) per anmum.

During the currend year, the Holding Company entered inin Jeass mmangrments of misets amounting o R 4 76 million. These obligations are payable i mpndily
inseafiments Rs 003 mallion 1o Rs 0008 mallion and carry & moark up razear 3 monds KIROA = 2 535 per armum

2020 219

Employes retirement banelin Noge (Rupess in 006}
Clxifiod wnder non gurrens goess
Emplayer relirgmunt beosfit
- Ferssom fund fag - {1388}
(&) wnder man-current fiabilifise
Emplayae meitrement bengfits
- Pension flund 1.2 3385 .
- Gratuity fund - permanen! emg | oyeed [Fy 16311 211,088
. Givatuity - field u=fT iz LS 1R

38510, AL

101 Pemaicn schems ks aviilable o permansin full e smployess i e esesutnd sl manege grades neludiog e Rl working dbectes b essluding
persons werking B4 tomporany, Tainses or apprentice emplovees Minimurn yezem of service for qualifyetg to pension i 15 yeard. Emplogecs are catitled to
Pension o retivement at 37 years of age Giratuty w the permansnl emopl oyvees (s payable on porail eteersent o the sge of 37 years, natural death, we. and 15
pavakle ondy on the menbmum complenon of 4 vears of service with the Geoup Both of theae benefits relate only 1o old emplovess of former Singer Pakistan
Limuted (belure the eifective date of amalgamstion) and tus benefit has been Beese o tie lovel thal exisied as st 31 May 2019 Enpluyees who bave nol
completed the term, their related charge was reversed On freese date gmtuity s pavable 10 field staff only on completion of minimum & yewrs of service with

the Grom
The details of emplayee retirement benefity based on sctusrip] yalustons carried out by an independent sctunry 1y 5t 7] Peecsnber 2020 whcer the Projected
Uit Credit method are giver below.
The principal ssmemptiony used in the sctuarial valustion are as follows
Pension Fasd Gratuity
Permanent employees |funded) Fileld ataff {unfanded)
2020 29 W0 e 00 205
) %) ] (%) (%) %)
1) Discount rebe per annam 9.75 1128 49.75 1125 1128 1as
2 Bpected per anmum rite of mcresie in
Amure mlares / cormission Nl ml - & (i ] B
3) Engyeted rte of incrowse in peuaion N Ml
4) Mortality rates SLIC SLIC SLIC 3L SLIC SLIC
(200105 -1 (2000081 (2001-05)-1 (20010431 [200[-085)-1 (2001-05)-1
oy
WA Lag s,
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Pension Fund G ratuity

Permancnt employees Field staffl (unfunded)
020 2019 2020 2019 zn 2019

109 Compositien of plan asses {Rupees i '(4W)

Cash and cash equivalents 24,703 22,656 446 1,068 - -

13ebi instruments - Covermment

Bonds / Secuninies

i} Pakistan investmem Bomds - 230197 - - - -

i)  Special Savings Certificates - - - = o =

wi)  Treasury bills - " - . - -

v} Curtent liabilitles 40,470 20329 - - a .

Total fuir value of plan sssets 65173 665782 A4 1 955 - -
1010 Historical inform ation 31 December

2020 2018 2008 017 2014

Penglen fund (Rupees in "000)

Present value of the defined henefit ohlipation 68,528 £i3,394 69,324 90,115 80,268

Fairvalue of plan asscts (65,173) {66, T82) (T3 284) (84.402) (A1.782)

(Surplus) / defieit in the plan 3,158 [ERLET] (5.960) 5713 18 426

Financial sssumptions erising on plan Habilities 6,508 5.932 :B.II!tSIr {I,ﬁli; 4,257

Expericnce adjustments arising on plan | iabilhbies (579 h,204) (833} 4,633 { 148K}

Fxperience adjustiments arising on plan sspets (1175} _hwll. (3,437 156 2102

Girntaity - funded

Present valve of the defined benefit ohligation 16,757 25043 4717k 45 BrS 34, 166

Fairvalue of plan nssets [4486) {1.95%) (4.,698) {14.142) {14,386}

Deficit in the plan 16,411 23 1BK 42480 31,723 15,780

Financial assumptions arising on pian liabilitics Ty 1. 525 1301 67 (201

Experience adjustments ansing on plan linbilines (1,074} {9,370) 1,855 7,126 (E441)

Experience adjustments arising on plan sssels (147} 194) [1.35%) 269 1022

Grataity « upfunded

Present value of the defined benefir obligation 18,945 16,124 19,343 17,081 13346
10.11  Sensitivity analvsis on significant actuarisl sssum ptions

31 Decewber 2030
Penslon Grawmity
Acrarial liabiliy :;';ﬂiin Inerease in Drecrease in Increase in Decrease in
assumption  assumplion  sssumption  essumption
Discount rale 0.5% 66,215 TLOU4 16,412 17,105
Salary increnses 0.5% . - - =

The weighted average of plan duration for pension is f 98 wears (2019 6 52 yenrs) while for funded gratuity 13 4. 03 yeam (2019 3 26 years).

10.12  darority profile of the defined henefit ohligntion - undiscounted payments

Time in vears
1 1 k| 4 5 610
(Rupees in "0440)

Disirthutton af ttming af henefit paymeniy

= Pension 3846 7846 8067 74844 7.808 36,866
- Ghrutuity-funded 4,114 2411 1,896 1,024 2332 10254
7960 10,257 10,963 B,968 10,040 47,160

10,13  Expecied charge to staiement of profit or loss for post employment funded gratuity and pension plans for the year ending 31 December 2021 are
Rs. 0.31 mullionand Rs. 1.35 million respectively

Gratuity :
Pension permancat ﬂm':::rw

stnft

10.14  Number of employees covered in the scheme 34 37 404

112 (TP
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2020 2019

Deferred income Nowe {(Rupees in "000)
Sale and |ease back 1L 2304 5610
Grant in aid 1.3 8268 9,964
Government grant IL3 10,200 -
20,372 15,374
1.1 Sale nnd lease back
Details of the movement in the
(eross balance:
Balonee as at 01 January 36,576 36,576
Balance a1 31 December R 36,376
Acewmulated amoriization:
Balanee as at 01 January (26,479) (21,323)
Amartization for the year 3 (4,487) (4,956)
Ralance a1 31 December (30,966) (26,479)
Carrying amount;
Balance at 31 December 5,610 10,007
Current portion of deferred income 17 (3.306) {4.487)
Ralance as at 31 December 12! 2304 51611]
1LL1  The Holding Company had entered in sale and lease back arrangemenis of specific items of plant and machinery
resulting in a deferred income (representing excess of sale proceeds over the carrying amount of respective assets),
The deferred income has been amortized and recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
lease term.
2020 2019
11.2 Grant in aid Nore {Rupees in "000)
Gross balance;
Baianee as at 01 January 13,953 13,983
Balanee at 31 December 13,053 13,953
Accumulated amortization:
Balance as at 01 January (2,827) (1,666]
Amortization for the year il (1,379 (1.161)
Balance at 31 December (4,206) (2,827
Carrving amouni:
Balance at 31 December 9,747 14,126
Current partion 7 (1,379) (1.161)
Balance as at 3] December 1121 8 5.564
11.2.1 Gmant in aid represents the amount received from the World Bank under a project to phase out the Ozone
Depleting Substances (ODS) by acquiring asset {preduction facility) which manufactures products that are free
from such substances, This grant 15 classified as deferved income and is being nmortized over the useful life of the
asset. Amortization for the year is based on 8.33% of the balanee in gccordance with the depreciation charged on
plantand machinery for which the grant was received.
2010 2019
1.3 Government grant Nofe (Rupees in "000)
Balance as at 01 Junuary . .
Recognized during the year 8 36,227 -
Amortization during the year EF) (9,667) -
Unamortized balance of deferred grant 26,560 -
Current maturity 17 {16,360) -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 1134 10,200 - =
11.0.1  Swate Bank of Pakistan introduced a "Refinance Scheme for payment of wages and salaries (RFWS Scheme)' o
support the companics in payment of salarics during COVID-19 pandemic. Under this scheme, the Holding
Company has availed financing of Rs. 197.46 millien and Rs. 182.37 million from Bank of Khyber and Pak Libya
Holding Company (Private) Limited respectively. Loans obtained were utilized apainst salarics for the months
from April 2020 10 September 2020. These facilies have been recognized at fair value under IFRS-9 using an
effective rate of interest of 9.76%, difference being recorded as deforred grant in accordance with [AS 20.
kjuh:h
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2020 2019

Nate (Rupees in "000)

Trade and other payables
Trade craditors 817,189 1,018,712
Bills payable 164,735 155,481
Acerued liabilities 224,786 224,188
Contract liabilities 17,458 66,789
Security deposits from dealers 15,312 14,838
Provisions in respect of warranty obligations 13.1 6,705 18,864
Sales tax and excise duty - net 136,680 -
Retention from employees 13.2 111,901 100,130
Workers' profits participation fund 133 14,530 32,313
Workers' welfare fund 5522 9,243
Advance from employees against vehicle 19,925 17,013
Income tax deducted at source 134 89,570 126,862
Payable to the provident fund 36 4,621 6,497
Others 135 56,468 73,583

1,685,402 1,864,513

13.1 These amounts are not kept in a separate bank account as required by section 217 of the
Companies Act, 2017,

13.2 This represents deposits of employees held by the Group and is paid at the time of final
settlemant.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)
13.3 Workers' profits participation fund

Balance as at 01 January 32,313 27,331
Add: Allocation for the year 30 14,530 32313

16,843 50,644
Less: Payment made during the year (32,313) {27,331)
Balance as at 31 December 14,530 32,313

13.4

13.5

Amount of Rs. Nil (2019: Nil) has been paid subsequent to year end.

Included in other liabilities are provisions aggregating to Rs. 27.89 million (2019: Rs 61,74
million) in respect of probable loss from pending litigation of the Group against Income
Tax, Sales Tax and Custom Authorities (the authorities). The above provisions have been
made as per the management’s best estimate against various demands raised by the
authorities that are being contested by the Holding Company at various forums as explained
in note 18.
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2020 2019

Mark-up acerued on borrowings Note (Rupees in '000)
Mark-up based borrowings from banking companies

- Long term loans - secured 21,265 30,937

- Short term barrowings - secured 122,257 147,197
Mark-up based borrowings from non-banking companies

- Long term loan from financial institution 22,454 21,796
Islamic mode of borrowings

- Short term borrowings - secured 12,440 16.636

178,416 216,366

Short term borrowings - secured

From banking companies

Running finance under mark-up arrangements 152 1,214,797 1,496,360
Finance against trust receipt 153 2,388,632 1,873,765
Cash finance 154 - 463 455
Short term borrowings under Murahaba arrangement 155 351,523 280,001

15.1

15.2

15.3

154

L2 LRI~

3,954,952 4.113,581
Particulars of borrowings
Interest / mark-up based borrowings 3,603,429 3.833,580

Islamic mode of barrowings 351,523 280,001
3,954,952 4,113,581

Short term running finance

This represents wtilized amount of short term running finance facilities under mark-up
arrangements availed from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 1,466.56 million
(2019: Rs. 1,506.72 million). These facilities are secured by way of equitable morigage
charge on building on frechold land of the Holding Company, charge over all current assets
and fixed assets of the Holding Company and personal guarantees of the directors of the
Holding Company and carry mark-up ranging from 8.81% to 17.55% (2019: 12.05% to
16.86%) per annum, payable monthly and quarterly in arrears. These facilities are expiring
on various dates between March 2021 by December 2021.

Finance against trust receipt

This represents Finance Against Trust Receipt (FATR) available from commercial banks
aggregating to Rs. 2,729.10 million (2019: 2,763.95 million). These facilities are secured
against charge over current assets of the Holding Company and personal guarantees of the
directors of the Holding Company and carries mark-up rate ranging between 9.09% to
16.83% (2019: 10.56% to 17.01%) per annum payable on maturity, monthly and quarterly in
arrears. These borrowings are repayable on different dates between March 2021 and August
2021,

Cash finance

This represents utilized amount of cash finance facilities under mark-up arrangements
availed from commercial banks aggregating to Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 475 million). These
facilities are secured by way of charge joint parri passu charge over current assets of the
Holding Company and personal guarantees of the directors of the Holding Company and
carry mark-up ranging from 9.99% to 18.55% (2019: 16.36% to 18.54%) per annum,
payable quarterly in arrears.
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15.5 Islamic mode of borrowings

This represents utilized amount of Murabaha / Istisna borrowings available from banks
ageregating to Rs. 352 million (2019: Rs. 280 million). These facilities are secured against
charge over all current assets and fixed assets of the Holding Company and personal
puarantees of the directors of the Holding Company and carrying mark-up rates ranging
from 9.06% to 15.41% (2019: 12.30% to 16.65%) per annum payable quarterly in arrears.
These borrowings are repayable between April 2020 to June 2020.

15.6 Unavailed credit facilities

The facilities for opening of letter of credits and guarantees as at 31 December 2020
amounted to Rs. 824 million ol which remaining unutilized amount was Rs. 506 millien.

15.7 During the year ending 31 December 2020, the Holding Company has availed the regulatory
relief given by State Bank of Pakistan through its BPRD circular letter no. 13 of 2020
deferring the principal payments due under facilities by 360 days with a restriction imposed
by financial institutions on Holding Company for not making dividend payment during the
period of relief.

15.8 As per the financing arrangements, the Holding Company is required to comply with certain
financial covenants and other conditions imposed by the providers of finance.

Loan from sponsors - unsecured

This represents an interest free loan obtained from Directors of the Holding Company i.e. Mr. Haroon
Ahmad Khan and Mrs Nighat Haroon amounting te Rs. 294 million and Rs 86.5 million respectively.
Both the directors have agreed to provide and bridge the working capital support required by the
Holding Company as and when the need arises. The limit of loan is Rs. 750 million and will be
repavable on demand.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees in "000)
Current portion of long term liabilities
Long term loans - secured § 464,130 315,000
Lease liabilities 9 92,719 127,563
Deferred income H 21,045 5,648
577,894 448211

Contingencies and commitments

18.1 Contingencies - Holding Company

18.1.1 The Holding Company has filed a Constitutional petition before the Honorable Sindh High
Court at Karachi, challenging the vires of Rule 58T of the Sales Tax Special Procedure
Rules relating to 2% extra sales lax on certain home appliances. This is based on the view
that the said vires are not applicable on the Holding Company. The case is pending before
the Honorable Sindh High Court. An interim order was received in favour of the Holding
Company. The Holding Company is confident that no liability is expected to occur. Amount
involved is Rs. 84 80 million as of 31 December 2020 against which no provision has been
made as the Holding Company, based on the opinion of legal advisor's adviee, is confident
of a favourable decision.

(%5 TPEPN )
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During the financial year 2014, the Holding Company received a show eause notice fram
the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) in respect of short pavment of 2% extra sales tax
under the Sales Tax Procedures Rules, 2007 as amended by SRO, $96(1)2013 dated 4
October 2013 and deduction of input tax more than the limit defined under section § read
with chapter [V of Sales Tax Rules, 2006. The tax authority in the said notice raised a
demand of Rs. 19.9] million and Rs. 11.15 million respectively for the period from 1
January 2014 to 30 September 2014, The Holding Company after consultation with its tax
advisors has replied and submitted explanation with the tax authorities along with revised
waorkings for the apportionment of input tax which in the case of the Holding Company for
the above period was Rs. 0.52 million (regarding the 2% extra sales tax matter, please refer
the above paragraph). Since then, no further action has been initiated by the tax autherities,

The Holding Company had earlier received a sales tax recovery order from the sales tax
authorities amounting to Rs. 195.63 million, for the financial year ended 31 December 2010
against which the Holding Company had filed an appeal with the Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). CIR-A had deleted one item while the remaining matters were
set aside. Moreover, the management, based on consultation with its tax advisar, is of the
view that matter would be decided in favour of the Holding Company. However, CIR has
filed an appeal against Company on the matiers of SRO 647/2007 regarding input tax
adjustments against 90% output tax and payment of sales tax on instalment sales at the time
of receipt of instalment instead at the time when instalment sales are actually being made for
which no hearing has vet taken place. Amount involved is Rs. 171.71 million. However,
based on advice of legal consultant, management is of the view that that no potential
liability is expected to occur.

18.1.2  Income tax assessments of the Holding Company have been finalized up to and including
the tax vear 2007. The Holding Company had applied for Income tax refund for the tax
vears from 2006 to 2011, Income tax refund orders were earlier determined for the tax vears
2009, 2010 and 2011. Income tax refund was released for the tax year 2009. However, the
Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the deemed assessed orders
under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax vears from 2009 to
2012 and raised additional income tax demand of Rs. 19.98 million. However, the Holding
Company had filed an application for the rectification of orders after which the net tax
additional demand was reduced to Rs. 2.02 million (after the adjustment of the refund of
related years) under section 221 af the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 Appeals have been
filed to Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against these orders.

The Holding Company has received appellate orders for the tax years from 2009 to 2012,
dated 29 June 2015, where the CIR-A has set aside certain issues for reassessment, deleted
certain items and maintained certain disallowances. The financial impact of the items set
aside for reassessment and continued disallowances amount to Rs. 43.72 million. Appeal
has been filed with Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against these issues. The
Holding Company based on the merits of matters is of the view that ultimate decisions are
expected in its favour. However, adequate provision is held in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the above balance.
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18.1.3 The Finance Act, 2017 introduced a tax under section 5A of the Income Tax ordinance,
2001 on every pubic Company other than a scheduled bank or Modaraba, that derives profit
for the tax year and does not distribute at least 40% of the after tax profit within six months
of the end of said tax year through cash or bonus issue. Under the earlier section tax was not
mandatorily leviable in case the Holding Company's reserves were not in excess of the paid
up capital (which was the case with the Holding Company as it had accumulated losses).
Provision for the above referred tax amounting to Rs. 9.35 million has not been paid as the
Holding Company's management is of the view that the amendment was made after the
closure of the Holding Company's financial year ended 31 December 2016 and for certain
other legal reasons. The Holding Company hes filed a Constitutional petition before the
Honorable Sindh High Court at Karachi challenging the vires of Section 5A of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 and a stay order has been granted against any coercive action against
the Holding Company under the newly inserted Section 5A.

18.1.4 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), via order dated 30 April 2014, under
section 161(1) and 205(3) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2014 raised a
tax demand of Rs. 0.83 million for non deduction of advance income tax for the period from
01 November 2013 to 30 April 2014 under section 236(G) and 236(H) of the aforesaid
Ordinance. The Holding Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
- Appeals (CIR-A) which was remanded back to DCIR. The Holding Company filed an
appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which is
pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the above balance.

18.1.5 During the financial year 2014, the Holding Company received a notice by Commissioner
Inland Revenue - Zone | for selection of audit under section 214C for the tax year 2012, The
Holding Company filed an appeal against the said notice before Honorable Lahore High
Court which was decided against the Holding Company and audit proceedings were
initiated. The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued an amended assessment order
under section 122(1) and 122(5) through which certain additions were made and demand
order was raised amounting to Rs. 48.10 million. Being aggrieved. the Holding Company
filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A), who vide his
order no. 9 dated 04 April 2019 deleted certain additions. Being aggrieved with the order of
CIR-A the Holding Company filed an appeal before the honorable Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue, which is pending adjudication.

18.1.6 During the financial vear 2014, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue imposed
penalty vide order dated 27 April 2014 under section 182(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 amounting Rs. 0.91 million for the tax year 2013 for the late filling of income tax
return under section 114 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Holding Company filed an
appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the above order.
The CIR-A decided the matter against the Holding Company vide order dated 25 March
2014, The Holding Company filed an appeal bafore Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) against the order of CIR-A which is pending adjudication. However, adequate
provision is held in the conselidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

pamedin
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18.1.7 During the financial year 2015, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue {ACIR), vide
order dated 30 April 20135, under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for
the tax year 2010, raised an amended demand of Rs. 7.85 million after disallowing certain
expenses amounting to Rs. 29.15 million. The Holding Company filed an appeal for the
rectification of order before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) who vide its
order dated 30 December 2015 deleted certain items amounting to Rs. 19,94 million. ACIR
has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) agamst the order of
CIR-A which is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

18.1.8 During the financial year 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue {(ACIR)
amended the deemed assessed return vide its order dated 19 June 2017 under section
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2011. The ACIR disallowed
certain expenses amournting to Rs. 9.58 million and raised the additional income tax demand
of Rs. 1.02 million. The Holding Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). The CIR-A vide order no. 19 dated 21 September 2020
decided the appeal partially in favor of the Holding Company by deleting the additions
amounting to Rs. 4,62 million under the head financial charges and directed the ACIR to
verify the said contention and adjust the refund of Rs. 1.02 million if still available to the
Holding Company for adjustment in the current year. Being aggrieved with of the CIR-A
order, the Holding Company preferred an appeal before the Honorable Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue, Lahore, which is still pending for adjudication. However, adequate
provision is held in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the above balance.

18.1.9 During the financial year 2018, the Holding Company received a show cause notice issued
by Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue under section 161 for the tax year 2017 on non
deduction of withholding tax amounting to Rs. 6.03 million on payments against purchase
of plant and machinery, packing material and other miscellaneous payments. The Holding
Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) where
the case was remanded back to the Department. Being aggrieved, the Holding Company
filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is pending
adjudication,

18.1.10 During the financial year 2018, the Taxation Officer, after conducting audit under section
177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) for the tax year 2014, passed an
amended assessment order under section 122 of the Ordinance raising tax demands of Rs.
25.29 million alleging that the Holding Company suppressed its sales and adjusted
inadmissible expenses. Being aggrieved, the Holding Company has filed appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). CIR-A vide order, deleted certain
additions amounting to Rs. 80 million and the rest of the additions amounting to Rs. 26
million were confirmed. Hence nothing is outstanding or payable against the Holding
Company. The department filed an appeal before Income Tax Appellste Tribunal (ITAT)
which is pending for adjudication and a favorable outcome is expected.
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18.1.11 During the financial year 2016, the Deputy Commissiener Inland Revenue raised an order
under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for non-deduction of tax
amounting Rs. 6.45 million and Rs. 3.76 million for tax years 2009 and 2010 respectively.
The Holding Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals
(CIR-A) which was decided against the Holding Company. The Holding Company filed an
appeal against the order of CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which is
pending for adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the consolidated financial
staternents in respect of the above halance.

18.1.12 During the financial vear 2019, the Holding Company received a show cause notice from
Collector of Customs dated 05 April 2019 and respective order dated 17 October 2019 in
which the Holding Company was directed to deposit an amount of Rs. 24.12 million for the
consignment of Polymethylene polyphenylene isocynate which was cleared through
erroneous application of SRO 659/2007 dated 30 June 2007. The Holding Company has
filed an appeal against the order which is in progress.

18.1.13 During the financial vear 2019, a special customs reference was filed by the before the
Honorable Sindh High Court Karachi against order dated 14 May 2019 passed by Customs
Appellate Tribunal, Karachi where in the Holding Company was directed to deposit an
amaunt of Rs, 30.85 million and penalty of Rs. 1.00 million alleging that from July 2013 to
June 2016 the Holding Company imported four consignments of Polyethylene Isocynates
under PCT heading 38249081 wherein custom duty charged (@ 0% instead of 20%. The
reference of the Holding Company is under adjudication.

Based on the opinion of the legal and tax advisors handling the above litigations, the management
believes that the Holding Company has strong legal grounds against each case and that no financial
liability is expected to acerue. Accordingly, no provision (in addition to already held in respect of
certain cases of the Holding Company) has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

18.2 Commitments - Holding Company

18.2.1 Commitments, for the import of stock in trade, outstanding at year end were for Rs. 185.47
million (2019; Rs. 319.39 million),

18.22 Commitments, for capital expenditure, against irrevocable letters of credit outstanding at
year end were for Rs. 2,16 million (2019: Rs. 1.09 million).

2020 2019
Naore (Rupees in '000)

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets 19.1 5,136,719 5,084,453
Right of use assets 191 351,546 574,009
Capital work-in-progress 19.2 82,995 46,204

5,571,260 5,704,666

_
Wl
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19.1.1 Had there been no revaluation of the frechold land, buildings thercon and plant and machery therin, the net book
value as of 31 December 2020 would have been as follows:

2020 2019
(Rupees in "000)
Land 2,364,500 2,364,500
Buildings 456,559 456,243
Plant and Machinery 1,507,142 1,433,154
4,328,201 4,253,897

19.1.2 The latest revaluation was carried on 31 December 2019 by Asif’ Associales (Private) Limited. As per the
revaluation report, forced sale value of freehold land, buildings and plant and machinery was Rs. 2,128 million, Rs.
344.70 and Rs. 1,433.95 million respectively.

19.1.3 Pariculars of immaovable property (i.e. land and building} in the name of Company are as follows:

Total area Covered area

Location Usage of immovable property (Kanals) (Square Feet)

9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore.  Head Oftice and manufacturing

facility 61.50 340,134
Dina Nath, Mouza Rakh Serai Cheenba,

Tehsil Patieki, District Kasur. Manufacturing facility 8.45 18,069
33- Shohrah-e-Fatima Jinnah Lahore Shop 0.14 754
Ground fleor, Marhaba Center Opposite  Shop 0.536 1,983
Muhammad bin Qasim Park, Taluka and
district Sukkar
Ground [Toor, AL- AMNA Complex, Shop 0.17 913
Civil Lines Hyderabad
Land no 234, Block-6, P.E.C.ELS Shop 0.32 1.717
Karachi
Plot No 34 and 35 Sadar Barar Shop 0.064 350
Karachi
Shop Bearing survey no 13, Sadar Shop 0.47 2,575
Bazar quarters Karachi

2020 019
Note (Rupees in '00)
19.1.4 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 271 158,758 154,887
Marketing, selling and distribution costs el 158,885 144,737
Administrotive expenses 29 70,090 49 502
87,733 329.126
19.2 Capital work-in-progress
Dalance as at 01 January 46,204 33,507
Additions during the year 97,29 266,959
Transfers during the year (60,500) (254.262)
Balance as at 31 December 82,995 46,204
Breakup of capital work in progress is as follows:
= Building 26,019 4,851
- Plant and machinery 15012 35,845
- Electric installation 6,964 5308
= Advance against purchase of land 35000 =
i8.2.1 §2.998 46,204

19.2.1 These represents work in process for development, improvement and installation.

73 T
WSPL Annual Report | 114




lf-{f___:.-‘l

‘wak ay) Fuunp pagipow ; pajeuiuuay ¢ pandxa usaq aaey asn Jo wEU oy jsuteER spRNUED Y] *asn jo jyFi Japun pasiudooar aiam Sutpping asayl,  1°C6l

0F6 1 05681 010°L1 PE9TT 610T
£S8'L 909'sT Tree9l 161°E61 0707
£58'L 909°$T £SL°LI LPL'RT
tit 66E1 006 SES'I YoB2 (00°00S S¥ 01 dn anfea jooq 1au FUIARY S)ISSE SNOLEA
pseL LOTHT £58°91 ZIT'LT
wie| ) oURINSU| - LTH LT6 16€°1 -ap - WITE| ) SOUEINSU] [XA SMnD Pnzng
-op - £ 68 868 6Z5 - ap - 1Y BEy pUuey YIMS pynzng
-op - £Th $09'| 7811 9EL' -op- IV eeny pluey Yims pnzng
- 0p - (zos) LLY 6Lb 8L9'1 -op- pezZyag prREmEyniy AuD vpuoy
-op- 68T IvT6 609 Z81'8 -op- pEZYDS pEUILIRYn|y oprig Jasinuy) pue eofo],
-op - 01€ 81§ 802 b69 -op- PEZYDS PRUIEYn XA SmnD 1ymng
-op- 089 0EE’l 059 005'| -op- PEZURS pRUEyny Aup epuoy
-op- FoT 129 LIT 008 -op- PEZUDS pRUIIRYnA UXA smn) pnzng
uonerofan 6+T 179 TLe SIT' Aueg payy, pezyag peumreqniy BUEI] IyNZNg
-op- L8z 815 1£2 P69 -Op- 7Zy Hye] TXA smn) mnzng
-op- ShE STL 0€g 066 -op- eUEys UXA smn) pnzng
-op- 970'T 1£6'S S06°C 8L1'D -op - qeyy ueupy Jaunyio ] wi0do ]
Aaijod Aueduio) (18) o8 Chh §Z0'T aafojdwy PIYSTEY pastEp 115 B[jo10) Eloi0]
ETRITERY
ViN VIN VIN 685°CH] el YN V/N 1'E61 Juipping
(000, w saadnyy)
punoume
esods] spaasoai anpea Auedwo Jaserpaand S)assE
esodsip jo apogy . & i _ pan[eaay d - e
uo (ss0]) f ey AfEs AN Woouq 1N Jp gym digsuoneayy Jo sagjnanae,] JO SIBpRIE]

spasse paxy dunesado jo pesodsig

E'6l

WSPL Annual Report | 115




a0

2020 2013

Intangible assels and goodwill Nate {Rupees in '000)
Software 49,758 47,996
Goodwill 1,070,206 1,070,206
Brand value 1,582,147 1,582,147
Customer relationships 215179 243,919
201 17.290 2,946 268
20,1  Reconciliation of carrying amounts
Description Software Goodwill  Brand value L'.!mm" Total
relationships
{Rupees in "000)
Cost
Balance at 01 January 2019 78,187 1,070,206 1,582,147 322,769 3,053,309
Additions during the year 21011 - - - 21,011
Balance as @t 31 Decernber 2019 99,198 1,070,206 1,582,147 312,769 3,074,320
Additions duning the year 16,152 - - - 16,152
Balanee at 31 December 2020 115350 L,070.206 1,582,147 312,769 3.090.472
Aceumuloted amortisatio i
impairment lovses
Balance at 01 January 2019 (41,509 - - (46,1100 (B7,619)
Amaortisation for the year (3,693) - - {30,740) {40,433}
Balance at 31 December 2018 (51,202) - - (76,850) (128,052)
Amortisation for the year (14.390) - - {30, 740) (45,130}
Balance at 31 December 2020 {65,592} ~ - (107,580 (173,182)
Carrying amounts:
At 31 December 2019 47.996 1070206 1,582 147 2458189 2 946 268
At 31 December 2020 49,758 1,070,206 1,582,147 215,179 2,917,290
Rates of amortization £-10 vears Nil Nil 105 years
20.2  Goodwill and other intangible assets acquired in business combinaiion
Effective 01 July 2017, Waves Singer Pakistan Limited ("the Holding Company") completed o Scheme of Arrangement'
as approved by the Honorable Sindh High Court through its Order dated 22 May 2018 for the amalgamation of Cool
Industries (Private) Limited [CIPL| and Link Wel (Private) Limited [LWFL] with and into the Company and demerger of
retuil business from the Company and amalgamate the same into the subsidiary. The excess amount paid over the fair
value of the net assets of CIFL and LWPL on ils acqusition as of the start of business on 01 July 2017 represents
goodwill, The fiuir valoation exercise of the recorded tanpible assets and liabilities was completed at the time of acquisition
resulting in recognition of provisional goodwill amounting 1o Rs. 2,975.12 million which, after complction of exercise for
determination of separately identifiable assets, has been allocated to 'Goodwill' amounting to Rs. 1,070.21 million, Brand
value' amounting to Rs. 1,582 15 million and 'Customers rclations’ amounting to Rs. 322,77 million inline with the
requirements of Intemational Accounting Standard 38, (LAS-38) ‘Intangible Assets'
Fmpalrmens wesiing
The recoverable amount of goodwill including intangible assets (brand value and customer relationships) acquired through
& business combimstion has been tested for impairment as at 31 December 2020, by allocating the amount of goodwill and
intangible assets to respective ossets on which it arose, based on value in use in accordance with IAS 36 "Impairment of
Assets®. The recoverable amount was calculated on the basis of five years business plon approved by the Board of
Dircctors which mneludes a comprehensive analysis of existing operational deployments of the Company along with
strolegie business plans and business growth. The value in use calculations are based on cash flow projections derived
from aforesaid business plan, which have been exirapolaied beyond five years, by using 2 sicady 3.00% growth rate, The
cash Mows are discounted using a discount rate of 11.21% (goodwill) and 14.50% (miangibles) for use in eoloulation of
value in use which is sensitive to discount rate and local inflation rates. Based an this caleulahon no impairment is required
to be accounied for against the carrying amount of goodwill end other intangible assels
0o 2me
20.3  Amormisation for the vear kas been allocsted as Tollows: Note {Rupees in '000)
Markeling, sclling and distribution costs 25 30,740 30,740
Administralive expenses 29 14,390 9693
45,130 40,433
(7 ST e
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21 Long term deposits

D‘!pmih‘
- leases
« other long term deposits

22 Stock-in-trade

Rarw and packing materials
= in sdores (in hand)
- in banded warehouse
- 1o transit

Wik 1n process

Flinished goods
- owvn rmni faotured
= purchased for resale

Provisien for slow moving and damaged stock

211

122

13

Stock smounting to Rs. 37850 millien (2019: Rs. 224 91 million]) was cleared subseguent 1o the year end.

Movement in provision for slow moving and damaged stock

Balnace as ot 01 January
Provision during the year
Balnace as at 31 December

Note

2.1

e )
A

2.3

320 2019
(Rupeces in "000)

5,526 5373
15328 21,015
20,854 26 388

686,022 71,111
450,740 648,357
242,078 285,283
1,378,840 1,704,751
204,180 212,851
879,061 1028119
591,832 779,611
1,471,893 1.807.730
(91,868) (71.868)
1,963,043 3,653,464
020 2019

(Rupees in "000)

71.568 20,868
20,000 22,000
31,868 71,8568

Finished goods having eest of Ks. Nil (2019: Rs 498.28 million) were pledged against financial fcility obtained ns

referrad in note 15.4

23 Trade debts

131

232

ket

Retnll network - pnsecured
Considered good

Hire parchase

- Retail

- Institutional {employees of the corporate entities)
Others

Unearned carrying charges

Considered doubtful

Loss allowance against trade debts

Less : Long term portion of trade debis
Current portion of trade debts
Whaolesale - nnsecured

Dealery

Considered good
Considered doubtiul

Loss wllowance against trude debts

Note

234
335

233

235

231.3

2020 2018
(Rupees in '000)
1.205.964 871,960
173,885 146,639
295 24,080
1,380,143 1,042,689
(177.109) (128,124)
1.203,034 914,565
I5K.159 457451
L591.193 1,372,016
(I88.159) (457.451)
1.203.034 14,565
(39.813) (12,493)
1,163,221 902,072
4,721,498 3,344 553
6147 347,817
4,787,642 3,692,370
(66,147) (347,817}
4,721,495 3,344,553
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133

134

235

Movement in loss allowance against trade debts

Balance as at 01 January 805,268 274,365
Effect of initial application of IFRS-9 - 663,968
Loss allowance during the year 4,216 -
Reversal of loss allowance (355,178) (133,065)
Balance as at 3| December 454,306 R0S,268

Represemts unearned carrying charges on the outstanding balance of sales under the hire
purchase arrangements, Eamed carrying charges for the vear amounted to Rs. 262.86 million
(2019: Rs. 191.60 million).

The remaining instalment period of above trade debts are generally for a period ranging from
three months to twenty four menths carrying interest rates ranging between 0% to 64%.

24  Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

2020 2019
Nore (Rupees in '000)
Advaneces - considered good
- Employees and executives 24.1 4,660 12,330
- Suppliers 9,678 9,966
- Expense (o store 4,346 -
- Against letter of credit 37,825 52,180
56,509 74,476
Short term deposits 36,763 29,026
Prepayments 35,891 8,159
(hther receivables
=« Claims 24.2 9,020 2,648
- Sales tax refundable - 33,585
9,020 36,233
Loss allowances against other receivables 24.3 (2,342) (2,342)
24.4 105,841 145,552
24.1 At 31 December 2020, the advances due from executives amounted 1o Rs. Mil (2019: Rs.0.57

24.3

24.4

million). The maximum aggregate amount of advances due from executives at the end of any
month during the vear was Rs.0.74 million (2019: Rs. 0.57 million).

This represents claims receivable from insurance companies, suppliers and product claims
amounting to Rs. 3,57 million (2019: Rs. 2.64 million) against which provision of Rs. 2.34
million (2019 Rs. 2.34 million) is held.

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Movement in loss allowance against ather receivables

Balance as at 01 January 2342 11,572
Reversal of loss allowance - (9,230)
Balance as at 3| December 2,342 2.342

All the above balances are interest free and unsecured.
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25

26

27

Cash and bank balances

Balances with banks
- in current accounts

Cash in hand

Nare

2020

2019

(Rupees in "000)

104,081 137,823
39,122 25,746
143,203 163,569

25.1 These include bank account of Rs. 0.64 million (2019: Rs. 0.31) maintained under Shariah

compliant arrangement.

Revenue - ner

Sales
- local
- Hire purchase
- I;‘.x[mrt

Sales return

Sales tax
Trade discount

Revenue from contracts with customers

2020 2019
(Rupees in "000)
8,481,510 10,147,805
1,846,461 1,647,813
24,075 18,160
(121,978) (153,512)
10,230,068 11,660,266
(1,442,749) (1,190,362)
(261.838) (985,930)
(1,704,587) (2,176,292)
31525{-13] 9.4ﬂ3i974

26.1 Revenue from contracts with customers relates to both local (Pakistan) and foreign

(Afghanistan) markets and represents sale of domestic consumer products.

Cost of sales

Opening stock - finished goods
- own manufactured
- purchased for resale

Purchases for resale
Cost of goods manufactured

Clesing stock - finished goads
- own manufactured
- purchased for resale

WM L ™

Note

271

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
1,028,119 1,076,713
779,611 262,004
1,807,730 1,338,717
1,528,599 1,658,031
4,816,668 5,665,584
8,152,997 8,662,332
(879,061) (1,028,119)
(592.832) (779,611)
(1,471,893) (1,807,730)
6,681,104 6,854,602
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2020 2019
Note {(Rupees in "000)
27.1 Cost of goods manufactured

Raw and packing materials and stores consumed 4,139,758 5,018,674
Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1.1 367,333 371,963
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 19.1.4 158,758 134,887
Fuel and power 80,085 83,223
Freight charges 8,041 49,197
Insurance expense 10,966 7.636
Repairs and maintenance 21,539 22,740
Printing and stationery 17,5801 15,248
Travelling and conveyance 1,241 3,562
Rent, rates and taxes 1,817 -
Communication 437 046
Entertainment 221 518

4,807,997 5,713,594
Work-in-process
Opening stock 212,851 164,841
Closing stock (204,180) (212,851)

B.671 (48,010)

Cost of goods manufactured 4,816,668 5,665,584

27.1.1 These include provision / (reversal) of Rs. 1.64 million (2019: Rs. (7.63) million), Rs. (0.24)
million (2019: Rs. (8.52) million) and Rs. 9.20 million (2019: Rs. 10.26 million) in respect of
gratuity, pension and provident funds respectively.

2020 2019
Marketing, sclling and distribution cosis Note (Rupees in "000)
Salaries and benefits 281 445,181 405,919
Rent, rates and taxes 51328 52,740
Publicity and sales promotion 87,660 120,651
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1914 158,885 144,737
Warranty cbligations 61,000 67,964
Utilities 19,365 27,678
Printing and stationery 4,866 8,154
Travelling and conveyance 36,337 48,313
Amortisation of intangible assets 20.3 30,740 30,740
Communication 6,003 5,835
Repair and maintenance 10,949 8,174
Insurance expense 6,107 4,037
Others 2.062 2,664

920,483 927,606

28.1 These include provision / (reversal) of Rs. 3.77 million (2019: Rs, (2.44) million), Rs. (0.09)
million (2019: Rs. (3.28) million) and Rs. 6.48 millien (2019: Rs. 4.95 million) in respect of
gratuity, pension and provident funds respectively.

e Lok
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2020 2019

Note (Rupees in "000)
29 Administrative expenses

Salaries and benefits 291 278,454 280,766
Legal and professional charges 14,589 31.848
Auditors' remuneration 29.3 5212 5,104
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 19.1.4 70,090 49,502
Communication 15,593 16,345
Travelling and conveyance 15,604 17,889
Repair and maintenance 3914 4,782
Utilities 9,945 13,607
Printing and stationery 5,768 9,209
Rent, rates and taxes 1,767 8,285
Insurance expense 9,378 13,933
Entertainment expense 3,719 3,670
Fees and subscription 10,967 5,693
Amortisation of intangible assets 20.3 14,390 9,693
Charity and donations 292 50 s61
Others 1,576 4,503

461,016 475,410

=

29.1 These include provision / (reversal) of Rs. 0.63 million (2019: Rs. (1.17) million), Rs. (0.36)
million (2019: Rs. (1.31) million) and Rs. 6.91 million (2019: Rs. 3.53 million) in respect of
gratuity, pension and provident funds respectively.

29.2  None of the donations were made to an entity in which any director or his / her spouse had an
interest.

2020 2019
{Rupees in "000)
29.3 Auditlors' remuneration

Audit fee 3,025 2,750
Audit fee for the financial statements of subsidiary companies 884 840
Fee for the review of interim financial information 466 424
Fee for the review of code of corporate governance and -
other certifications/ reports under agreed upon procedures 390 352
Out of pocket expenses 447 738
5,212 5,104
30  Other expenses Note

Loss allowance against debts 233 4,216 -
Workers' profits participation fund (WPPF) 133 14,530 32,313
Exchange loss - net - 33,796
Research and development expenditure 5,613 4,097
Workers' welfare fund 5,522 9,243
Other expenses 12.790 5,799
42,671 85,248

(24 (P15 Y
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31

3

Other income

Income

Profit on a profit and loss sharing bank balance
Income from n

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment- net
Exchange gain - net

Reversal of loss allowance against trade debts
Liabilities no longer payable written back

Scrap sales

Amortisation ef deferred income

Others

Finance costs

Islamic mode af financing
- Short term borrowings

Interest / mark-up on interest / mark-up based loans
- Long term loans

- Short term borrowings

- Lease liabilities

Bank charges

Taxation

Current:
- for the year
- prior year

Deferred tax
- for the year
- prior year

VLR A L, W

inancial assels

nancial instrime

Nate

233

{1

33.1

f2

2020

2019

(Rupees in '000)

163 4
7,853 1,940
2,909 :

355,178 133,065
61,512 9,062
5,733 7,107
15,533 6,117
16,950 .
465,668 157,291
465,831 157,295
33,794 49,507
236,632 183,524
531,796 546,091
56,469 62,229
21,004 26,499
879,695 867.850
130,274 146,349
(5,340) -
124,934 146,349
(45,621) 96,960
62,425 -
16,804 96,960
141,738 243,309
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33.1

33.2

333

Represents the tax charge under the final tax regime and Minimum Tax on Tumover' under
section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (2019: nermal tax regime) under Group taxation
as the Holding Company has opted for Group taxation.

Tax charge reconciliation

Numerical reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit:

2020 2019
(Rupees in '"000)
Profit before tax 269,206 621,609
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2019: 29%) 78,070 180,267

Tax effect of permanent differences:
- Differential under normal tax and final / minimum

tax regime 9,456 (17.604)
- Other permanent differences 15 (163)
Change in tax rate - 55,188
Prior vear tax charge 57,085 -
Others (2,888) 25,621
141,738 243,309

In prior years, the Group has not recorded provision for minimum tax under the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance) amounting to Rs. 44.60 million and Rs. 15.10 million in respect of
year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2015 respectively as the management expects
to adjust the same against its future tax liability under the normal tax regime within the time
limit as specified for adjustments of minimum tax in the Ordinance. Similarly for the year ended
31 December 2016, provision for Altemnate Corporate Tax (ACT) (being higher than the
minimum tax) amounting to Rs. 23.07 has also not been recorded on the same basis.

34  Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The calculation of earnings per share (basic and diluted) is based on earnings attributable to the owners
of ordinary shares of the Group.,

Mo figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Group has not issued any instruments
carrying options which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

Group's earnings per share have been calculated as follows:

2020 2019
Profit for the year Rupees in "000 127.468 378.300
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Shares 187.604 187,604
Eamings per share - basic and diluted Rupees 0.68 2.02
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4] Financial instruments

The Group's Board of Direclors ("the Board") has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Board of Directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management
palicies,

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analvse the risks faced by the Group. to set appropriate
risk limits and controls and fo monitor risks and adherence o himits, Risk management policies and sysiems are reviewed
regularly fo reflact changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through ils training and monagement
standards and procedures, aims to mainain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations. The Board of Dircctors reviews and agrees policics for managing cach of the risks.

Audit commities oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures,
Audit commiliee is assisted in s oversight role by intermal audit department. Tniemal audil department underiakes both
regulor and nd hoe reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of 'which are reported to the Board of
Direciors. The Group has exposure 1o the following risks from iis use of financial insruments:

- Credit risk
= Liquidity risk
= Market risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the sbove risks, the Group's objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital.

411 Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk thal the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Group by tailing
to diseharge an obligation,

41.1.1 Exposure to credit risk
Credit risk of the Group arises principally from trade debts, advances, deposits, other receivables and bank balances.

The carrying amount of finoneial assets represents the maximum credil exposure. The maximum exposure 1o credil
risk before any credit enhancements ot the reporting date was:

Carrving amount

2020 2019
(Rupees in "000)
Security deposiis £7.617 55414
Trade debts 5,884,716 4,246,625
Oither receivahles 6,678 300
Dalances with banks 104,081 137,823
6.053.002 4.440.162

41.1.2 Concentration of eredit risk

Concentration of credir risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have
similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation to be similarly effected by the
changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the
Group's performance for developments affecting a particular industry. Maximum exposure to credit risk by type of
counterparty is a3 follows:

Net receivable
{net of provisions)

2020 2019
(Rupees in "000)

Trade debis

- Retail 1,163,221 902,072
- Wholesale 4,721,495 3,344,553
Security deposits

- individuals 52,091 50,041
- lcase 5,516 5,373
Insurance company (claims) 6,678 300
Banks 104,081 137,823

_sosan 01
YL
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4113 Credit quality and impairment

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to extemal credit ratings, where available, or lustorical information sbout
the counterparty default rates. All counterparnes, with the exception of customers, have external crecil ratings determined by
varipus credit rating agencics and other regulstory authorities. Credit quality of customer is assessed by reference 1o historical

default rares and present ages.
dL1.3{ua) Counterparties with external creédif ratings
These include hanking companizs and financinl institarons, which are counterparties to bank balunces and deposits, Credit risk 1s
considered minimal as these counterparties have reasonably high credil ratings as determined by various credit mting agencics.
Due to long standmg business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong finaneil standing, monogement
does not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Group. Following ire the credit ratings of
counterpartics wilh external credit ratings:
Rating Shert Long 2030 019
Banks Apgency term term {Rupees in "000)
AlBaraka Bank (Paldstan) Limited PACRA Al A 1,144 312
Alled Bank Limited PACEA Al+ AAA 4,626 10.29%
Askari Bank Limied PACRA Al+ Ad+ 1,487 2,394
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al+ AdT 11,085 4,068
Bank Islami Pakisman Limited PACRA Al At 1 l
The Bank of Khyber PACRA Al A T 13,525
The Bank of Punjob PACEA Al+ AN 5,531 8,894
Diubai Islamic Bank Limiled R-VIS Al+ AA 638 53
Fuysal Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA 936 1,295
Finca Microfinance Bank Limited JCR-V1S Al A 13,436 3,990
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AAM 49,110 23,046
Hahib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Ald Adt 36 236
15 Bank Limited PACRA Ald AA- 4 4
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAN 4,642 4,028
Meezan Bank JCR-VIS Al+ AA+ 5627 918
National Bank Of Pekistan PACRA Al+ AMA 611 42,459
Silk Bank Limited JCR-VIS A2 As 393 35
Soneri Bank Limited FACRA Al+ AN 687 68E
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistin) Limited PACRA Ait AAN L11a L.
United Bank Limited JCR-VIS A+ AAN 1,070 1,300
104,081 137,823
Security Deposits
The Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AN 2109 209
Askari Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+ 2412 2412
Sindh Leasing Company Limited JCR-VIS At Al 21,908 2,752
5,526 5373
108,607 143106

41.1.3(b)

Counlerparties without external credit ratings

These include customers which are counter parties to trade debis. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influgneed mainfy by the
individunl characteristics of ench customer / dealers. The Group opplies the IFRS @ simplified approach 1o measure expected credit
losses The analysis of ages of trade debts and loss allowance using the aforementioned approach was determined as follows:

Mot vet due

Past due | - 30 days

Past due 31 days - 50 days
Past due 91 - 180 days

Past due 181 - 340 days
Past due by more than | year
Tl

2019

Girpss Impairment loss (iross Impairment loss

s====c-(Rupees in "000) <« == - - seeeon (Rupses in000) < e e e nns
3,135,139 7,099 1,787,451 12,673
491,860 4,935 321,065 132712
1,223,150 15,955 B51.433 25,166
989,483 19,356 1,307,604 88,249
329,086 12,014 555384 #0086
387256 384,947 569443 576,822
6,555.944 454306 5192510 K015 268

The munsgement his established o credit policy under which each new customer is analvsed individually for credit worthiness

Nane of the financial assets of the Group ure secured or impaired except as those mentioned in these consolidated financial statements. Deposity
and other receivables are mostly due from banks and individuals. Based on past experience the managemend believes that no imparment
allownince i necessary in respect of these finunciol pssets There sre reasonable grounds to heliave that these amourts will be recovered in short

course of time

WL 4 g
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41.3 Markel risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will effect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The
Group is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk.

41.3.1  Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch betwsen the currencies in
which sales and purchases are denominated and the respective functional currency of the Group. The
functional currency of the Group is Pak Rupee. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily
denominated are Euros and US dollars.

41.3.Ifa) Exposure fo currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk on impont of raw materials and merchandise denominated
in US dollars. The Group's exposure to forcign currency risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Rupees in "000)
Trade creditors (USD in "0D0) 6.144 858 981,996 133,274
Trade creditors (Euro in '000) 42 - B,259 -

Following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Average rate Reporting date Spot rate

020 2019 2020 2019
USD to PKR 161.62 150.00 159.83 155.15
EUR o PKR 184.39 168.02 196.64 174.00

Sensitivity analysis

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the US Deollar and Euro with all other
variables held constant, profit for the vear would have been lower by the amount shown below, as a
result of net foreign exchange gain on translation of foreign currency bills payables,

2020 2019
{Rupees in '000)
Effect on statement of profit or loss 99,025 13,327

The weakening af the PKR by 10% against US Dollar would have had an equal but opposite impact on
the profit for the year,

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and
liabilities of the Group.

41.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatch of financial
assets and financial liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.

WA b LR~
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41.3.2(a) Fuir value sensinivity analysis for fixed rate Instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through statement of

profit or loss, Therefore o change in inlerest rate at the repoerting date would not affect statement of profit or
loss.

41.3.2(b) Mismatch of interest rafe sensitive financial assets and financial tinbilities

The Group's interest / mark-up and non-interest / mark-up bearing bearing financial instruments as at the

reporting date are as follows:
2020
Carrying Interest bearing / Nan-interest
amount variable rate bearing / fixed
financial rate financial
instruments instruments
{Rupees in '000)
Einancial asiets
Security deposits 57,617 - 57,417
Trade debts 5.884,716 - 5,884,716
Other receivables 5,678 - 6,678
Cash and bank balances 143,203 - 143,203
6,092,214 - 6,092,214
ancial lia
Long term loans - secured (2,506.331) (2,506.831) -
Lease liabilities {J58,454) (358.454) -
Employee retirement benefit (38,610} - (38,610)
Trade and other pavables (1,269,883) - (1,269,883)
Mark-up accrued on borrowings (178,416) - (178,416)
Shart term borrowings - secured and unsecured (3,954,952) (3,954.952) -
Loan from sponsors (380,500) - {380.500)
(8,687,646) {6,820,237) (1,867,409)
(2,595,432) (6.820,237) 4,224,805
2019
Carrying Interest bearing / Mon-interest
amount variable bearing
rate financial financial
instrumsnts instruments
Financial assels wrrmeie e (Rupeoss in '000) -
Security deposits 55,414 B 35414
Trade debts 4,246,625 B 4,246,625
Other receivables 300 - 300
Cash and bank balance 163,569 - 163,569
4,465,908 - 4,465,908
Financial liabilities
Long term loans - secured (1,732.271) (1,732.271) &
Lease liabilities {127,563} (127.563) -
Employes retirement benefit (41,211) - (41,211)
Trade and other payables (1,490.828) - (1,490,828)
Mark-up accrued on borrowings (216,566) . (216,566)
Short term borrowings - secured and unsecured (4,113,581} (4,113,581) -
(7,722,020} (5,973415) (1,748 605)
!3.256.] 12) (5,973.415) 2.717.303
WA ML~
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41.3.2.1

41.3.3

414

Effective interest / mark-up rates for the financial assets and financial liabilities are as follows:

2020 2019
Percentage
Financial labilities
Long term loans - secured 3% to 16.75% 12.60% 10 16.86%
Lease liabilities 9.17% to 16.50% 11.00% 10 17.09%
Short term borrowings - secured and unsecured B.81% to 18.55% 10.56% to 18.54%

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased /
(decreased) profit for the vear by Rs. 68.20 million (2019; Rs. 59.73 million), This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2019,

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk). At reporting date the Group did not have financial instruments exposed 1o other
price risk.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between markel participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concemn
without any intenlion or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to
underiake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares
are based on the quoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted
market prices used for financial assats held by the Group is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices répresent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’'s length basis.

IFRS 13, "Fair Value Measurements' requires the Group to classify fair value measurements using
a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date (level 1),

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly (level 2).

= Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (level 3).

WSPL Annual Report | 133



~ a OF9LRY'E 9F9'L89'8 =

(S O8T S 08E o
- x TS6'FS6'C ISO'FS6'T =
o = QIERLE OIF'8LI "
¥ = £88°697°1 ERR'AOT'1 =
= - 019°8¢ 019°8% =
= E: TSRSt FEP'ReE -
= = IER'90s°T 1E805T -
= = FITT60'9 = FITTO0'D
g " £0TLr1 - FOT'EFL
- s £L9°0 ' BLY'D
- = OIL'FRE'S = oIL'FRR'S
= = LI9LS " LI¥LS

(000, v saadny)
S|l 1503
£ [paar] TP I a7 [L2LAR [ 519558 PASIAGIIE |8
[FIDUELIL JOYI()  SIASSE [UlauEuL]

anjea Jeg RO SUIALIE

0ZOT PYuR Ig

A gl g

sqosuods wiog ooy

PAINAIEUN DU PANIDE - STHIMOLIOG ULIY) OGS
SEUMOLIOY U0 paninae dnyepy

sajquied oo pue aper),

aLaq Juawaia adojduy

=npqe]] =]

pamaas - sumo| tua Juor

5053 PASILOMIR ~ SATTIG] JOTINTNLL

Sa0uUeq YUBg puB Yse)
SA[qUALA0A1 110

S1K93p 3pRIf
spsodap Aunaag

503 PRI = SjavSD ORI

spuamnEy [EReeay vorpsed jraanmg jo jwamayes ug

(KYIRIAIY AN[EA JET] S U1 $|2A2] J511 TUIPH[DUL SHUILUNISUI [EIOUELL] -UOU PUE SIEOWINISU] [E1URNL] J0 SHN[MA 18] pui Spunows gl ) smors (gl Surmo)jor M|

I'Fir

WSPL Annual Report | 134




o VAN

-

smdin ajqeaRsqe
U0 4 oL TSI ANJUA HEY AL O) ANAISUIS (WP B A 01 A 10adXD 100 $20p juawoeur BAamop] ndur ul sadueyd o) Sumo Fuerd 01 132qns am anpeA 1wy aif]

"RJASST A1) JO UOIIPUDI PUE uonEo] o) Fuiag sindup ageamsgo

-UOU TUEIIEIS U PSRy UOTIN[EA £ [9A3] ¥ juasaidas o) pasapisuoa are Aauigaewt pue yued pue Suping ‘pue] Jo uoneneA Jng a1 “Ksupe pue ued jo 33 pue vonpUd
ruonmido juzsad uo paseq st pupyaew pue wweid Joj UOEN[RA BUL BNJEA YT s U GEIGEISY 01 ANIDIA JU) UL SI0J[EL / STUSEE JWISI [B30] WAL} SAMDU] 1R
juapuadaply snosawnu o) s Janpea 3y Furpping pus paw| 10§ vonEnes ay) Fuuueap uf anaw aenbs sad 2oud vo paseq s Fuip(ing pue puej 10] [apOLU UOHEN[EA S
J%H SEdN] pug {00100 Hopune

GLOT quipaad] 1€ uonEnpEA jo e sueasscdymba puv pigpd ‘Aaadoag porgoaay

Azzuigamr pus yuwd puw duipiing “puery

sanpua arg) jo vonewixonide sjquuoseal am spunoun Jurimed
Jap ‘uojauay Apespoad paoudad 1o aingEld UL W3] HOYS IAMA AT 3S3L) S0 SINNIGET] [RIUTUL PUB SI955E [RIDUBUL J53Y1 J0f Son(Ea 1R) SU) PRsOfISIp o swy dnouey st

i : : £89°651°8 £8U6S 18 -
& = s IBSELLF [RS€1l'r . Tumoog waa poys
1 = = 995917 99591 £ Furunna U] Poys uo pansaae dn-ymp
= = : STRO6E'L TR 061 " sajqeded o puv spei]
- - . L' Lz F Mgatag Tuawaal 3ado)duy
- - E 9TT'9E QETe9s = SaIpIqu| asna]
e = * ILTTELL LLZ2TEL'] = Painass - SUB0| sy Fue]
Jia Zi0j 10 Padnstati JOH S
= = g 806'591'F & BO6 59K
= = - 69679 * 695°E91 SOOUT[E UG PLE su)
= = = a0t = (ME S3[UAIINL D0
- = . STOT'F = STOHTT £109p Spui],
- - = FI1E'CS = Fip'es susodap Ajunaag
(D00, ur saadny) s FIT 30 [PLINDH L]
san|qet| 150
£ 19437 TP I 12427] e, | EossR PIstUowe e
[RIOURULE JAY))  SI0SSE [FIDURUL]
JNEA B unouy SuALED
6 10T B2quada(] 1§

SJUANINLLS Ul [EuEnl uoijsed [BDURUL O JUMUDIE)S UQ)

WSPL Annual Report | 135




42

43

45

Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

a) to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

h) to provide an adequate return to sharcholders.

The Group manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may. for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio calculated as total debt (current and non-curtent borrowings) to debt plus equity.

The debt to equity ratios were as follows: 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

Total debt 65,928,917 5912652

Total equity and debt 15,389,341 14,252,651

Debt to equity ratio 45% 41%

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
Events after the reporting date

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 19 March 2021 have proposed a final cash dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 of Rs. NIL per share (2019: Rs._ NIL per
share}, amounting to Rs. ML million (2019: NIL. 1) for approval
of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on _23 APR 202|

Corresponding figures
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, where necessary, for the purpose of

comparison and better presentation as per reporting framework. However, no significant
reclassification has been made.

Date of authorization of issue

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on A

20 DUV

'“&m% }g\{’“ .Y

Chief Executive Officer” Chief Financial Officer
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accouniants

351 Shadman-1, Jall Road,

Lahore 54000 Pakistan

+82 (42) 111-KPMGTH (576484), Fax +92 (42) 3742 9907

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Qpinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the statement ol [inancial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash tlows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017}, in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the profit, the
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinian

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Smandards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor ¥ Respansibilities
Jar the Audit of the Unconsolidared Financial Srarements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountamts’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Andit Maners

Key audit matiers are those matters thatl, in cur professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the unconsclidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the unconsolidated finanecial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key audit matters:

S. No. | Key audit matters How the matier was addressed in our audit
1. Impairment of intangible assets Our audit procedures, amongst others. included
the following:
Refer to note 42 and 20 1o the
unconsolidated financial statements. * Assessing the appropriateness of the
The Company annually tests the carrying ﬁ;ﬁiﬁ t&s;nmgugp :Lr;gngilali:l;?sm a;u;
value of goodwill and intangible asseis. : : : 5
The testing is subject to estimates and RPQCE S0 Canepligce of e BOREY Wik
judgments made by the management of nppl&ﬁgl‘? e
the Company with respect to future sales SRNARS
growth and profitability, cash flow | « discussing with the Company’s
projection and selection of appropriate management key assumptiors used in
discount rate. vsluatiun. model and t»:stingi the
We identified the impairment testing of S AN orE
separately identifiable intangible assets | ° involving our internal valuation specialists
; . . to assist us in assessing the significant
;:g guodwtl! a.'"ﬁ 8 key :ud“ mmﬂ} estimates, assumptions and judgements
ause  signiicant  degree 0 applied in the valuation of intargible assets
management judgement is involved in and goodwill, including discount rate,
making the above assessment and in growth rate, terminal value and attrition
forecasting the future cash flows of the rate, with reference to available market
Company which are inherently uncertain. information;

« comparing the recoverable amount with the
goodwill and intangible assets recognized
to identify impairment, ifany; and

» assessing the adequacy of disclosure made
in the unconselidated financial statements
in accordance with the requirements of the
applicable accounting and reporting
standards.

2. Sales Our audit procedures, amongst others, included
Refer to nole 4.12 and 28 1o the the following:
unconsolidated financial statements, L oh]'taining an understanding of the process

— - relating to recording of sales and testing the

Eﬂ;cﬁmﬂgcm;pmgdgﬂﬁﬁfff design, implementation and operati
domestic consurer appliances along- aﬁ‘ccnvn?:n:ss of relevant key interna
with retailing and trading of the same. m"m_ls' _
We identified sales as a key audit maner = Es:ﬁ ity Tﬂlhc m?;i;oﬁgmcnﬁ:zic: k }Ecr
because it is one of the key perfgn‘naqce recnr[:ﬁﬁ of sales and cumpﬁance of the
i o he Compary g gives i | ey 'vin sppiale. e and
without transferring of control. reporting standards;

« comparing a sample of sale transactions
recorded during the year with sales orders,
sales invoices, delivery challans and other
relevant underlving documents;

173 2 UL
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8. No. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

* comparing a sample of sale iransactions
recorded near the year end with the sales
orders, sales invoices, delivery challans
and other relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the sale was

| recorded in the appropriale accounting

period;

+ inspecting on a sample basis, credit notes
issued near to and subsequent to year end
to evaluate whether the adjustments to sales
had been accurately recorded in the
appropriate accounting peried; and

+ scanning for any manual journal entries
relating to sales recorded during and near
the year end which were considered to be
material or met other specific risk based
criteria.  for  inspecting  underlying
documentation.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information
included in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020, but does not include the unconsolidared
and consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. [f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directars for the Unconsoliduted Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or io cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Buoard of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,
WAL
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Aunditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an zudit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obrain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting 2 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errer, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern,

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our aundit,

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those marters that were of most
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matier or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

W TP e
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 201 7(X1X
of 2017Y;

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the vear were for the purpose
of the Company’s business; and

d) No Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (X V111 of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mr. Bilal Ali.

Kty Vomea. e 'ule
Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 30 March 2021

ARII21
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 3] December 2020

Revenue
Sales tax and trade discount an invoices

Revenue - ner

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Marketing. selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Other income

Profit from operations
Finance cosl

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)

Note

30
il
32
i3

34

33

36

2020 2019
——-= (Rupees in "M} -——-
8,189,451 10,069,010
(1,484,654) (3,250,604)
6,704,797 6,818,406
(5,243,327) (5.953,268)
1,461,470 B65,138
(461,750) (288,824)
(306,901) (195,144)
{(42,671) (146,728)
375,678 953,190
(435,644) 322,494
1,025,826 1,187,632
(848,730) (826,298)
177,096 361,334
{67,259) (101,249}
109,837 260,085
0.59 1.39

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

0 FTRA

I | rl! A
VCUMl) SSH A

uhﬂri//:w’,lJChief Executive bfﬁcer

Ay

Chief Financial Officer
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss) /income

frems thar will nor be reclassified ro profit or loss:

- Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

- Related deferred tax on surplus

- Actuarial loss on employee retirement benefits

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

(19 [

Lahore

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

109,837 260,085
" 355,409

- (100,866)

(7,143) (2,070)
(7,143) 252473
102,694 512,558

Chief Execulive Ql'ﬁeer

Chief Financial Ufficer
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the yoar anided 31 Docember 2020

Capital reseryes Revenue Reserve
taed, Sriies
hscribed nnd
" . Share | othercapital|  land, | Unappropristed| Totul
pald-up prem ium
capital el TESETYE haikling and profits
plant and
machinery
(Rupees in '‘000)
As at 0] January 2019 1L631,336 48257 5,000 158,525 1,754,670 8375298
Total compreligssivg ncome for the year
Preolit affer txition - - - - 160,085 260 (185
Cther comprehieneive incame (50 the year
Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation - - - - [20670] (2,070)
Surplus on revaluation of property plant amd
and equipment . - - 355409 - 3554089
Feelated defermed tax on revaluaion surplus = = - (100 Eh) - (100,806)
= = > 254 541 2EB015 512,558
rolir i
Transfer against sale of bullding « net of fes - - - (B.249) 6,249 -
Ingremental deprecintion relating to
SUTplus on revaiuation = mef of fox - . . (107 17 -
= = - [6,350) 6,356 +
Shinres sssued as fully paid bonus shares @ 15% 244,701 {244 .707) B - - -
Final dividend for tha year eaded
31 December 2018 @ Rs 125 per chare - - - - (203917 (203.817)
244,701 (244,701) - = 203,917 (202817)
Balanpe as ut 31 December 2015 1874041 4581063 5.000 406,712 1315124 E,5R3 840
Total comprehensive incame for the pear
Profit after taxabon - - - - L% B37 LILE.E i)
Qthur gomprohinsivg loss for the vear
Remeaswement of defined beneflt obligation - - - - (7 143) (7,14%)
. - - 102 A94 102,604
Surplns francferred do aoewmlaled profie
[neremental depreciation relating o
surplus on revaluation - bar of fax - . - (21,626} 21,628 -
Balanee as ot 31 December 2020 1,876,041 4,581,063 LR 385,085 1,950,444 B.7R6634

The annexed noles 11047 foom an infegral par of these onconsolideted fimemein! daiements

WML
Fo
I 1 "|
ry | |
IIr X \{tl
I \.I
fﬁ . g i v !/\ R N
Lahare E .-'IJ ~ Chief Executive Officer . Chief Finunelal Qffiee
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Faor the year ended 3! December 2020

020 2019
Note (Rupees in '0040)

Cosh flows from eperaiimg activities
Profit before mation 177,056 361,334
Adfustments for nen-cash itemi:

Deprecution on property, plant and equipment 18,44 290,578 227,191

Fair value gain on investment property (42,980) =

Amoriisaiion of intangible asset 20.3 $3.838 24441

Finance costs 34 545,730 526,298

Gain on sale of propenty, plant and equipment (1%,113) (1.940)

Workers' Profit Panticipation Fund 14,530 312.311

Amortisation of deferred income (15,533) (6,117)

Liabilities no langer pavable wrtten back (55,167) (8,063)

Impairment of investment in subsidiary - 61 480

Loss allowance aguinst imde debis 4,216 -

Provision for employee retirernent bene fits - met 1,158 (24.850)

Dividend income from sebsidiary Company - (660, 000)
Profit before warking capital changes 1,208,351 831 088
{Imereaye) 7 decreaye in curreni assels

Stores. spares ond loose tools 3,945 (6,673)

Sock-in-trade &08,772 50.32%

Trade debts {2:246,737) (1,237,023)

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other recervables 404,284 R1.587
{Decrease) / increase in trade and other payvables (1204183 (276.981)

(1,450,154 {1,408,7635)
Cash generated used In operatons (241 803) (577.677)
Income tnx - mer 171,868 (31,346)
Workers Profil Participation Fund paid (32,313) (27.331)
Employee retirement benelits pud (9,33%) 9,960
Long t#rm deposits - s [153) {4,342)
Met cush used (n operating activities (110,739) (630,776)
Cush flows from Investing activities
Capital expenditure (279,487) (343,534
Proceeds from dispasal of property, plant and equipment 24,423 24,023
Investment in subsidiary company - {250,000 )
Dividend recaived from subsidiary Company 300,000 380,000
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 44.936 {209.911)
Cush flavws from finuncing activities
Long term loans received 774,560 1,000, 000
Long term loons rephid - (281,250
Lean from sponsors - wisec ured 350,500 -
Leass remals paid (65,692} (59.627)
Finance costs paid (884,880 (07,0703
Dividend paid (181} 203977)
Shor term finances mailed - net 111,934 1,151,801
Net cash generated from fimancing activities 115241 499,677
Met inercase in cash and cosh equivalents 150,438 39,180
Cash and cush eguivalents ut beginning of the year (1380.0163 {1.439,206)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ar (1,120,578} (L3B0.015)
The snnexed notes 1 o 47 forP.n.n integral part of these unconsuhdated Nnondal stileme
ﬁ
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Waves Singer Pakistan Limited

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1 Status and nature of business

1.1

1.2

1.3

Waves Singer Pakistan Limited ("the Company”) is incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) as a public Company limited by shares
and is guoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and assembly of domestic consumer appliances along with retailing and trading of
the same and other light engineering products. The registered office of the Company is located at
9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore,

Geographical locations of the manufacturing facilities of the Company are located at:

- 9-K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan Road, Lahore.
- Dina Nath, Mouza Rakh Serai Cheenba, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur,

On 11 March 2020, Covid-19 (Coronavirus) was declared a pandemic by the World Health
Organization. The spread of coronavirus as a pandemic and consequently imposition of lock
down by Federal and Provincial Governments of Pakistan (Authorities) has effected the
production and sale volumes of the Company during the lock down period. However, as per
relaxation given by Authorities, the Company resumed its operations on 11 May 2020 with all
precautionary measures to prevent the pandemic spread. There is no material financial impact of
COVID-19 on the camying amounts of assets and liabilities or items of income and expenses
except for the decrease in sales volume in the months of April und May 2020,

Previously, the Company used to sell products through its subsidiary company to avail the
benefit of extra tax under Rule 59 of Sales Tax Special Procedures Rule, 2007. Through SRO.
694(1)/2019 the electronic products are now taxable at retail price under third schedule.
Resultantly w.e.f. 01 July 2019, the Company has started to transact directly with the dealers in
light of new dealership agreements signed by the Company and the channel of subsidiary
company has been eliminated.

2 Basis of preparation

2.1 Separate financial statements
These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on
the hasis of reported results and net assets of the investees. Consolidated financial statements of
the Company are prepared and presented separately.
The Company has the following long term investments;
2020 2019
{D¥irect holding percentage)
Name of subsidiary companies
- Waves Marketing (Private) Limited 100 100
- Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited 100 100
WML A
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2.2 Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

—  International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS Standards) issued by the Imernational
Accounting Standards Board (TASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

~ Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017.

—  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

2.3 Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for land, buildings (including the investment property) and plant and
machinery which are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent depreciation and impairment
losses as referred to in note 18§, recognition of employee retirement benefits and lease liabilities
as referred to in note 10 and 9 at present value respectively.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is also the
Company's functional and presentation currency and have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand,

3 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumplions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, lishilities, income and expenses, The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experence and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under circumstances, and the results of which form the basis for making judgment about
carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying nssumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affzcts both current and future

The sreas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or
where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Note
Residual value, market values and useful lives of property, plant and cquipment 4.1
Estimate of useful lives and recoverable amount of intangible assets and goodwill 4.2
- Investment proparty 44
- Provision for employee retirement benefit plans L5
- Stock in trade and stores and spares and loose tools at net realisable
wvalue / net of impairment losses 4O& AT
- Provisions 4.11
- Taxation 4.15
- Impairment of financial and non-financial assets 419

73 [TLWNEN
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Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
unconsolidated financial statements,

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any, except for the land which is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any,
and buildings and plant and machinery which are stated at the revalued amounts less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure directly
atiributable Lo the scquisition of an asset.

Land, buildings and plant and machinery are revalued by professionally qualified valuer with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the net carrying amount does not differ materially from the fair
value (market value). In case of revalued assets, any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount
restated at the revalued amount of the asset.

Increase in the carrving amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
revaluation surplus. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss, and depreciation based on
the asset's original cost is transferred to retained carnings. Upon disposal, any revaluation
reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transferred to retained carnings. All transfers
to / from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred

Useful lives are determined by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected
physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the
use of the assets and other similar factors.

Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the straight-line method
wherehy the depreciable amount of an asset is depreciated over its estimated useful life.
Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset iz available for use and
up to the month of disposal. The rates of depreciation arc stated in note 19.1 to these
unconsolidated financial statements.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
if impact on depreciation is significant. The Company's estimate of the residual value of its
property, plant and equipment as at balance sheet date has not required any adjustment as its
impagt is considered insignificant.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future cconomic benefits
embaodied in the item of property, plant and equipment, Normal repairs end maintenance are
charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred, gains and losses
on disposal of assets are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

Capital work in progress

It is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. It includes expenditre incurred and advances
made in respect of assets in the course of their construction and installation. These cost are
transferred to relevant assets category as and when assets are available for intended use.

WA ML
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4.2 Intangible assets and goodwill

will

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of business represents future economic benefits arising from
assets that are not capable of being individually identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is
initially recognized at cost which is determined as the excess of the cost of business combination
over the Company's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquire. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, Goodwill is annually tested for impairment.

r npible asser

Other intangible assets, including customer relationship, that are acquired by the Company and
have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets such as brand value that have infinite lives are measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any,

Fallowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in profit or loss. The rates of
amortization are stated in note 20.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisalion method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Gain or loss from derecognition of intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit or

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there are any indications that the
intangible assets may be impaired. If such indications exists then the recoverable amount is
determined. (Refer note 4.19 for impairment of non-financial assets).

4.3 Business combination

As per the requirement of International Financial Reporting Standards 3, business combinations
are accounted for by applying the acquisition method (other than those of the businesses /
entities under common control unless it is transitory in nature). The cost of acquisition is
measured at the fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of acquisition. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
liability resulting from & contingent eonsideration arrangement, if any.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. [dentifiable assets acquired and linbilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair volue of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as poodwill. 1f this is less than the fair value of the net
assets acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly in the
statement of profit or loss,

4.4 Investment property

Property, comprising land or a building or part thereof, held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both are classified as investment property, These are not held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. The Company's
business model ie. the Company's intentions regarding the use of property is the primary
criterion for classification as an investment property.

wAnuat~
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4.5

Investment property is initially meéasured at cost (including the transaction costs). However when
an owner occupied property carried al fair value becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, the transfer to the invesiment property is at fair value on the date of transfer and
any balance of surplus on the revaluation of the related assets, on the date of such a transfer
continues o be maintained in the surplus account on revaluation of property, plant and
gquipment. Upon disposal, any surplus previously recorded in the revaluation surplus account is
dircctly transferred to retained earnings and the transfér is not made through the statement of
profit or loss, However any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the
difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is
recognised in the unconsolidaled statement of profit or loss.

The transfer to investment property is made when, and only when, there is & change in use,
evidenced by the end of owner occupation. In case of dual purpose properties, the same is
classified as investment property, only if the portion could be sold or leased out separately under
finance lease.

Subsequent 1o initial recognition, the Company measures the investment property at fair value at
each reporting date and any subsequent change in fair value is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss (i.e. in case where the owner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an
investment property, the fair value gain to be recognised in the statement of profil or loss would
be the difference between the fair value at the time of initial classification as investment property
and fair value at the time of subsequent remeasurement). The revalustion of investment
properties are carried out by independent professionally qualified valuers on the basis of active
market price.

Employee retirement and other service benefits

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme for the eligible executives and
managers (old Singer Pakistan Limited's employees) and a funded gratuity scheme for eligible
employees (old Singer Pakistan Limited's employees) other than field staff. Provisions /
contributions are made in the unconsolidated financial statements to cover obligations on the
basis of actuarial valuation carried out annually under the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Amount recognised in statement of financial position represents the present value of defined
benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets, if any. All actuarial gains and
losses are recognised in 'Other Comprehensive Income’ as they occur. Past service cost resulting
from the changes to defined benefit plan is immediately recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Current service cost together with net interest cost are also charged 1o the statement of
profit or loss.

Calculation of gratuity and pension require assumptions to be made of future oulcomes which
mainly includes increase in remuneration, expected long term return on plan assets and the
discount rate used to convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to
changes in the underlying assumptions.

Defined cantribution ﬂnu

The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme covering all eligible emplovees. The
Company and employees make equal monthly contributions to the fund.

Uul..n.:\-\
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{7 CIMpEnsil

The Company recognises the liability for compensated absences in respect of employees in the
period in which they are earmed up to the reporting date on the basis of un-gvailed camed leaves
balance at the end of the vear.

4.6 Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and impairment losses if
any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred
thereon up to the reporting date less any impairment losses.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on
management's estimates. These are based on their future usability. Provision is made for any
excess of carrving value over the estimated net realizable value and is recognised in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss,

4.7 Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-irade is valued at the lower of cost determined on first-in-first-out basis and net
realisable value except for stock in transit which is stated at invoice value plus other charges
incurred thereon up to the reporting date. Cost in relation to work in process and manufactured
finished goods represent direct cost of materials, direct wages and appropriate allocation of
manufactuning overheads. Cost of goods purchased for resale comprises of purchase price,
import duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from tax authorities)
and other directly attributable cost wherever applicable.

Cost comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories (o their present location and condition. Net realizable value signifies the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and
the estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

The management continuously reviews its inventory for existerice of any items which may have
become cbsolete. Provision is made for slow moving inventory based on management’s
estimation. These are based on historical experience and are continuously reviewed,

4.8 Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment, if any, in the Company's
separate financial statements. At subsequent reporting date, the recoverable amounts of
investments are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, If any, and carrving
amounts of investments are adjusted sccordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as an
expense in the statement of profit or loss. Investmenis in subsidiaries that have suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at each reporting date. Where
impairment losses are subsequently reversed, the carrying amounts of the investments are
increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of
investments, Impairment losses recognised in the statement of profit or loss on investments in
subsidiaries are reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

The Company is required to issue consolidated financial statements along with its separate
financial statements, in accordance with the requirements of IAS 27, ‘Separate Financial
Statements’.

KEMLAA,
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4.9

+.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, and deposits held with banks having
original maturities of three months or less and where these are held for the purpose of meeting
short term cash commitments rather than for investments or other purposes. Short term running
finance facilities availed by the Company are also included as part of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of cash flow statement.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Account balances are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cvcles of business
if longer). 1f not, they are classified as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Exchange pains and losses arising on
translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the camrving amount of the
respective liabilities.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an ocutflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

The Company accounts for its warranty obligations based on historical trends when the
underlving products or services are sold,

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable for sale of goods, net of
sales tax, sales rewrns and related discounts. Revenue is recognized when or as performance
obligation is satisfied by transferring control of promised goods or services to a customer and
control either transfers overtime or paint in time.

Other incomes

- Income on investments and profit and loss sharing bank accounts are recognised on accrual
basis using the effective interest rate method.

- Rental income from investmenl property is recognised as other income on a straight-line
basis over the term of lease.

- Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognised when the right to receive
is established

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer
for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from
the customer. 1T a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to
the customer, o contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs
under the contracl. It also includes refund liabilities arising out of customers' right to claim
amounts from the Company on account of contractual delays in delivery of performance
obligations and incentive on larget achievements.

(73 TTANEN
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4.15 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity / surplus on revaluation of fixed assets or in other comprehensive income.

The Company has opted for Group Taxation under section S9AA of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, Under this approach, the Company is aceounting for the related taxes under standalone
taxpayer approach. Under this approach, current and deferred taxes are recognised as if the entity
was laxable in its awn right,

Current taxation

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of
previous vears. Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after
taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. The amount of unpaid
income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid
over what is due in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of asscts and liabilities in the
unconsolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
the taxable profit. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected 1o apply 1o the period when the
differences reverse based on tax rates {(and tax laws) that have been enacted or subsiantively
enacted at the reporting date. The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Deferred tax
is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or
charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in other
comprehensive income or equity.

4.16  Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly anributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily luke a substantial peried of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

73 TV TN

WSPL Annual Report | 155



4.17

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are imtially recognized when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are direcily attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCT), fair value through statemem of profit or loss
(FVTPL) and in case of an equity instrument it is classified as FVOC1 or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

Amaortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognized in unconsalidated statement of profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade
debts and other receivables.

Debt Instrument - FVOCT

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose ohjective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, floreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
statement of profit or loss, Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCT. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OCT are reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the reporting date.

Equity Instrument - FVOCT

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in QCL This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment, Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and these
investments are never reclassified o unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. However, the
Company has no such instrument at the reporting date.

Fair value through statement of profit or losy (FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured ot amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
or dividend income, are recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. The Company
has no such investments at the reporting date.

Financial asseix — Business model assessment

For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time
and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as
a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company
considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows,
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

HAM LA —
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4.19

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amonized cost using the effective interest
method, while the interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recopnized in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized
in statement of profit or loss.

The Company's financial lisbilities comprise trade and other payables, long and short term
borrowings, loan from sponsors, lease liabilities, acerued markup and dividend payable.

Derccognition
Thanc sers

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it dees not retain control of the financial asset

The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
statement of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the translerred assels. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Finarcial Nabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual ebligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are subsiantially different, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition
of a financial Hability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
unconsolidated financial statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and the Company intends either to scttle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

Impairment
Financial assers
The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:

- financial assets measured at amortized cost;
= debt investments measured at FVOCI; and

= contract assets.

WhHLR v~
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The Company measures loss allowances at an smount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debtsecurities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities, bank balances and other receivables for which credit risk (i.e. the risk
of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result fram default events that are possible within
the 12 manths after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months).

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL. the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than past due for a reasonable period of time. Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contracl assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months), The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

The praoss carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonahle expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The
Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off
based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery, The Company expects no
significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

The Company has elected 1o measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs, The Company has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. The Company
réviews the recoverability of its trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables to assess
amount of loss allowance required on an annual basis. Impairment of cash and cash ¢quivalents
has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the
exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based
on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

KAHLAAW,
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4.20

4.21

4.22

Non - Financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessients of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recognized in unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are
allocated to reduce the carryving amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used 1o determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only
to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognized.

Fureign currency transactions and translation

Transactions and balan

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are transiated into Pak Rupees using the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences
are generally included in the unconsclidated statement of profit or loss.

Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved. Transfer between reserves approved subsequent to the reporting date
is considered as non-adjusting event and is recognised in the unconsolidated financial statements
in the period in which such transfers are made.

Earnings per share

As required under International Accounting Standard 33 Earnings Per Share, basic EFS is
calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weizghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Company is
not exposed to the dilutive effect on EPS.

LA~
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4.24

4,25

Common contral transactions

A business combination (or a demerger for that purpose) involving entities or businesses under
common control is a business combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses
are uitimatelv controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the combination. Such
common control transactions have been excluded from the scope of International Financial
Reporting Standards 3 dealing with Business Combinations. Accordingly, as an accounting
policy choice, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed / assets and liabilities transferred are
recognized under the book value basis (carry-over basis) of accounting.

Deferred income
Grant in ai

Girant in aid represents the amount received from the World Bank under a project to phase out
the Ozone Depleting Substances (ODS) by acquiring asset (production facility) which
manufactures such products which are free from such substances, This grant is classified as
deferred income and is being amortized over the useful life of such asset.

avernment grant

The Group recognizes the benefit of a government loan al a below-market rate of interest as
Government grant. The benefit of the below-market rate of interest shall be measured as the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loan determined in accordance with IFRS 9
and the proceeds received and is presented as deferred grant, The recognition of government
grants in profit or loss is done on a systematic basis over the periods in which the expenses for
which the grants are intended to compensate.

Lenses

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in IFRS
14.

The Company recognizes a right of use asset and a lcase liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus
any initial direct cost incurred less any lease incentive received. The right of use asset is
subsequently measured ot cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability, if any. The right of use assets is
depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date (o the end of the lease
term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of
the lease term or cost of the right of use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase
option. In that case the right of use assel will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying
asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right of
use asset is disclosed in the property, plant and equipment as referred to in note 19.1 of the
unconsolidated financial statements.,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing ratz. The Company has
used it incremenial borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases where rate is not readily
available. The lease liahility is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability
and decreased by lease payment made.

-

K LA

WSPL Annual Report | 161



4.26

4.27

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the cffective interest method. It is re-
measured when there is & change in future lease payments arising from a change in rate or a
change in the terms of the lease arrangement, if there is change in the Company’s estimate of the
amount expected (o be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or lermination option or if there is a
revised in-substance fixed lease payment. When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a
cotresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded
in statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right of use asset has been reduced to
zero, Refer note 9 to these financial statements for disclosure of lease liability.

Shory term [eases and leases of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right of use assels and liabilities for some leases of
low value assets. The Company recoznizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight line basis over the lease term,

le and fease back

Where the sale and lease back transactions result in a lease liability, any excess of sale proceeds
over the carrying amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term. However, sale proceeds
less than the carrying value is immediately recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Allocation of expenses

Certain expenses are allocated by the Company to its subsidiaries in accordance to a basis
approved by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved International Financial
Reporting Standards that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS Standards) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2021:

-  COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) — the International
Accounting Standards Board (the Board) has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the
amendments) to provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent concessions, The
amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 01 June 2020, with sarlier
application permitted. Under the standard's previous requirements, lessees assess whether
rent concessions are lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on
accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves remeasuring the lease liability
using the revised lease payments and a revised discount rate. In light of the effecis of the
COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard for the first
time in their financial statements, the Board has provided an optional practical expedient for
lessees. Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible
rent concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to account for them as if
they were not lease modifications. Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient
if they occur as & direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and if all the following
criteria are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;
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- any reduction in lease pavments affects only payments originally due on or before 30
June 2021: and

- there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, 1AS 39, [FRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16 is applicable for annual financial periods beginning on or after 01 January
2021, with earlier application permitted. The amendments introduce a practical expedient to
account for modifications of financial sssels or financial liabilities if' a change results
directly from IBOR reform and occurs on an ‘economically equivalent’ basis. In these
cases, changes will be accounted for by updating the effective interest rate. A similar
practical expedient will apply under IFRS 16 for lessees when accounting for lease
modifications required by IBOR reform. The amendments also allew a series of exemptions
from the regular, strict rules around hedge accounting for hedging relationships directly
affected by the interest rate benchmark reforms. The amendments apply retrospectively with
carlier application permitted. Hedging relationships previously discomtinued solely because
of changes resulting from the reform will be reinstated if certain conditions are met.

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to LAS 37) effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding
paragraphs which clarifies what comprise the cost of fulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling
& contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required
to apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the
date of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead
the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings or other
component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

Annual Improvements to [FRS standards 2018-2020:

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2022,

- IFRS 9 — The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received
between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by
gither the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf, when it applics the * 10 per cent’
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial
liability.

IFRS 16 = The amendment partially amends Nlustrative Examgle 13 accompanying
IFRS 16 by excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leaschold improvements
by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion
that might arise in lease incentives.

- [AS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of TAS 41 for
entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique,
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—  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)
effective for the annual period beginning on or afier 01 January 2022, Clarifies that sales
proceeds and cost of items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and
equipment to the location and condition necessary for it 10 be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss in
accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures the cost of those items applying
the measurement requirements of [AS 2. The standard also removes the requirement of
deducting the net sales procecds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those
amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are
brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management on or after the heginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall
recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendmems as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of squity, as appropriate) at the
beginning of that earliest period presented,

—  Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments 10 IFRS 3) - Reference to the
Conceptual Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of
and added paragraphs 21 A, 2IB, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3 . An entity shall apply those
amendments to business combinations for which the ascquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 01 January 2022, Earlier
application is permitted if a1 the same time or earlier an entity also applies all the
amendments made by Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards, issued in March 2018.

—  Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 {(Amendments to IFRS 4) -
In respanse Lo concerns regarding temporary accounting mismatches and volatility, and
increased costs and complexity, the Board issued amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts in 2017, The two optional solulions raised some considerations which required
detailed analysis and management judgement. On the issue of IFRS 17 (Revised) Insurance
Contracts in June 2020, the end date for applying the two options under the IFRS 4
amendments was extended ta 01 January 2023, aligned with the effective date of IFRS 17,

—~  Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to TAS 1) effective for
the annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2022 These amendments in the
stendards have been added to further clarify when & liability is classified as current. The
standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the
assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of
ligbility for at least twelve months afier the reporting period. An entity shall apply those
amendments refrospectively in sccordance with TAS 8.

—  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
{Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) — The amendment amends accounting treatment on
loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for
less frequent transaction thal involves neither cost nor full step-up of ceriain retained
interests in assets that are not businesses, The effective date for these changes has been
deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2021
and are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

PIT Py
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2020 2019 2020 2019

Note {Number of shares) {Rupees in "000)
Share capital
51  Authorized share capital 500 300,000,000 200,000,000 3,000,000 2,000,000

5.1, During the vear, the Company has increased its authorized share capital by 100,000,000 shares. The
authorized share capital thus stands cnhanced at Rs, 3,000 million, divided into 300,000,000 shares of Rs.
10 each, and accordingly the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Holding Company have
been smended.

52  lssued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2020 2019 2020 2019
Noie {(Number of shares) {Rupees in "000)
Eully paid-up ordinary shares of
Rs 10 cach
Issued for cash 11,461,568 11,461,568 114,616 114,616
Issued for consideration other than cash 703,733 703,733 7037 7.037
Issued as paid bonus shares 78,958,759 78,988,759 789,888 789,888
Issued under scheme of amalgamation 5.5 96,450,000 06,450,000 964,500 964,500
187,604,060 187,604,060 1,876,041 1,876,041
53 Reconeiliation of ordinary
shares
Balance as a1 01 January 187,604,060  163,133.965 1,876,041 1,631,340
Ordinary shares issued
g5 fully paid bonus shares - 24,470,095 - 244,701
Balance as at 31 December 187,604,060 187,604,060 1,876,041 1,876.041

54  Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated persons and underiaking at year end are as follows:

2020 2019 2020 219
(Percentage held) (Number of shares)
*“Poscidon Synergies (Private) Limited 5.69% 6.00% 10,680,183 11,253,183
Chief Executive Officer and
his spause and dependent children

- Haroon Ahmad Khan (CEO) 38.32% 3832% 71,893,524 71.893.524
- Nighat Haroon Khan (Wife of CEQ) T0.99% 15.64% 20,617,274 29,346,274
- Dependent children of CEO 0.00% 1.66% - 3,107,875

55,10 % 61.62% 103,190,981 115,600,856

* Owned by Chief Executive Officer and his wife.

55  Pursuant to Scheme of Arrangemeni, approved by Honourable Sindh High Court through s Order dated
22 May 2018, Singer Pakistan Limited was merged and combined with Cool Industries (Private) Limited
and Link Wel (Private) Limited. The Company issued 96,450,000 shares to the shareholders of Cool
Industries (Privale) Limited and Link Wel (Private) Limited pursuant to the same scheme.

5.6 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared (il any}), and are entitled to one
vole per shere at meetings of the Company.

WAL~

WSPL Annual Report | 165



Share premium

This represents excess of market value over the face value of shares issued under the scheme of
arrangement. This reserve can only be utilized by the Company for the purpose specified in Section
81(2) of the Companies Act, 2017.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees in '000)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment - net of tax
Revaluation surplus - as on 01 January 508,942 160,123
Surplus on revaluation arisen during the year - 355,409
Surplus on sale of investment property
transferred to retained earnings - (6,441)
Incremental depreciation transferred to equity (29,789) (149)
479,153 508,942
Deferred iax liability - as on 01 January (102,230) (1,598)
Deferred tax on revaluation arisen during the year - (100.866)
Tax effect on transfer / sale of buildings on frechold land
transferred to retained earnings - 192
Tax effect on transfer of incremental
depreciation to retained earnings 8.163 42
Deferred tax liability (94,067) (102,230)
71&72 385,086 406,712

7.1 This includes balance of Rs. 149.97 million (2019: 149.97 million) representing surplus on
revaluation of buildings prior to their classification as imvestment property. Balance as at 31
December includes surplus related to building on frechold land of Rs. 151.45 million (2019:
Rs. 151.49 million) and plant and machinery of Rs. 234.11 million (2019: Rs. 255.22).

T2 The Company revalued its freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery
during the financial year 2017 and 2019. The latest revaluation was carried out on 31
December 2019, This was conducted by M/s Asif Associates (Private) Limited. Freehold land
was revalued on the basis of current market value whereas other assets were revalued on the
basis of depreciated market values. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per kanal for land, price per square foot for buildings and present operational condition
and age of plant and machinery.

W A=
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1020 2019

Lease liahilities Nole (Rupees in "000)
Building under right of use - ursecwred gt 61,495 196,348
Other zssets under nght of use - secured 22 61,351 e, 800
112,46 163,148
Current matunity (55,584) {83,328)
47,262 179,820

The future minimum lease payments and thelr present values te which the Company 1§ commtted under varigus leate arrangements are
az follows

9.1 Baoilding under right of use - unsecured

220 2019
Minimum Finance Present Minimum Finance Present
lease eosi value of lpaze cost value of
P ymenis (IO payments minimum
lease lenss
payments Py meents
(Rupees in "000)
Wot later than one year 41 462 5452 35,610 75,633 20,850 54,783
Later than one year and not later
than five years 180978 3,003 pLE T 104 582 53017 141,565
T 440 B, 945 51,495 20215 75, 847 194 348

The Company has recognized fease buildings on account of war¢houses rented out 1o the Company. The remaining tenure of conirets
ranges from 23 10 [20 momh payahle monthly, quanery and annually. Lease labibity 15 calculaied af discount rate ranging from
1201% 50 1 5.36%:

8.2  Oiher assets under right of nse - secured

2020 2019
Minimum Finamce Present Minimum Finance Present
lease cost value of lease cost value of
payments minimum Iy T ALE I T
lease lease
paymenis pavmenis
(Rupees in "000)
Mot Inier than ong year 24,801 4,827 19,974 17T 9,192 28,545
Later than one yeur and not later
than five years 46,160 4,783 413717 44048 6,601 18255
71,941 9610 6]& B1.685 15, RES G &0

The above represents finance lcases catored mto with cerain financial instivation for plant and machinery and vehicles. Monthly
payments of leases carry mark-up mies al KIBOR plus 1 5% m 3% peranmum (201%: KIBOR plas 1.5 % 10 3% per annum). KIBOR is
one, three and six months average ask side. At the year-end the nppliceble mtes maged between 9 17% o 16.50% (2019 B43% to
14.09%) per annum.

During the current vear, the Company entered (nto lease armngements of assets amounting o R% 4 76 million These obligations are
payahle in monihly instaliments Rs. 003 million to Rs (.08 million and carry & mark up rete ot 3 month KIBOR + 1.5% per annum:

1020 2019
Naote {Rupees in "000)
Employvee retirement benefits
‘ Td.| FPETE (L6

Employes resirement bengfirs
- Pension fund 10.2 - {3,388}
Clanxi, [ r man-curreni fio [=3
Employee retirement benefits - obligation

Grntuity fund - permanent emplovess 0z 16,311 13,088
- Pension fund 0.2 3,358 -

Pe&i ISI{}SS

et uead
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10.1 Pension scheme 15 wvailable to permanent full-tiume employees in the executive and manager grades including the foll-time working
directors b excluding persons working as remperary, trminees or apprentice employess. Minimum years of service for qualifving
to pension 15 15 years. Emplovees are entitled 1o Pention on retirement at 57 yeare of age. Gratuity to i permanent employees is
payuble on normal retirement ut the age of 37 years, natural death, ele. und is payable only on the minimum completion of 5 years
of service with the Company Bath of these henefits relate only 10 old employees of former Singer Pekistan Limited [before the
effective date of amalgamation) and this benefit has been freczed at the level that existed as a1 31 May 2019

The details of employ ee retirement benefits based on sctuarial valuations carmied out by an independent actuary as 8t 31 December
2020 under the Projected Unit Credit method are grven below

The pnncipal assumptions used in the actuarial voluation dare as follows

Pension Fund Gratuity
Permanent employees
220 2019 020 2019
Now %) (o) (%) (%%}
1) Discount rae per annum 9,75 11.2% 935 1125
2} Expected per annum rate of inonexse in
future salarics Wil Hil - -
3} Expected mie of (ncrease in pension il Mil
4) Mortality rates sLC SLIC SLIC SLIC

{2001-05)-1  (2001-053%1  (2001-05)-1  (2001-08%]

102 Amounts recognised in statement of Mnancial position

Present value of defined benefit obligation o4 68,518 61,394 16,757 25,043
Fuir value of plan assets 1.5 (65,173) (66,782 {446} (1,955)
Lizbility / {asset) on the reporting date 2 3,355 (3.388) 16311 23,088

103 Movement in net defined benefin lability recognised in
stalement of linancial position

et {asset)/ lobiliy as at 01 Janusry (3,388) [CR LI 13,088 42,4580
Income / enst reeopmised in profit or loss for the year TiL6 (361) (13,1093 2519 111,741)
Refund ! {comribwion) during the vear - 9,960 (9,335 -
Total amount of reme gsurements recognised in other

comprehensive income (OCT) - actuarial loss | (gair ] Tr 7104 9,721 m (F.551)
Wt hability / (assed) as at 31 Decembar 3388 (3 ,38E) 16311 23,088

10,4 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligations

Lighility for defincd henefit oblization a1 ©1 Jaroary 63394 63,324 25,043 47,178
Benefits paid (7.331) (6.533) (L0,5392) (3,181)
Currenl service cost - 3184 - 3912
Past service cast - {15.053) - (21,832)
Interest cost 6,536 6144 2714 a011
Resmequmrcmenty - actuariol lass / (gairy) an abligation
- Change in financia! azsumptrions 6,508 8,932 P66 1,535
= Change tn cxpericnce adjustments (579 (6,204} [1,074) {9,370)
Luability for defined benefit obligation
At 31 December 68,518 03,394 16,757 25043
WARLAA
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1041 Amalysis of present value of defined benefit obligation

Vasted / mom-vasted
= Yested Benefits
= Non Vested Benefits

Benefit obligation by participent status/ cadre
= Active [ Management
= Retirees [ Union

Tepe af hemefiis earmed o dxte
= Accurulated benefit obligation
- Amounts attributed to future
selary increase

10.5  Moevements in the lilr value of plan assets

Far value of plan assets - at 011 January

{Refund) / contribution during the vear

Benefits paid

Expected rétum on plan assets

Re-meqsure menty on arsels - aciwariol fons
+Change m expenience adjustments

Fair value of pian nssets - a1 31 December

16 Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss

Current service cost
Past service cost
Imizrest cost net of expected retum on plan pssets

The expense is recognised in the lollowing line {tems in
the statement of profit or loss

Com of sales
Marketing. selling and distribution costs
Admimstrative expensss

10.7  Agtwarial Joss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive
income during the year

Aciuanal loss £ (gain) on obhigation
Actuanidl loss on plan osssts
Total sctuarial loss [ {gain) recogritsed 1n OO

Nete

e

Penston Fund Giratuity
Permanent emplovees
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Rupces in '000)
- - 16,757 25,043
= - 16,787 25,043
14,086 16,758 -
54,442 46 616 = .
8528 63,394 = -
68,528 63,294 16,757 25,043
68 528 63,394 16,787 25,043
66,782 75,284 1,948 4,698
= (9.560) 9,345 .
(7,331} {6,933) {10,892) (3,181}
6,897 16,382 195 632
(1.175) (3,993) (147) RN
68,173 66,782 448 1,955
= 3,184 - isiz
- (15,053) - (21,032)
(361) (1.240) 2,819 537
(361) (13.109) 1,519 (11,741}
(238) (R.521) 1,637 (7.632)
{90 (3,271 5 (2,933
136) (1,311) 630 (1,174}
{361} (1%, 109) 2,319 [11,741)
5,929 3,73% (108) (7.845)
1.175 5,947 147 194
7,104 9721 39 {7.651)

Met actuerial [oss on pension fund und funded grstuity smounts to Ry, 7 14 million (2015 Rs. 2.07) million) which bas been taken

to other comprehensive income

10,8 Return oo plan assels

Actual return on plan assets

WAL

Pension Fund i
Permanent employees
1020 019 o e
(Rupees in *000) —
57212 4,391 48 438
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2020 2019

Deferred income Note (Rupees in '000)

Sale and lease back 1.4 1304 3610

Crrant in aid 1.2 5368 9.965

Governmend grant 113 10,200 -
10872 15,575

1.1 Sale and lease back

1LL1

Detalls af the movement in the balance

Gross balunce:

Balance as ot 01 January 36,576 36,576

Bulunce at 31 December 36,576 36,576

Accumulated amortization:

Balance as ot 01 January (26,479) (21,523)
Amortization for the year 33 {4,487 (4,956}
Balunce at 31 December (30,966) (26,479)
Carrying amount:

Balunce at 31 December 410 10,097

Curment portion of deferred income I7 {3,306) {4,487)
Balance as at 31 Diecember IF 1&_ 5,610

The Company had entered in sale and lezse back arrangements of specific items of plant and machinery resulting in a
deferred income (representing excess of sale proceeds over the carrying amount of respective ussets). The deferred
income has been amoriized and recognized in the unconsalidated statement of profit or loss over the lease term

2020 2019
1.2 Grant in aid Nore (Rupees in "(H10)
Gross balance:
Balance as at 01 January 13,953 13,953
Balance at 31 December 13,953 13,953
Accumulated amortization:
Balance a3 a1 (/1 January {2827 (1,666)
Amortization for the year 33 (1.379) {1,161)
Balance at 31 December (4.206) (21,827
Carrving amauni:
Balance at 31 December 9,747 11,126
Current portion I {(13™) {1.161)
Balance as a1 31 December 11.3.1 8.368 9,965
11.2.1  Grant in aid represents the amount recerved from the World Bank under a project to phase out the Ozone Depleting
Substances (ODS) by acguinng sssel (production facility) which manulactures products thot are free from such
substances. This prant is classified as deferred income and s being amortized over the useful life of the asser
Amortization Tor the year is based on ¥.33% of the balance in accordance with the depreciation charged on plant and
machinery for which the grant was réceived
2020 2019
1.3 Government grant Note {Rapees in "00)
Balance us at 01 January - .
Recoentzed during the year 8 36,227 -
Amortization during the year i3 (9,66T) -
Unamortized balance of deferred grant 36,560 -
Current marurity 17 (16, 360) -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 I3 10,200 =
1131 syate Bank of Pakistan introduced a Refinance Scheme for payment of wages and salaries (RFWS Scheme) to support
the companies in povment of salories during COVID-1% pandemi¢. Under this scheme, the Company has avaled
financing of Rs. 197 46 million and Rs 18237 million from Bank of Khyber and Pak Libva Holding Company
(Private} Limited respectively. Loans obldined were vtilized apainst salaries for the months from April 2020 to
September 2020, These fucilities have been recognized ot fuir valug under IFRS-9 using an effective rawe of interest of
9.76%, difference being recorded as deferred grant in accordance with 1AS 20
WML A
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2020 2019

13 Trade and other payables Note (Rupees in "000)
Trade creditors 484,505 744 446
Bills payable 164,735 155481
Acerued liabilities 192,778 207,793
Contract liabilities 17,458 47,142
Security deposits from dealers 5 A 10,904 11,052
Provisions in respect of warranty obligations 6,705 6,825
Sales tax and excise duty - net 184,227 -
Workers' profits participation fund 132 14,530 32313
Workers' welfare fund 5,512 9243
Advance from employees against vehicle 19,925 17,013
Income tax deducted al source 13.3 48,110 84,813
Payable to the provident fund 38 4,621 6,497
Others 134 51,815 81,585
1,210,835 1,404 203
13.1 These amounts are not kept in a separate bank account as required by section 217 of the

Companies Act, 2017.

2020 2019
132 Workers' profits participation fund Note (Rupees in "000)
Balance as at 01 January 32,313 27.331
Add: Allocation for the year 32 14,530 32313
46,843 59,644
Less: Payment made during the year (32,313) 27,331)
Balance as at 31 December 14,530 32313
13.3 Amount of Rs, Nil (2019: Nil) has been paid subsequent to vear end.
134 Included in other liabilities are provisions aggregating to Rs. 27.87 million (2019: Rs 61.74
million) in respect of probable loss from pending litigation of the Company against Income
Tax, Sales Tax and Custom Authorities (the authorities). The above provisions have been
made as per the management’s best estimate against various demands raised by the authorities
that are being contested by the Company at various forums as explained in note 18.
2020 2019
14  Mark-up acerued on borrowings (Rupees in "000)
Mark-up hased barrawings from banking companies
- Long term loans - secured 21,265 30,937
- Short term borrowings - secured 122,257 147,197
Mark-up based borrowings from non-banking companies
- Long term loan from financial institution - secured 22,454 21,796
Istamic mode of borrowings
- Short term borrowings - secured 12,440 16,636
178,416 216,566

WAHGE
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2020 2019

Short term borrowings - secured Nore (Rupees in "000)

From banking companies

Running finance under mark-up arrangements 152 1,214,797 1,494,360
Finance against trust receipt 53 2,388,632 1,875,765
Cash finance 154 . 4634535
Shart term borrowings under Murahaba arrangement i5.3 351,523 280,001
3,954,952 4,113,581
15.1 Particulars of borrowings
Interest / mark-up based borrowings 3,577,566 3.786,49]
Islamic mode of borrowings 377,386 327,090
3,954,952 4,113,581
15.2 Short term running finance

15.3

154

This represents utilized amount of short term running finance facilities under mark-up
arrangements availed from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs. 1,466.56 million
(2019: Rs. 1,506.72 million). These facilities are secured by way of equitable mortgage charge
on building on freehold land of the Company, charge over all current assets and fixed assets
of the Company and personal guarantees of the directors of the Company and carry mark-up
ranging from 8.81% to 17.55% (2019: 12.05% to 16.86%) per annum, payable monthly and
quarterly in arrears, These facilities are expiring on various dates between March 2021 and
December 2021.

Finance against trust receipt

This represents Finance Against Trust Receipt (FATR) available from commercial banks
gegregating to Rs. 2,729,100 million (2019; 2,763.95 million), Thess facilities are secured
against charge over current assets of the Company and personal guarantess of the directors of
the Company and carrics mark-up rate ranging between 9.09% to 16.83% (2019: 10.56% to
17.01%) per annum payable on maturity, monthly and quarterly in arrears. These borrowings
are repayable on different dates between March 2021 and August 2021,

Cash finance

This represents utilized amount of cash finance faeilities under mark-up arrangements availed
from commercial banks aggregating to Rs, Nil (2019; Rs. 475 million). These facilities are
secured by way of charge joint parri passu charge over current assets of the Company and
personal guarantees of the directors of the Company and carry mark-up ranging from 9.99%
to 18.55% (2019: 16.36% to 18.54%) per annum, payable quarterly in arrears.

(71 (FE A N
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17

15.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

Islamic mode of borrowings

This represents utilized amount of Murabaha / Istisna borrowings available from banks
aggregating to Rs. 352 million (2019: Rs. 280 million), These facilities are secured against
charge over all current assets and fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the
directors of the Company and carrying mark-up rates ranging from 9.06% to 15.41% (2019:
12.30% to 16.65%) per annum pavable quarterly in arrears. These borrowings are repayable
between April 2020 to June 2020.

Unavailed credit facilities

The facilities for opening of letter of credits and guarantees as at 31 December 2020
amounted to Rs. 824 million of which remaining unutilized amount was Rs. 506 million.

During the year ending 31 December 2020, the Company has availed the regulatory relief
given by State Bank of Pakistan through its BPRD circular letter no. 13 of 2020 deferring the
principal payments due under facilities by 360 days with a restriction imposed by financial
institutions on Company for not making dividend payment during the period of relief.

As per the financing arrangements, the Company is required to comply with certain financial
covenants and other conditions imposed by the providers of finance.

Loan from spansors - unsecured

This represents an interest free loan obtained from Directors of the Company i.e. Mr. Haroon Ahmad
Khan and Mrs Nighat Haroon amounting to Rs 294 million and Rs 86.5 million respectively. Both the
directors have agreed to provide and bridge the working capital support required by the Company as
and when the need arises. The limit of loan is Rs 750 million and is repayable on demand.

2020 2019
Current portion of long term liabilities Note (Rupees in '000)
Long term loans - secured & 464,130 313,000
Lease liabilities g 55,554 83,328
Deferred income 1 21,045 5,648
540,759 403,976

AL
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Contingencies and commitments

18.1

18.1.1

18.1.2

Contingencies

The Company has filed a Constitutional petition before the Honorable Sindh High Court at
Karachi, challenging the vires of Rule 58T of the Sales Tax Special Procedure Rules relating
to 2% extra sales tax on certain home appliances. This is based on the view that the said vires
are not applicable on the Company. The case is pending before the Honorable Sindh High
Court. An interim order was received in favour of the Company. The Company is conlident
that no liability is expected to oceur. Amount involved is Rs. 84.80 million as of 31 December
2020 against which no provision has been made as the Company, based on the opinion of
legal advisor's advice, is confident of & favourable decision.

During the financial year 2014, the Company received a show cause notice from the Federal
Board of Revenue (FBR) in respect of short payment of 2% extra sales tax under the Sales
Tax Procedures Rules, 2007 as amended by SRO. 896(1)/2013 dated 4 October 2013 and
deduction of input tax more than the limit defined under section 8 read with chapter IV of
Sales Tax Rules, 2006, The tax authority in the said notice raised a demand of Rs. 19.91
million and Rs. 11.15 million respectively for the period from 1 January 2014 to 30
September 2014, The Company after consultation with its tax advisors has replied and
submitted explanation with the tax authorities along with revised workings for the
apportionment of input tax which in the case of the Company for the above period was Rs.
0.52 million (regarding the 2% extra sales tax matter, please refer the above paragraph). Since
then, no further action has been initiated by the tax authorities.

The Company had earlier received a sales tax recovery order from the sales tax authorities
amounting to Rs. 195.63 million, for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 against
which the Company had filed an appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals
(CIR-A), CIR-A had deleted one item while the remaining matters were set aside. Moreover,
the management, based on consultation with its tax advisor, is of the view that matter would
be decided in favour of the Company. However, CIR has filed an appeal against Company on
the matters of SRO 6472007 regarding input tax adjustments against 90% output tax and
payment of sales tax on instalment sales at the time of receipt of instalment instead at the time
when instalment sales arc actually being made for which no hearing has yet taken place.
Amount involved is Rs. 171.7] million. However, based on advice of legal consultant,
management is of the view that that no potential liability is expected to oceur.

Income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up to and including the tax year
2007. The Company had applied for Income tax refund for the tax years from 2006 to 2011.
Income tax refund orders were earlier determined for the tax years 2009, 2010 and 2011.
Income tax refund was released for the tax year 2009, However, the Additional Commissioner
Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the deemed assessed orders under section 122 (3A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax vears from 2009 to 2012 and raised additional
income tax demand of Rs. 19.98 million. However, the Company had filed an application for
the rectification of orders afier which the net tax additional demand was reduced to Rs, 2.02
million (after the adjustment of the refund of relmed vears) under section 221 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001. Appeals have been filed to Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals
(CIR-A) against these orders.
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18.1.3

18.1.4

18.1.5

Company has received appellate orders for the tax years from 2009 to 2012, dated 29 June
20135, where the CIR-A has set aside certain issues for reassessment, deleted certain items and
maintained certain disallowances, The financial impuet of the items set aside for reassessment
and continued disallowances amount to Rs. 43.72 million, Appeal has been filed with
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against these issues. The Company based on the
merits of matters is of the view that ultimate decisions are expected in its favour. However,
adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect of the above
balance.

The Finance Act, 2017 introduced a tax under section SA of the Income Tax ordinance, 2001
on every pubic Company other than a scheduled bank or Modaraba, that derives profit for the
tax year and does not distribute at least 40% of the after tax profit within six months of the
end of said tax year through cash or bonus issue. Under the earlier section tax was not
mandatorily leviable in case the Company's reserves were not in excess of the paid up capital
{which was the case with the Company as it had accumulated losses). Provision for the above
referred tax amounting to Rs, 9.35 million has not been paid as the Company's management is
of the view that the amendment was made after the closure of Company's financial year ended
31 December 2016 and for certain other legal reasons. The Company has filed a
Constitutional petition before the Honorable Sindh High Court at Karachi challenging the
vires of Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and o stay order has been granted
against any coercive action against the Company under the newly inserted Section 5A.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR). via order dated 30 April 2014, under
section 161(1) and 205(3) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2014 raised a
tax demand of Rs. 0.83 million for non deduction of advance income tax for the period from
01 November 2013 o 30 April 2014 onder section 236(G) and 236{H) of the aforesaid
Ordinance. Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals
(CIR-A) which was remanded back to DCIR. The Company filed an appeal against the order
of CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which is pending adjudication.
However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect of
the above balance.

During the financial year 2014, the Company reccived a notice by Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Zone 1 for selection of audit under section 214C for the tax year 2012, The
Company filed an appeal against the said notice before Honorable Lahore High Court which
was decided against the Company and audit proceedings were initiated. The Deputy
Commissioner Inland Revenue issued an amended assessment order under section 122(1) and
122(5) through which certain additions were made and demand order was raised amounting to
Rs. 48,10 million. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A), who vide his order no. 9 dated 04 April 2019 deleted certain
additions. Being aggrieved with the order of CIR-A the Company filed an appeal before the
honorabie Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, which is pending adjudication.

il
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18.1.6 During the financial year 2014, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue imposed
penalty vide order dared 27 April 2014 under section 182(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 amounting Rs. 0.91 million for the tax year 2013 for the late filling of income tax
return under section 114 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.The Company filed an appeal
before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) against the above order. The CIR-
A decided the matter against the Company vide order dated 25 March 2014. The Company
filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR-A
which is pending adjudieation. However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated
financial statements in respect of the above balance.

18.1.7 During the financial year 2015, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), vide
order dated 30 April 20135, under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for
the tax year 2010, raised an amended demand of Rs. 7.85 million after disallowing certain
expenses amounting to Rs. 29.15 million. The Company filed an appeal for the rectification
of order before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) who vide its order dated
30 December 2015 deleted certain items amounting to Rs. 19.94 million. ACIR has filed an
appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR-A which
is pending adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated financial
statements in respect of the above balance.

18.1.8 During the financial vear 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR)
amended the deemed assessed return vide its order dared 19 June 2017 under section
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2011, The ACTR disallowed
certain expenses amounting to Rs. 9.58 million and raised the additional income tax demand
of Rs. 1.02 million. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue «
Appeals (CIR-A). The CIR-A vide order no. 1% dated 21 September 2020 decided the appeal
partially in favour of the Company by deleting the additions amounting to Rs. 4.62 million
under the head financial charges and directed the ACIR to verify the said contention and
adjust the refund of Rs, 1.02 million if still available to the Company for adjustment in the
current year. Being aggrieved with of the CIR-A order, the Company preferred an appeal
before the Honorable Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahare, which is still pending for
adjudication. However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated financial staterments
in respect of the above balance.

18.1.9  During the financial year 2018, the Company received a show cause notice issued by Deputy
Comimissioner Inland Revenue under section 161 for the tax year 2017 on non deduction of
withholding tax amounting to Rs. 6.03 million on payments against purchese of plant and
machinery, packing material and other miscellaneous payments. The Company filed an
appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) where the case was
remanded back to the Department. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is pending adjudication,

18.1.10 During the financial year 2018, the Taxation Officer, after conducting audit under section
177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) for the tax year 2014, passed an
amended assessment order under section 122 of the Ordinance raising tax demands of Rs,
2529 million alleging that the Company suppressed its sales and adjusted inadmissible
expenses. Being aggrieved, the Company has filed appeal before Commissioner Inland
Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). CIR-A vide order, deleted certain additions amounting to Rs.
80 million and the rest of the additions amounting to Rs. 26 million were confirmed. Hence
nothing is outstanding or payable against the Company. The department filed an appeal
before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) which is pending for adjudication and a
favourzble outcome is expected.

(73 JTTAFREN
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18.1.11 During the financial vear 2016, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue raised an order
under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for non-deduction of tax
amounting Rs. 645 million and Rs. 3.76 million for tax years 2009 and 2010 respectively.
The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Tnland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A)
which was decided against the Company. The Company filed an appeal sgainst the order of
CIR-A in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), which is pending for adjudication.
However, adequate provision is held in the unconsolidated financial statements in respect of
the above balance.

18.1.12 During the financial year 2019, the Company received a show cause notice from Collector of
Customs dated 05 April 2019 and respective order dated 17 Qcwober 2019 in which the
Company was directed to deposit an amount of Rs. 24.12 millian for the consignment of
Polymethylene polyphenylene isocynate which was cleared through erroncous application of
SRO 639/2007 dated 30 June 2007. The Company has filed an appeal against the order
which is in progress.

18.1.13 During the financial year 2019, a special customs reference was filed by the before the
Honorable Sindh High Court Karachi against order dated 14 May 2019 passed by Customs
Appellate Tribunal, Karachi where in the Company was directed to deposit an amount of Rs.
30.85 million and penalty of Rs. 1.00 million alleging that from July 2013 to June 2016 the
Company imported four consignments of Polvethylene Isocynates under PCT heading
3824.9091 wherein custom duty charged @ 0% instead of 20%. The reference of the
Company is under adjudication.

Based on the opinion of the legal and tax advisors handling the above litigations, the management
believes that the Company has strong legal grounds against each case and that no financial liability is
expected to acerue. Aceordingly, no provision (in addition to already held in respect of certain cases of
the Company) has been made in these unconsolidated financial statements.

18.2 Commitments

18.2.1 Commitments, for the imporl of stock in trade, outstanding at year end were for Rs. 185.47
million (2¢19: Rs. 319.39 million).

1822 Commitments, for capital expenditure, against irmevocable letters of credit outstanding at
year end were for Rs. 2.16 million (2019: Rs. 1.09 million).

2020 2019
Property, plant and equipment Nore (Rupees in '000)
Operating fixed asséts 19.1 4,634,915 4,623,877
Right of use assets 9.1 151,122 289 393
Capital work-in-progress 192 £2.005 465,204
4,869,032 4,969,474
HRHLA™M,
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19.1.1 Had there been no revaluation of the frechold land, buildings thereon and plent and machinery
therein, the net book value as of 31 December 2019 would have been as follows:

2020 2019
Land 2.364,500 2,364,500
Buildings 396,364 400,371
Plant and Machinery 1,507,142 1,433,154

4,268,006 4,198.025

19.1.2 The latest revaluation was carried on 31 December 2019 by Asif Associates (Private) Limited. As
per the revaluation report, forced sale value of frechold land, buildings on free hold land and plant
and machinery was Rs. 2,128 million, Rs. 344,70 and Rs. 1,433.95 million respectively,

19.1.3 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

Total area Covered area
Location Usage of immovable property (Kanals) (Square Feet)
9.K.M, Hanjarwal, Multan  Head Office and 61.90 340,134
Road, Lahore. manufacturing facility
Dina Nath, Mouza Rakh Manufacturing facility 845 18,069

Serai Cheenba, Tehsil
Parntoki, District Kasur,

19.1.4 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:

2020 2019
Note (Rupees in "00{0)

Cost of sales 20.1 158,758 134,887
Marketing, selling and distribution costs ki) 65,374 50,321
Administrative expenses 3! 66,446 41,983

190,578 227,191

19.2  Capital work-in-progress
Balance as at 01 January 46,204 33,507
Additions during the year 97,291 266,959
Transfers during the vear (60,500) (254,262)
Balance as at 31 December 1921 §2,995 46,204
Breakup of capital work in progress is as follows:
- Building 26,019 4.851
= Plant and machinery 15,012 35,845
- Electric installation 6,964 5,508
- Advance against purchase of land 35,000 .
82,995 46,204

19.2.1 This represents work-in-progress for development, improvement and installation.

WA LA,
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2020 2019

Intanpible assets and goodwill Nate (Rupees in "00)
Software 35,623 39,289
Goodwill 1,070,207 1,070,206
Brand value 1,582,147 1382147
Customer refationships 215179 245,919
204 1903156 1,937,561
20,1  Reconcilintion of carrying amounts
Deseription Softwar: Goodwill Brand vulue Cuntomer Tuial
relationships
(Ruipees in "000)
Cost
Balance at 01 Junuary 2019 71187 1.070.207 1,582,147 - 2,729,521
Additions duning the year 11,682 - . - 11,682
Transfer from investment in
subsidiary - nore 22.3.1 - - - 261,289 261 289
Balance as a1 31 December 2019 34,849 1,070,207 1,582,147 261258 3K12,492
Additions during the year 9430 . . - 9430
Balunce at 31 December 2020 G4,279 1,070,247 1,582,147 261 289 3011922
Accumulated amarszarion and,
Impairment losves
Balance at 0| January 2019 (40,489 B - = (40,489)
Amaornzation for the year (R,071) - . (15370) (24.441)
Balance at 31 December 2019 {4%,560) - . {15.370) H4.530)
Amortization for the year (13.0%5) - - (30,740} (43,836}
Balance at 31 December 2020 {62,656) - - (46,114) (1U8,766)
Carrving amounis:
At 31 December 2019 39285 1.070.207 1,582,147 245919 2637 5862
AL 31 December 2020 35,623 1,070,207 1,582,147 115179 2,903,156
Rates of umartization/uselul life 5-10 years il Nil 10.5 years
202 Goadwill and oilier intangible assets acquired in business combination

20.2.1

03

Effective (11 July 2017, Waves Singer Pakistan Limued ("ihe Company”) completed a ‘Scheme of Armangement’ as approved by
the Honorable Sindh High Court through its Grder dated 22 Mey 2018 for the amalgamation of Cool Indusiries (Private) Limited
[CIPL] und Link Wel {Private) Limited [LWPL] with and inta the Company and demerger of retail busincss from the Company
and amalgamate the same into the subsidiary. The excess amount paid over the fair valie of the net asseis o CIPL and LWPL on
its acquisition &z of the star: of business on 01 July 2017 represents goodwill, The farr valuation exercise of the recorded tangible
assets and linbilitics was completed at the time of scquisition resulting in recognition of provisional goodwill amounting to Rs.
2.975.12 million which, afier completion of exercise for determunat:on of separately identifiable assets, has hesn allocated w
‘Goodwill' amounting to Rs 107021 million, "Brand value' amounting to Re 1,582,135 mullion and ‘Customers relations’
amounting to R 322.77 million (transferred from subsidiery at Rs. 26129 million and amortized value of Rs. 21518 million)
inling with the requirements of Intemnationn! Accounting Standard 38, (LAS-38) 'Inlungible Assels’,

Impairment festing

The recoverable amount of goodwill including intangible assets (brand vilue and customer relationahips) asquired through o
business combination has been tested for impaurment 23 at 31 December 2020, by allocating the amount of goadwill and
intangible nssets to respective assets on which it arose, based on value in wse in sccordance with TAS 36 "Impairment of Asscts”,
The recoverable amoum was calculated on the basis of five years business plan approved by the Boord of Directors which
includes 2 comprehensive analysis of existing operational deployments of the Comparny along with strategic business plans and
business growth. The value in use caleulations ore bused on cash Now prejections derived from aforesaid husiness plan, which
hetve been extrapolated beyomd five years, by using a steady 3.00% growth rate. The cash flows are discounted using a discount
rate of 11 21% (goodwill) and 14 50% (intangibles) for use in calculation of valee in use which is sensitive 1o discount rate and
local inflution raics. Based on this calculation no impairment is required 1o be aceounted for againg the carrying amount of
goodwill and other mtangible asscts.

2020 2019
Amortisation for the year has been ullocsted us follows Note (Bupees in "000)

Marketing, seiling nnd distribution costs in T4 133N
Administrative expenses 3i 13,096 9,071
3 836 24 441

RAHLIA
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2020 2019
{Rupees in '000)
Invesiment property

Balance as at (1 January 220,500 178,300
Additions during the year - 50,000
Disposals during the year - (7.800)
Fair value gain §2,980 -
Balance as at 31 December 303,480 220,500

The Company has rented out the owned shops 1o its subsidiary Company {Electronic Marketing Company
(Private) Limited}. Balance as of 31 December 2020 comprised of shops of Rs. 303.48 million (2019: Rs
220.50 million) and revaluation gain of Rs. $2.98 million (2019: Rs Nil) based on the revaluation / fair
value of the owned shops determined on 31 December 2020. The fair value gain have been recognized in
the unconsalidated statement of profit or loss as 'Other income' as referred to in note 33,

Rent income of Rs. 554 million (2019: Rs 5.96 million) has been recognized on the above property
during the year ended 31 December 2020, Agreements for the remt are valid up to 10 years and are
renewable, Surplus on revaluation of the above properties amounting to Rs. 149.97 million as of 31
December 2020 continues to be maintained in the "Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and
Equipment” mentioned in note 7 to these uncensolidated financial statements.

The fair value of investment properties as of 31 December 2020 has been determined by an external
independent property valuer M/s Asif Associates (Private) Limited based on independent inguiries from
active local realtors, recent experience in the location and the records of the valuer. The fair value
measurement of the investment property had been categorized as a level 3 fair value based on the input to
the valuation technigque used,

2020 2019
Investment in subsidiaries Nate (Rupees in "000)
Electronics Marketing Company (Private)
Limited - al cost
50,000,000 (2019: 50,000,000) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each 221 500,000 500,000

Equity held: 100% (2019: 100%)
Chief Executive Officer - Moazzam Ahmad Khan

Waves Marketing (Privaie) Limited
100,000 (201 9: 100,000) fully paid ardinary
shares of Rs. 10 each 222& 223 1,000 1,000
Equity held: 100% (2019: 100%)
Chief Executive Officer - Moazzam Ahmad Khan

S01.000 501.000

22.1  Electronics Marketing Company (Private) Limited (EMCPL), a wholly owned subsidiary, was
incorporated on 09 September 2016, The principal activity of the subsidiary Company is to carry
out distribution / wholesales and retail business of all kinds of electronic appliances, its
components and accessories etc. The registered office of the subsidiary Company is located at
Shop No. 5, Ganga Ram Mansion Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam (Mall Road), Lahore, Punjab.

W LA
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22.3

22.3.1

Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WMPL), a wholly owned subsidiary, was incorporated on
10 April 2017. The principal activity of the subsidiary Company was 1o cammy out businesses of
distributors, marketers, merchants, wholesalers, retailers, traders, indentures, stockiest, suppliers,
agent for product of manufacturers of other principals, local or foreign. The registered office of
the subsidiary Company is located at 15/3 A, Model Town, Lahore.

2020 2019
Note {Rupees in '00:0)

Movement of investment in WMPL
Balance as at 01 January 1,000 323,769
Impairment charge during the year 32 = {61,480)
Transfer of customer relations to

mtangibles assets 22.3.1 - (261,289)
Balance as a1 3] December 1,000 1,000

Previously, the Company used to sell products through its subsidiary company to avail the benefit
of extra tax under Rule 59 of Sales Tax Special Procedures Rule, 2007. Through SRO.
694(1))2019 the electronic products are mow taxable at retail price under third schedule.
Resultantly w.e.f. 01 July 2019, the Company has started to transact directly with the dealers in
light of new dealership agreements signed by the Company and the channel of subsidiary
company has been eliminated.

2020 2019
Nate (Rupees in '000)
Long term deposits
Depaosits
- leases 5,516 5,373
- ather long term deposits 3,188 3,188
8.714 8.561
Stock-in-trade
Rirw and packing materials
- in stores (in hand) 686,022 771,111
- in bonded warehouse 24.1 450,740 645,357
- in transit 242,078 285,283
1,378,840 1,704,751
Work in process 204,180 212,851
Finished gaods
- own manufactured 242 879,061 1,053,251
- purchased for resale - -
879,061 1,053,251
Provision for slow moving and damaged stock (29,868) (29,868)

2,432.213 2.940.985

24.1  Stock amouming to Rs. 378.50 million (2019: Rs. 224.91 million) was cleared subsequent to the
vear end.

24.2  Finished goods having cost of Rs. Nil (2019; Rs. 49828 million) were pledged against financial
facility obtained as referred in note 15.4,

Wy
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2020 2019
25 Trade debts Nore {Rupees in "000)

251 Retall network - unsecured

Considered doubtful 166,993 166,993
Loss allowance against trade debts 255 {166,993) (166,993)

252 Wholesale - unsecured

Dealers

Considered good 253 5482318 3,239,794

Considered doubitful 4,216 .
5,486,531 3,239,794

Loss allowance against trade debts 255 (4,216) -

5,482,315 3,239,794

25.3  This includes related parties from whom the debts are due and their ageing is as under:

Less than 6 Greater than

2019
months 6 months s )
Rupees '000
Waves Marketing (Private)
Limited {WMPL) - - - 932,440
Electronics Markefing Company
(Private) Limited (EMCPL}) 277,936 452,884 T60.820 663,992
177,936 482,884 T60.820 1,596,432
254  Maximum outstanding balance with reference to month end balances:
2020 20109
In the Rupees In the Rupees
month of in "000 month of in ‘000
Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WMPL) Jan-20 932,441 Jun-19 2,149,341
Electronics Marketing Company (Private)
Limited (EMCPL) May-20 785,343 Jun-19 1,395,702
2020 2019
{(Rupees in "000)
255  Movement in loss allowance against trade debts
Balance as at 01 January 166,993 200,814
Effect of initial application of IFRS-9 - -
Loss allowance for the year 4,216 -
Reversal of loss allowance - (33,821)
Balance as at 31 December 171,209 166,993
(17 RPURLN
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2020 2019

Advanees, deposits, prepayments and other receivables Nate (Rupees in '000)
Advances - considered good
- Employees and executives 26,1 4.290 4,748
- Suppliers 9,678 9,966
- Against letter of credit 37.825 52,180
51,793 66,894
Shaort term deposits 21,652 18,974
Prepayments 5,891 7.232
ther recelvables
- Claims 262 9,020 2,642
- Sales tax refundable - 16,031
- Receivahle from subsidiary companies 26.3 490,260 B71,127
- Dividend income receivable 2 300,000
499,280 1,189,800
Loss allowances against other receivables 244 (2.342) (2.342)
263 §76.274 1.280).558

26.1 At 31 December 2020, the advances due from executives amounted to Rs. Nil (2019: Rs, 0.57 million). The
maximum aggregate amount of advances due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 0.74
million (2019; Rs. 0.57 million).

262  This includes claims receivable from insurance companies, suppliers and product claims amounting to Rs, 3.57
million (2019: Rs, 2.64 million) against which provision of Rs. 2.34 million (2019: Rs. 2.34 million} is held.

26.3  This represents amounts due from subsidiary companies, on account of expenses allocated to them / incurred on
their behalf in accordance to & basis approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The balance is unsecured
and receivable on demand. Mark-up is charged at average quarterly borrowing rate of the Company.

26.3.1 Ageing of the receivable is as under:

less than &  Greater than

months 6 months L s
Rupees '000
Waves Marketing (Private)
Limited (WMFL) - 157,885 157,885 559,722
Electronics Marketing Company
(Private) Limited (EMCPL) - 332375 332,375 311,405
- 490,260 490,260 871,127
26.3.2 Maximum outstanding balance with reference to month end balances:
2020 2019
In the month Rupees in '000 Inthe month of Rupees in '000
Waves Marketing (Private) Limited (WMPL) Dec-20 157,885 Dec-19 559,722
Electronics Marketing Company (Private)
Limiled (EMCPL) Dec-20 332,375 Dec-19 311,408
2010 2019
26.4  Movement in loss allowance against other receivables {Rupees in '000)
Balance as at 01 January 1342 11,572
1.oss allowance for the vear & ‘
Reversal of loss allowancge - (9,230)
Balance as at 31 December 1341 2,342

26,5  All the above balances other than amount referred in note 26.3 are interest free and unsecured.

el udia
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2020 2019

Nuore (Rupees in '000)
Cash and bank halances
Balances with banks
- in current aceounts 271 89,222 111,524
Cash in hand 4,997 4,820
94,219 116,344
271 These include bank account of Rs. 0.64 million {(20192: Rs. 0.31) maintained under Shariah
compliant arrangement.
2020 2019
(Rupees in "000)
Revenue - net
Sales
- local 8,263,813 10,093,816
- Export 24,075 18,160
Sales return (98,437) (42,966)
8,189,451 10,069.010
Sales tax (1,174.492)| [ (1.126.652)
Trade discount (310.162) (2,123.952)
(1,484,654)  (3.250.604)
Revenue from contracts with customers 6,704,797 6,818.4006
28.1 Revenue from contracts with customers relates to both local (Pakistan) and foreign
(Afghanistan) markets and represents sale of domestic consumer products.
2020 2019
Nute (Rupees in "000)
Cost of sales
(pening siock - finished goods
- own manufactured 1,053,251 950,659
- purchased for resale - 287.668
1,053,251 1,238,327
Purchases 252.514 102,608
Cost of goods manufactured 291 4,816.623 5,665,584
6,122,388 7.006,519
Closing stock - finished goods
- own manufactured (879,061) (1,053,251)
5,243,327 5,953,268
UL
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2020 2019

29.1  Cost of goods manufactured Note {Rupees in '000)

Raw and packing materials

and stores consumed 4,139,758 5,018,674
Salaries, wages and other benefits 20.1.1 367,288 371,963
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 19.1.4 158,758 134,887
Fuel and power 80,085 88,223
Freight charges 8,041 49,197
Insurance expense 10,966 7,636
Repairs and maintenance 11,539 22,740
Printing and stationery 17,801 15,248
Travelling and conveyance 1,241 3,562
Rent, rates and taxes 1,817 -
Communication 437 946
Miscellaneous expenses 221 518

4,807,952 5,713,594
Wark-in-process
Opening stock 212,851 164,841
Closing stock (204,180) (212,851)
8,671 (48,010)

Cosl of goods manufactured 4,816,623 5,665,584

29.1.1 These include provision / reversal of Rs. 1.64 million (2019: Rs. (7.63) million), Rs. (0.24)
million (2019: Rs. (8.52) million) and Rs. 9.20 million (2019: Rs. 10.26 million) in respect of
gratuity, pension and provident funds respectively.

2020 2019

Marketing, selling and distribution costs Note (Rupees in '000)
Salaries and benefits 30.1 179,533 99,141
Rent, rates and taxes 6,594 17,291
Publicity and sales promotion 80,717 36,020
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 19.1.4 65,374 50,321
Warranty obligations 61,000 44,586
Utilities 6,950 6,040
Printing and stationery 902 979
Travelling and conveyance 21,135 14,729
Amortisation of intangible assets 20.3 30,740 15,370
Communication 784 3a0
Repair and maintenance 1,293 1,148
Insurance expense 6,107 2247
Others 621 502

461,750 288,824

0.1 These include provision / reversal of Rs. 0.25 million (2019: Rs. (2.94) million), Rs. (0.09)
million (2019: Rs. (3.28) million) and Rs. 6.48 million (2019: Rs. 4.95 million) in respect of
gratuity, pension and provident funds respectively.

KAM LA
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Note
31 Administrative expenses

Salaries and benefits iri
Legal and professional charges

Auditors' remuneration 313
Depreciation on praperty, plant and equipment 19.14
Communication

Travelling and conveyance

Repair and mainenance

Utilities

Printing and stationery

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance expense

Entertainment expense

Fees and subscription

Amortisation of intangible assets 2.3
Charity and donations 31.2
Others

2020

2019

(Rupees in "'000)

152,978 76,094
9,143 21,969
4,230 4,169
66,446 41,983
12,114 7,302
9,492 8234
3,441 1,440
9,846 5,970
4,889 3,120
1,767 494
5,618 5,352
3,339 2,054
9,116 5,603
13,096 9,071
a0 561
1,336 1,629

306,901 195,144

31,1 These include provision / reversal of Rs, (.63 million (2019: Rs. (1.17) million), Rs. (0.04) million
(2019: Rs. (1.31) million) and Rs, 6,91 million (2019: Rs. 3.53 million) in respect of gratuity,

pension and provident funde respectively,

31.2  None of the donations were made o an entity in which any director or his / her spouse had an

interest.

Nete
31.3 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Fee for the review of interim linancial information

Fee for the review of code of corporate governance and
other certifications / reports under
agreed upon procedures

Out of pocket expenses

32 Other expenses

Workers' profits participation fund (WPFF) 132
Exchange loss - net

Research and development expenditure

Impairment on investment in subsidiary 243
Loss allowance against debts 23
Workers' welfare fund

Oither expenses

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

3,025 2,750
466 424
3940 352
349 644

4,230 4,170

14,530 32,313
- 33,796

5,613 4,097
- 61,480

4216 -

5,522 9,243

12,790 3,199
42,671 146,728
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2020 2019
33  Other income Note (Rupees in '004)

Income from financi

Profit on a profit and loss sharing bank balance 163 4

Income from non-financial instruments

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
investment property - ret 7,523 1,840
Fair value gain on investment property 82,980 -
Exchange gain - net 2,909 -
Reversal of loss allowance against trade debis - 33,821
Dividend income 331 - 660,000
Mark-up on receivables from subsidiary companizs 331.2 188,509 229,186
Rental income 21 5,515 5,953
Liabilities no longer payable written back 55,167 9,062
Scrap sales 5,713 7,107
Amortisation of deferred income H 15,533 6,117
Others 11,626 -
375,515 853,186
375,678 953,190

33.1 This represents dividend income from Waves Marketing (Private) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary,

33.2  This represents mark-up charged against n2t amoun! receivable from the subsidiary companies at
an average quarterly borrowing rate of the Company at the outstanding balance receivable.

2020 2019
34 Finance costs Nore (Rupees in '000)
Islamic mode of financing
- Short term borrowings 33,794 4% 507
Interest ! mark-up on tnterest / mark-up based foans
- Long tenm loans 236,632 183.524
- Short term borrowings 531,796 546,091
- Finance lease 27,665 25,570
Bank charges 18,843 21,606
848,730 826,298
35 Taxation
Current:
- for the year 51 96,627 29,800
- prigr year {3,340) -
91,287 20,800
Deferred:
- for the year (95,274) 71,449
- prior year {19,576) -
- group taxalion 12 90,822 -
(24,028) 71,449
67,259 101,244
WhmLS-
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352

353

The Company has opted for Group taxation and the Group taxation has been determined under
Minimum Tax on Tumover' under section | 13 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The current tax
includes tax under the final tax regime amounting to Rs. 3,92 million (2019: Rs. 5.50 million}.

Tax charge reconciliation

Numerical reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit:

2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Profit before tax 177.096 361,334
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2019: 29%) 51,358 104,787
Tax effect of permanent differences:
- Differsntial under normal and final / minimum
1ax regime 1,783 115416
- Exempt income (exempt due to group taxation) (78,732) (191.400)
- Other permanent differences 15 (163)
Change in tax rate - 43,103
Deferred tax asset not recognized on tax losses 26,311 -
Prior year tax charge (24.916) -
Effect of group taxation 90,822 -
Others 618 29,506
67,259 101,249

In prior years, the Company has not recorded provision for minimum tax under the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance) amounting to Rs. 44.60 million and Rs. 15.10 million in respect of
year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2015 respectively as the management expects to
adjust the same against its future tax liability under the normal tax regime within the time limit as
specified for adjustments of minimum tax in the Ordinance. Similarly for the year ended 31
December 2016, provision for Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) (being higher than the minimum tax)
amounting to Rs. 23.07 has also not been recorded on the same basis.

36 Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The caleulation of earnings per share (basic and diluted) is based on earnings attributable to the owners of
ordinary shares of the Company.

No figure for diluted eamings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instruments
carrving options which would have an impact on eamings per share when exercised.

Company's earnings per share have been calculated as follows:

2020 2019
Profit for the vear Rupees in '000 109,837 260,085
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Shares 187,604 187.604
Earnings per share - basie and diluted Rupees 0.59 1,39

Kot b=
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43  Financial risk management

The Company's Board of Direciors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
munagement frumework. The Board of Direclors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management policies,

The Company's risk management pelicies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, w0 sel
appropriate nsk limits and controls-and to monitor risks and adherence to limirs. Risk manazement policies and systens are
reviewed reqularly to reflect chunges in market conditions and the Campany's activities. The Company, through its traimng
and management standards and procedures, aims to maintan a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
emplovees undersiund their roles and obligations. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of
the nsks.

The Company's audit commitice oversees how management monitors comphanie with the Company's risk management
policies and procedures. Audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal sudit department. Internal audit
department undertakes both regular and ad hoe reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the résults of *which anc
reported 1o the Board of Directors. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instroments:

- Credit risk
= Lagudaty rsk
- Muorket rigk

This note presents infarmation about the Company's exposure to cach of the above risks, the Company's objectives, policies
and processes for mensuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital
431 Credit risk

Credil risk is the risk (hat the eounterparty 1o @ linancial mstrument will cavse @ fizancial loss for the Company by
failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk of the Company arses principally from trade debts, advances,
deposits, other receivables and bank balances

43.1.1 Exposare to eredit risk

The carrying amount of Financial assets represents the maximum credil exposure. The maximum exposurs lo credit
risk before any credit enhancements at the reporting date was!

Carrying amount
2020 2019
{Rupees in '000)
Security deposits 30 366 27.538
Trade debis 5482315 3239794
Other recervables 496.93% 1171427
Balinces with bianks 89,221 111,524

6098841 4,550,280

43.1.2 Concentration of eredit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter partics are engaged in simalar business activities ar
have similar cconomic features that would cause their ahilities to meet contracmal obligation to be similarly effected
by the changes in ¢conomic, political or other conditions, Concentration of eredit risk indicote the relative sensitivity
of the Companv's performance lor developments affectng a particular mdustry, Cut of total recewable, 21% (2019:
f1%4) relates to réccivable from subsidiary companies. Maximum exposure to credit risk by type of counterpanty is

as faliows:
Net receivable
{met of provisions)
2020 20019
{Rupees in "000)
Trade debts
- others 4,721,495 1,643,362
- subsidiary companies 760,820  1,305432
Secupity depostis
- individuals 24,840 22162
= lcasc 5,526 5373
Other receivahle from subsidiary compantes 490,264 1,171,127
Instranice Company (clyins) 6,678 300
Banks 89,122 111,524
6,098,841 4,550,280
pRsaLa
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43.1.3  Credit quality and impairment

Credit quality of financial assets iz assessed by reference 1o external credil ratings, where available, or histooical mformation about
the counterparty default rates. All counterparties, with the exception of customers and wtility Companies, have external credic
ratings determined by varous credit rating agencies and other regulatory authorities Credit quality of customer 15 assessed by
reference to historical defaul rates and prosent ages.

13430 Counterparties with external credif ratings

These-include banking companies and financial institutions, whech are counerparties w bank balances and deposits. Imparment on
cash ard cash squivalents has been measured on & 12 month expected loss busis und reflizets the short maturities of the exposures.
Credit iisk is considered minimal as these counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by vanious credit rating
agencies. Duc to Jong standing business relationships with these counterparties and eonsidering their strong financial standing,
management does not expect ngo-perfnmance by these counterparties on their abligations 10 the Company, Following are the eredit
ratings of counterparties with external credit mtings:

Rating Shart Long 020 219
Banks Agency term erm (Rupees in "000)
AlBaraks Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al A 1,144 LE}
Adlied Bank Limiled PACRA A=+ AAA 1,083 10,2599
Askart Bank Timirad PACRA Aslt AAF 1487 2394
Bank Alfalzh Limited PACHA Aslt AAs 11,005 4,068
Bank Islamic Pakistan Limirzd PACRA A-1 At 1 |
The Bank of Khyber PACRA A-l A 790 13,523
The Bank of Punjub PACRA A=l AA 5,531 4. 804
Dubai Istane Bank Limited RIS A1+ AA 35 33
Faysal Bank Limited JICR-VIS A1+ AA 936 1,245
Finca Migrofinarce Bunk Limited ICE-VIS A- A 13,436 1,550
Hebib Bank Limited ICR-V15 A1+ AAA s Mma 21,070
Habib Metropoliten Bank Lirmited PACRA Al+ Ab+ 136 236
I8 Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Ap 4 4
MCD Bank Limted PACRA Al AAA 4,419 2,773
Meezan Bank JCR=V15 Al+ AAx 5,627 el
Wationzl Bank OF Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA 611 42459
Silk Bank Limited JER-VIS A2 A- ELx) Ek)
Sanerl Bank Limited PACKA Al A 638 ]
Standund Chariered Bank { Pakistan) Limited TACRA Als AAA 1,110 1,111
United Bank Limied ICR-VIS Al AAA 1070 1300
§9,222 111524
g D .
The Bank of Punjab PACRA A-1+ Ak 209 209
Askari Bank Limited PACRA Alt AMT b0 ) e 2412
Sindh Lensing Company Limited JCRVIS Ak A-l 1903 1,752
5,526 5373
1,748 116,8%7

43.1.31b) Coumterpuriies without extersal credit ratings

These inelude customers which are counter parties o trads debts. The Company's exposure to credit risk 15 influenced mairly by the
individual characteristics of each customer / dealars. As explained in notz 4.12, the Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses. The analysis of ages of trade debis and loss allowance using the aforementioned
appraach was determined o3 follows:

020 2018
Gross Limpairment Gross Impairment
loss logs
----- {Rupees in "000) - - - - -« - - -- - - [Rupees in 00} - - -——-
Not yet due 2432,1405 - 773,903 -
Past due | = 30 days 404,829 - 695644 .
Pagt due 31 days - 90 dave 1,078,226 = 347407 =
Past due 9] - 160 days 1,153,161 - 1,018,831 .
Pastdue 181 « 360 davs 413.994 - 202909 -
Past due by more than | year 171,209 171,209 166,293 156,943
Toal 5,653,524 171,209 3,406,787 166,953

The management has established a eredit policy under which cach now customer is anobyaod indrvidually for credn worthiness

Wone of the nancizl assels of the Company are secured or impaired exceps as those mentioned in thess anconsolidated finaneial
statements. Depomits and other receivables are mostly due from subsidiary companies, banks and individugls. lmpairment on these
243ty hag been mensured on a 12 month expected loss basis ond reflects the short maturities of the exposures Rased on past
experiznee the management believes that no impairment llowance is nocessary in respect of these financial assets. There are
reazomable grounds te believe that these amounts will be recovered in short course of time.

s
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43.3 Market risk

Market risk 15 the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
cquity prices will effect the Company's income or the value of ils holdings of financial instruments.
The Company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk.

43.3.1 Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the
currencies in which sales and purchases are denominated and the respective functional currency of

the Company. The functional currency of the Company is Pak Rupee. The currencies in which these
transactions ars primarily denominated are Euros and US dollars,

43.3.1(a) Expaosure to currency risk

The Company is mainly exposed to currency risk on import of raw materials and merchandise
denominated in US dollars, The Company's exposure io loreign currency risk at the reporting date is

as follows:
2020 2019 2020 2019
{Rupees in "000)
Trade ¢reditors {UUSD in "000) 6,144 B39 981,996 133.274
Trade creditors {Euro in "000) 42 - 8.259 -

Following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Average rate Reporting date Spot rate
2020 2019 2020 2019
USD to PKR 161.62 150.00 159.83 155.15
EUR to PKR 184.39 168.02 196.64 1 74.00

Sensilivity analysis

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar and Euro with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year would have been lower by the amount shown below, as a
result of net foreign exchange gain on translation of forgign currency bills payables.

2020 2019
{Rupces in '000)

Effect on statement of profit or loss 99,026 13,327

The weakening of the PKR by 10% against US Dollar would have had an equal but epposite impact
on the profit for the year,

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the etfects on profit for the year and
liabilities of the Company.

43.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair values or future cash tlows of a financial instrament will
fluctuate because of changes in inlerest rotes. Sensilivily o interesi rate risk arises from mismaich of
financial assets and financial liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.

7N [FTTw N
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43.3.2(a) Fair value rensitivity amalysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assers and liabilities a1 fair value through statement
af profit or loss. Therefore-a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect siatement of profit or
logs.

43.3.2(b)  Mismatch of interest rate sensitive financial assets and financlal linbilities

The Company’s interest / mark-up and non-interest / mark-up hearing financial instruments as at the reporting
dale are as follows:

2020
Carrying Interest bearing / Noneinterest
amount variable bearing / fixed
rate financial rate finuncial
instruments instruments
{Rupees in "(00)
Finaneinl assérs
Security deposits 366 - 30,366
Trade debts 5,482,315 - 5482315
Orher reccivahles 496,938 490,260 6,678
Cash and hank balances 94,219 - 94,219
6,103,838 490,260 5613578
Financial linbifities
Long torm loans = secured (2.506831) (2,506.831) -
Lease liabilities (122.546) (122.846) -
Employes retirement henefit (19,666) - (19,666)
Trade and other pavahles (9140),538) - (900,538)
Mark-up eccrued on borrowings {178,416) - (178.416)
Short term borrowings - secured (3,954,951) (3,954,952) -
Loun from sponsors - unsecured {380.500) £380.500)
(8,063,749) (6,584,629) (1,098,620)
(1,959.911) (6,094,369) 4,514,958
2018
Carrving Interesi bearing / Mon-interest
amouni variahle bearing
rate financial Mnancial
instruments instrusmnsnts
Financial assefs (Rupees in "(00) «-mrmmsmmamrmmeeeecen
Securlty deposits 27,535 - 27,335
Trade debts 3,239,704 - 3,239 794
Other receivables L171.427 871,127 300,300
Cash and bank balance 116344 - 116,344
4,555,100 871,127 3.683,973
Financial linbilities
Long term loans - sectired {1,732271) (1,732,271) .
Lzasc habilities (263,148) {263,148) -
Emplovee retirement benelil (23.088)
Trade and other payables (1,196,130} - (1,196,130}
Murk-up acerucd on borrowings (216.566) - {116.566)
Short term borrowings - secured (4, 113.381) (4,113,581} -
(7.544,784) (6, 109,000} {1,412,696)
(2,989.683) (5,237.873) 2,271,277
LD Mlaa sy
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43.3.2.1

4333

43.4

Effective interest / mark-up rates for the financial assets and financial liabilities are as follows:

2020 201%
Percentage
Financial finbilities
Long term loans - secured 3% to 16.75% 12.60% to 16.86%
Lease liabilities 9.17% to 16.50% 11.00% to 17.09%
Short term borrowings - secured 8.81% to 18.55% 10.56% to 18.54%

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased /
(decreased) profit for the year by Rs. 60.95 million (2019 Rs, 52.38 million). This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2019.

Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk). At reporting date the Company did not have financial instruments exposed to
othar price risk.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern
without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to
undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares
are based on the quoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted
market prices used for financial assets held by the Company is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements
using & fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements, The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, cither directly or indirectly (level 2).

- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (level 3).

3 STPACN
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44  Capital risk management
The Company's objectives wlien managing capital are:

a) to safeguard the entity's ability fo continue as a going concern, so thal it can conlinue to provide
teturns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b)  toprovide an adequate return to shareholders,

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio calculated as total debt (current and non-current borrowings) to debt plus equity.

The debt to equity ratios were as follows: 2020 2019
(Rupees in '000)

Total debt 6,888,452 5,918,300
Total equity and debt 15,675,086 14,602,240
Debt 1o €q Ll'i.:}' ratio “nrr. 419

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
45  Events after the reporting date

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 19 March 2021 have proposed a final cash dividend for

the year ended 31 December 2020 of Rs. NIL per share (2019 ™NIL
share), amounting to Rs, _NIL million (2019: . NIL i} for approval
of the members at the Amnual General Meeting to be held on _ 23rd April 2021 . These

unconsolidated financial statemenis do not reflect this dividend.

46  Corresponding figures
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, where necessary, for the purpose of
comparison and better presentation as per reporting framework. However, no significant reclassification

has been made,

47  Date of authorization of issue

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their

meeting held on fI g MAR 2ﬂg1

(73 (PR

i
A A

Chief Executive bl‘ﬁcer Chief Flnan:u‘;__fﬁ‘
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